
 

 
 
 

 

Agenda 
Planning Committee 
 

Wednesday, 19 January 2022 at 5.00 pm 
At Sandwell Council House, Freeth Street, Oldbury, B69 3DB 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as 

required by Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 

Regulations 2012. 
 

 
1   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2   Declarations of Interest 
 
Members to declare any interests in matters to be 
discussed at the meeting. 
 

 

3   Minutes 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 8 
December 2021 as a correct record. 
 

7 - 24 

4   Planning Application - DC-21-65664 - 8 
Aldridge Close, Oldbury, B68 9NY 
 
Proposed two storey side/rear and single storey 
rear extensions, front bay window, raising of roof 
height, loft conversion with 2 No. side loft dormer 
windows. 
 

25 - 38 

5   Planning Application - DC-21-66106 - Land At 
Summerton Road, Oldbury 

39 - 56 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 
Proposed industrial unit (Use Class E(g)(iii) 
Industrial processes) with ancillary offices and 
associated parking. 
 

6   Planning Application - DC-21-66122 - Land 
Adjacent The Bungalow, Corngreaves Road, 
Cradley Heath 
 
Proposed 2 no. 3 bedroom dormer bungalows with 
boundary fencing and associated car parking. 
 

57 - 72 

7   Planning Application - DC-21-66156 - 21 
Yewtree Lane, Rowley Regis, B65 8BU 
 
Proposed two storey side, first floor front and 
single storey front/rear extensions. 
 

73 - 84 

8   Planning Application - DC-21-66185 - 54 St 
James Road, Oldbury, B69 2DX 
 
Proposed change of use from dwelling to 8 No. 
bedroom HMO (house in multiple occupation) with 
two/single storey side and single storey rear 
extensions. 
 

85 - 104 

9   Planning Application - DC-21-66223 - Regis 
Lodge, 50 George Avenue, Rowley Regis B65 
9BD 
 
Proposed demolition of existing buildings and 
construction of a five-storey building comprising of 
42 No. apartments with external bin/cycle store, 
associated access, parking and landscaping. 
 

105 - 134 

10   Planning Application - DC-21-66233 - 1 Hydes 
Road, Wednesbury, WS10 9SX 
 
Retention of use of garage as hair salon 
(previously refused application DC/21/65576). 
 

135 - 146 

11   Planning Application - DC-21-66293 - Footpath 
Adjacent To The Front Garden Of 1 Asbury 
Walk, Great Barr, Birmingham, B43 6HF 
 

147 - 160 

Page 2



 

Proposed new section of 2.1m high railings and 
relocation of access gate to the front of private 
footway (Resubmission of previously withdrawn 
application DC/21/66021). 
 

12   Planning Application - DC-21-66295 - 125 
Bleakhouse Road, Oldbury, B68 0LT 
 
Proposed single storey front/side extension to 
existing outbuilding in rear garden for use as a 
home office/gym. 
 

161 - 174 

13   Applications Determined Under Delegated 
Powers 
 

175 - 210 

14   Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate 
 

211 - 216 

15   Information Received after Agenda Publication 
 

217 - 222 

Page 3



 

 
 
Kim Bromley-Derry 
Interim Chief Executive 
Sandwell Council House 
Freeth Street 
Oldbury 
West Midlands 
 
Distribution 
Councillor Hussain (Chair) 
Councillors J Webb, Allcock, Allen, Chapman, Chidley, Dhallu, Fenton, S Gill, 
Jones, Kaur, Kalari, Millar, C Padda, Rouf and Singh 
 
Contact: democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk 
 

Page 4

mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk


 

 
Information about meetings in Sandwell 
 

 
 

If you are attending the meeting and require assistance to 
access the venue, please contact Democratic Services 
(democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk). 
 

 
 

If the fire alarm sounds, please follow the instructions of the 
officers present and leave the building by the nearest exit. 
 

 
 

Only people invited to speak at a meeting may do so.  
Everyone at the meeting is expected to be respectful and listen 
to the discussion. 

 
 

Agendas with reports with exempt information should be 
treated as private and confidential.  It is your responsibility to 
ensure that any such reports are kept secure.  After the 
meeting confidential papers should be disposed of in a secure 
way. 
 

 
 

This meeting may be recorded and broadcast on the Internet.  
If this is the case, it will be confirmed at the meeting and 
further information will be provided.  
 
 

 
 

You are allowed to use devices for the purposes of recording 
or reporting during the public session of the meeting.  When 
using your devices they must not disrupt the meeting – please 
ensure they are set to silent. 
 

 
 

Members who cannot attend the meeting should submit 
apologies by contacting Democratic Services 
(democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk) 
 

Page 5

mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk


 

 

All agenda, reports, minutes for Sandwell Council’s meetings, 
councillor details and more are available from our website 

Page 6

https://sandwell.moderngov.co.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 
 
Minutes of  
Planning Committee 
 

Wednesday, 8 December 2021 at 5.00 pm 
at Sandwell Council House, Freeth Street, Oldbury, B69 3DB 

 
Present: Councillor Hussain (Chair) 
 Councillors J Webb (Vice-Chair), Allcock, Allen, Chapman, 

Dhallu, Fenton, Jones, Kaur, Kalari, C Padda and Rouf 
 
 
Also present: Councillors Hadley, Hinchliff, Jalil and Piper. 
 

John Baker (Service Manager – Development Planning and 
Building Consultancy); Alison Bishop (Development Planning 
Manager) Sian Webb (Solicitor); Simon Chadwick (Principal 
Officer – Development, Highways Direct – Traffic and Road 
Safety); Andy Thorpe (Healthy Urban Development Officer); 
Alexander Goddard (Democratic Services Officer). 

 
 
102/21 Apologies for Absence 
 

Apologies were received from Councillors Chidley, S Gill, Millar 
and K Singh. 

 
103/21 Declarations of Interest 
 

Cllr Allcock declared a personal interest in Planning Application 
DC/21/66199 (Minute No 113/21) and subsequently left the 
meeting during consideration of the matter taking no part in 
proceedings.    
 
Cllr Chapman wished to opposed Planning Application 
DC/21/66097 (Minute No 110/21) and subsequently sat with 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



members of the public during consideration of the matter to speak 
on behalf of residents in his ward, Friar Park.  

 
104/21 Minutes 
 

Resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on 10 
November 2021 were approved as a correct record. 

 
105/21 Planning Application DC/21/65801 - Proposed part change of 

use at rear of convenience store from storage area to hot food 
takeaway with new cold room and extraction flue to rear. 74 - 
76 Cape Hill Smethwick B66 4PB 

 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy highlighted that the application was before Committee 
for transparency purposes as there was involvement of a Council 
employee in the role as agent. 
 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy reported that there was no additional information for 
members to consider. 
 
There were no objections received for the application.  
 
The applicant was not present. 
 
The Committee was minded to approve the application, subject to 
the conditions recommended by the Director – Regeneration and 
Growth. 

 
Resolved that Planning Application DC/21/65801 proposed 
part change of use at rear of convenience store from 
storage area to hot food takeaway with new cold room and 
extraction flue to rear. 74 - 76 Cape Hill Smethwick B66 4PB 
is granted planning permission subject to the following 
conditions: 
(i) Submission and approval of extraction and filtration 

equipment. 
(ii) External doors/ windows to food preparation area to 

remain closed. 
(iii) Noise details of any fixed plant. 
(iv) Opening hours restricted to 12:00 to 23:00 Monday to 

Fridays and 12:00 to 00:00 Saturday and Sundays. 
(v) Bin Storage details. 

 

Page 8



106/21 Planning Application DC/21/65823 – Proposed two storey side 
and rear extension and conversation into 4 No. apartments 
with associated parking. 

 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy reported that there had been a further objection 
received following receipt of amended plans concerning privacy, 
loss of light and noise.  The following additional conditions had 
been added: 
 
(v) boundary wall to be removed and new drop kerb provided 
(vi) Noise attenuation 
 
The applicant was not present. 

 
An objector was present and addressed the Committee with the 
following points:- 
• The objector expressed concerns regarding the property being 

used for commercial use and would therefore be changed by 
definition from a semi-detached dwelling to a commercial 
building.  The objector stated that this would also change her 
property by definition and she should be compensated. 

• The plans showed 4 parking spaces and there should be an 
additional space for a visitor.  

• The garden space should be 60m². 
• Temple Meadows had been used as a point of reference for a 

similar property however the objector felt that this property bore 
no resemblance to Temple Meadows. 

• Several comments had been raised with the Planning team 
which included the concern over a 45-degree angle window, 
blocking light to the objector’s home and their party wall. 

• The application included plans for 12 bins, there were currently 
3 bins, would this not have an environmental impact? 

• It was a family area and there were several brownfield sites that 
could be used rather than being attached to an existing 
property. 

• The objector was concerned that the development would 
devalue her property and had sought advice from an estate 
agent and had instructed a solicitor. 

 
The Committee was minded to approve the application, subject to 
the conditions recommended by the Director – Regeneration and 
Growth. 

 

Page 9



Resolved that Planning Application DC/21/65823 Proposed 
two storey side and rear extension and conversation into 4 
No. apartments with associated parking. 61 Greswold Street 
West Bromwich B71 1NX, is granted planning permission 
subject to the following conditions: 
(i) External materials shall match those of the existing 

property unless otherwise agreed by the local planning 
authority; 

(ii) Details of bin storage and implementation thereafter; 
(iii) Details of cycle storage and implementation thereafter; 
(iv) Implementation and retention of approved parking 

spaces; 
(iv) Boundary wall to be removed and new drop kerb 

provided; 
(v) Noise attenuation. 

 
107/21 Planning Application DC/21/65971 – Proposed change of use 

to takeaway and installation of ventilation/extraction. 263 
Duchess Parade High Street West Bromwich B70 7LX 

 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy advised that the recommendation needed to be 
amended as, at the time of publication they were subject to 
objections from West Midlands Police (WMP).  It was confirmed 
that WMP had not raised any objections, so this was removed from 
the recommendation. 
 
The applicant was not present. 

 
An objector was present and addressed the Committee with the 
following points: 
• His business was likely to be affected by the approval of this 

applications. 
• There were already several hot food takeaways in that location 

and an additional business would have a detrimental impact 
on his own hot food takeaway business. 

 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy outlined that it was not possible for the planning 
system to take competition as a consideration and advised that the 
Committee consider section 9.3 in the report which provided further 
guidance on hot food takeaways.  There was a threshold set at 7% 
for hot food uses in West Bromwich. It was reported that there 
were currently 19 hot food takeaways out of 430 units in West 
Bromwich town centre, which equated to 4.42%, as such an 

Page 10



additional hot food takeaway in the town centre would not result in 
an over-provision of such outlets.  
 
The Committee was minded to approve the application, subject to 
the conditions recommended by the Director – Regeneration and 
Growth. 

 
Resolved that Planning Application DC/21/65971 – 
Proposed change of use to takeaway and installation of 
ventilation/extraction. 263 Duchess Parade High Street 
West Bromwich B70 7LX, is granted planning permission 
subject to the following conditions: 
(i) Details of odour control equipment, noise attenuation 

and future maintenance to be submitted and thereafter 
retained. 

(ii) The premises shall only be open during the following 
hours, this also applies to deliveries: 
1000-2330 Monday to Saturday. 
1200-2300 Sunday & Public Holidays. 

(iii) The rating level of sound emitted from fixed plant and 
equipment at the use hereby approved shall not exceed 
background sound levels by more than 5dB(A) between 
the hours of 07.00-23.00 (taken as a 60-minute LA90 at 
any sound sensitive premises) and shall not exceed the 
background sound level between 2300-0700 (taken as 
a 15-minute LA90 at any sound sensitive premises) 

 
108/21 Planning Application DC/21/65989 – Proposed demolition of 

existing Kings Cinema with ground floor retail and basement 
storage and construction of 15 storey building consisting of 
ground floor retail units with first floor storage and 77 
apartments with basement residential parking and second 
floor open-air podium garden as residential amenity area. 

 
Councillor Dhallu advised that two objectors had visited his home 
in relation to this application, however he had not spoken with them 
on the matter. 
 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy reported that there was no additional information for 
members to consider. 
 
There were no objections received for the application.  The 
applicant’s agent was in attendance and would speak if required to 
do so. 

Page 11



 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy highlighted that the application had been well 
publicised, and the council had not received any objections.  The 
application had been bought to the Committee because it was 
subject to a Section 106 agreement.  If it were not for the legal 
agreement in place, officers would be minded to approve the 
application under delegated powers, as no objections had been 
received. 
 
Councillor Dhallu moved that a site visit be held, the motion was 
not seconded. 
 
The applicant’s agent was present and addressed the Committee 
with the following points:- 
• The application had not received any objections. 
• Developers had spent two years on pre-applications work and 

had been assisted by officers. 
• The building would become iconic for West Bromwich. 
• The applicant’s agent asked that the Committee upheld the 

recommendations set out by officers. 
 

In response to members’ questions of the applicants and the 
officers present, the Committee noted the following:- 
• Electric Vehicle Charging Points could be made available to all 

residents; however, it was not felt by the applicant that it would 
be needed at this stage.  Each vehicle would have its own 
location and private access. 

• Building Control would consider drainage and sewage 
capacity for the building. 

• Public Health had been consulted in regard to the increase of 
cars in the town centre to access parking. There had been no 
objections.  The site was well served by public transport 
including the bus station and the Metro. 

• The proposals would update a prominent and outdated site 
and create an innovative and exciting landmark scheme, 
which would create 77 homes in the centre of West Bromwich 
and add vitality to the town. 

 
The Committee was minded to approve the application, subject to 
the completion of a s106 Agreement and to the conditions 
recommended by the Director – Regeneration and Growth. 

 
Resolved that Planning Application DC/21/65989 – 
Proposed demolition of existing Kings Cinema with ground 

Page 12



floor retail and basement storage and construction of 15 
storey building consisting of ground floor retail units with first 
floor storage and 77 apartments with basement residential 
parking and second floor open-air podium garden as 
residential amenity area. Kings Cinema  Kings Square West 
Bromwich, is granted planning permission subject to a 
Section 106 agreement in respect of the provision and 
ongoing maintenance of vegetation of the property and to 
the following conditions: 

 
(i) Levels  
(ii) Drainage/SUDs  
(iii) Hard and Soft Landscaping  
(iv) External Materials  
(iv) Electric Vehicle Charging points,  
(v) Parking and cycle provision as shown,  
(vi) Refuse collection as shown,  
(vii) Parking management plan,  
(ix) Construction Environmental Management Plan (hours 

of construction/ dust suppression, wheel cleaning etc),  
(x) Low Nox Boilers,  
(xi) Ground investigation and mitigation measures,  
(xii) Noise Mitigation measures as per the 

recommendations of the submitted report,  
(xiii) CCTV,  
(xiv) External Lighting,  
(xv) Apprentices.  

 
109/21 Planning Application DC/21/66056 – Proposed first floor rear 

extension and conversion of flat at first floor to 2 No. 1 
bedroom flats and conversion of second floor with dormer 
windows to front and rear to create 1 No. 1 bed flat.  130 & 132 
Sandon Road Smethwick B66 4AB 

 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy reported that there was no additional information for 
members to consider. 
 
There were no objections received for the application.  
 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy advised that the application was before the 
Committee as objections had been raised by neighbours on 
grounds of increased pressure on an inadequate sewerage 
system, limited space for waste disposal/rubbish accumulation 

Page 13



issues, no parking provided.  The Service Manager – Development 
Planning and Building Consultancy explained that these matters 
would be managed in the same way as with the existing flat and 
other nearby flats.  Bin storage was provided to the side of the 
building and this side alley would also provide access to all three 
flats.  No objections had been raised by the Highways department. 
 
The Committee was minded to approve the application, subject to 
the conditions recommended by the Director – Regeneration and 
Growth. 

 
Resolved that Planning Application DC/21/66056 Proposed 
first floor rear extension and conversion of flat at first floor to 
2 No. 1 bedroom flats and conversion of second floor with 
dormer windows to front and rear to create 1 No. 1 bed flat.  
130 & 132 Sandon Road Smethwick B66 4AB, is granted 
planning permission subject to the external materials 
matching the existing property. 

 
Councillor Kaur left the meeting after this item and did not return to 
the meeting. 

 
110/21 Planning Application DC/21/66097 – Proposed change of use 

of residential accommodation at ground floor to self-
contained flat, and a 7-bed HMO on first and second floors, 
with associated car parking (amendment to refused 
application DC/19/63440).  10 - 12 Park Hill Wednesbury WS10 
0PL 

 
Councillor Chapman withdrew from the Committee for the duration 
of this item and sat with members of the public to speak on their 
behalf in objection of this application. 
 
The Chair indicated that he was exercising his discretion and 
increasing the length of time for both applicant and objectors to 
speak. 
 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy reported that a further report from the objectors had 
been tabled, along with an updated addendum to the objectors’ 
report. 
 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy read a statement from Councillor Hackett in support of 
the Wednesbury’s Action Group report to refuse the planning 

Page 14



application.  Councillor Hackett also requested that members of the 
Committee held a site visit. 

 
Objectors were present and addressed the Committee with the 
following points:- 
• Over 500 local residents had voiced concerns and were angry 

that this application was being considered for a second time. 
• Objectors felt that there had not been a substantial change to the 

application since it had been refused in June 2020 and their 
objections remained the same.  This included restriction of light 
for the surrounding properties, limited parking and safeguarding 
local children.  

• Drug dealing and antisocial behaviour was also prevalent in the 
area and could be exacerbated by an HMO close by. 

• The objectors felt that having an HMO in the area would 
undermine community stability, pride and ownership and could 
lead to the neighbourhood becoming a transient area. 

Page 15



 
• Councillor Chapman, Ward Member for Friar Park stated that 

Woden Road East and Derby Road were in an area that 
residents aspired to live in and would be inappropriate to have 
an HMO in the area. 

• HMOs could lead to increased antisocial behaviour and could be 
associated with human trafficking, prostitution and drug dealing. 

• Several residents had been in touch with Councillor Chapman to 
highlight that HMO residents would be able to see into their 
windows. 

• The application should be refused as the main concerns of 
residents and the fundamental problem of parking and there was 
an added danger for those reversing off the car park onto the 
road. 

 
The applicant’s agent was present and addressed the Committee 
with the following points:- 
• The application had been previously refused on grounds that 

parking was not sufficient.  An independent review had since 
been undertaken which found that there was sufficient on street 
parking for 8 spaces i.e. one per bedroom. 

• The Council’s Highways department had also undertaken a 
parking survey and reached the same conclusion with regards to 
on street parking capacity. 

• No objections had been raised by technical consultees, however 
the agent was aware of the concerns raised by residents. 

 
The Principal Officer for Development – Highways explained that on 
average 11 spaces were available for residents to park, however 
during the busiest period between 5pm – 5:30pm, only 6 car parking 
spaces were available.  There were over 50 on street car parking 
spaces available in the surrounding area.  

 
In response to members’ questions of the applicants and the officers 
present, the Committee noted the following:- 
• Parking standards were made against the number of bedrooms 

rather than the number of people in those bedrooms.  Members 
suggested that there could be up to 15 adults in the property as 
several bedrooms were double occupancy and that the parking 
should reflect this. 

• Members felt that the space available for HMO residents on the 
second floor of the property was inadequate as the bathroom 
would be shared between 3 bedrooms and there was no 
communal lounge area. 

Page 16



• Officers commented that the nature of HMOs were their shared 
facilities. 

• HMOs also needed licensing to control the way the property was 
managed. 

• The plans presented were acceptable within the constraints of 
the Housing Act; 1 Bathroom and 1 Kitchen per 5 residents. 

• The previous application was refused on 11 June 2020. 
• The applicant’s agent stated that there was a private community 

space in the external yard at the rear of the property.  The 
objectors felt that the plans did not truly reflect the real property. 

• Smoking outside of the building could cause public nuisance. 
• Fear of crime was a material condition, but evidence would need 

to be provided.  Comments from WMP were mixed. 
• Fire escapes and exits would be dealt with by building control.  

Planning policy could not duplicate the controls that sat 
elsewhere.  

• The refusal of the previous application could not be used as a 
material consideration on its own, refusal would need to be for a 
planning reason. 

• The Council had previously lost appeals on HMOs and they were 
very costly for the Council, so there needed to be a 
substantiated reason for refusal. 

 
Councillor Fenton proposed a motion to refuse the application on 
the grounds that sufficient demonstration of off-street parking 
availability had not been provided, given the potential for some 
rooms to be 2 person and concerns over intensification and the 
potential for increased noise and disturbance.  The motion was 
seconded by Councillor Webb. 
 
The Committee was minded to refuse the application. 

 
Resolved that Planning Application DC/21/66097 Proposed 
change of use of residential accommodation at ground floor 
to self-contained flat, and a 7-bed HMO on first and second 
floors, with associated car parking (amendment to refused 
application DC/19/63440).  10 - 12 Park Hill Wednesbury 
WS10 0P, is refused planning permission on the following 
grounds: 
(i) Sufficient demonstration of off street parking availability 

had not been provided, given the potential for some 
rooms to be 2 person. 

(ii) Concerns over intensification and the potential for 
increased noise and disturbance. 

 

Page 17



111/21 Planning Application DC/21/66182 – Proposed pair of semi-
detached properties to form two, 10 bed HMOs with 
associated car parking, landscaping and storage facilities.  
Land Adjacent To 241 Horseley Heath Tipton 

 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy reported that a letter had been received from Shaun 
Bailey MP on the loss of privacy. 
 
The applicant’s agent was present and addressed the Committee 
with the following points:- 
• The applicant stated that they understood the negativity around 

HMOs. 
• The applicant had lived in the area for 28 years and had an HMO 

less than a minute’s walk away from his home and had not had 
any issues in the past. 

• The applicant was planning to work with a charity who would use 
the building. 

 
An objector was present and addressed the Committee with the 
following points:- 
• The planning committee had previously rejected an application 

for 4 two bed properties on the site. 
• There was not enough parking to accommodate for 8 bedrooms. 
• The site could not accommodate 20 bedrooms. 
• There were likely to be issues with waste collections, drainage or 

anti-social behaviour. 
• It undermined the residents of the Denby Estate. 
• The land could be used better and be revaluated to include 

parking. 
• HMOs only benefited those looking to make a profit and would 

put a strain on public services. 
 

The Principal Officer for Development – Highways explained that 
there were 10 off street parking spaces, access had been moved to 
the far left of the site to reduce conflict with the existing crossing and 
the area was protected by a double red line.  There were frequent 
bus services and a railway station close by, additionally a Metro 
stop was planned for the area. 
 
In response to members’ questions of the applicants and the officers 
present, the Committee noted the following:- 
• Committee members sought clarity on the charitable 

organisation using the site.  The Service Manager – 

Page 18



Development Planning and Building Consultancy stated there 
was a degree of sensitivity to the site. 

• The applicant highlighted that HMOs are used by many groups 
of people and weren’t always a site a criminal activity. 

• Planning officers were happy to support the scheme due to the 
nature of the use of the building. 

• The property would not house residents who required 
supervision. 

• A temporary traffic plan was in place to ensure that parking near 
the site would be compliant. 

• The Council could not control who occupied the building 
however, if approved and the nature of use changed in future, it 
would require a new application 

 
Councillor O Jones and Councillor Dhallu left the room and did not 
vote on the item. 
 
The Committee was minded to approve the application, subject to 
the conditions recommended by the Director – Regeneration and 
Growth. 

 
Resolved that Planning Application DC/21/66182 - 
Proposed pair of semi-detached properties to form two, 10 
bed HMOs with associated car parking, landscaping and 
storage facilities. Land Adjacent To 241 Horseley Heath 
Tipton is granted planning permission subject to the 
following conditions: 
(i) Details of a sustainable drainage system (SuDS); 
(ii) Parking laid out (to include SuDS) and retained; 
(iii) New footway crossover; 
(iv) Details of refuse strategy, implemented and retention; 
(iv) Electric vehicle charge point provided; 
(v) Low NOx boilers within the development; 
(vi) Method of working statement during construction and 

control of hours of working and deliveries; 
(vii) Noise report to assess appropriate mitigation from 

traffic and commercial plant/equipment; 
(ix) Ground investigation and remediation measures; 
(x) Secure cycle storage implemented and retained; and 
(xi) Details of security measures. 

 
112/21 Planning Application DC/21/66185 – Proposed change of use 

from dwelling to 8 No. bedroom HMO (house in multiple 
occupation) with two/single storey side and single storey rear 
extensions. 54 St James Road Oldbury B69 2DX 

Page 19



 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy reported that an additional condition had been added: 
(xii) existing drop kerb to be extended 

 
The applicant and applicant’s agent were present and addressed 
the Committee with the following points:- 
• The site would contribute to the local community and provide 

good quality housing for residents. 
• The property contributed to the Council’s housing ambitions 

and would accommodate 8 bedrooms with an ensuite, would 
be furnished to a good standard and would have car parking 
for its residents. 

• The tenant market for this property was professionals and 
skilled local people  

• The location had great transport links for both local workers 
and those who worked in Birmingham. 

• Genie Homes managed several homes across the Black 
Country and it would be unfair to assume that new tenants 
would contribute to antisocial behaviour. 

• The director had over 30 years property experience and there 
had been a gap in the market for well managed HMOs. 

• Every tenant would have their own bathroom and privacy. 
• Design was a key factor of the property and it would be 

marketed at a premium rent to get better quality tenants. 
• The average length of stay for tenants would be 12 to 18 

months to prevent the transient feel of usual HMOs 
• Tenants would be vetted and would be matched for best fit. 
• The property would be maintained and inspected monthly  
• Usually less than half of tenants required parking and the site 

had 4 off road parking spaces and cycle storage. 
 

Objectors were present and addressed the Committee with the 
following points:- 
• There had been difficulties between HMO residents and the 

local community previously. 
• Oldbury was among one of the top dangerous medium sized 

towns in the West Midlands and this would further create the 
potential for crime. 

• There was an HMO around the corner which had had frequent 
issues with the police. 

• Had officers taken into account the nearby Ambulance Hub and 
the disturbance it may cause? 

Page 20



• If the application was approved it would alter the character of 
the area.  Residents in the area had been there a long time and 
felt the proposals for an HMO were unacceptable for the area. 

• Parking was limited in the area. 
 

The Committee was minded to defer determination of the 
application to undertake a site visit. 

 
Resolved that that determination of Planning Application 
DC//21/66185 Proposed change of use from dwelling to 8 
No. bedroom HMO (house in multiple occupation) with 
two/single storey side and single storey rear extensions.  54 
St James Road Oldbury B69 2DX, be deferred to allow a 
site visit to be undertaken. 

 
Councillor Webb was not present during the voting on this item. 

 
Councillor C S Padda left the meeting at 7:58pm  

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:00pm and reconvened at 8:11pm 

 
113/21 Planning Application DC/21/66199 – Retention of use of 

garage as dog grooming facility. 7 Lammermoor Avenue Great 
Barr Birmingham B43 6ET 

 
Councillor Allcock left the room whilst this item was considered. 

 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy reported that there was no additional information for 
members to consider, however the objector has provided photos 
and a summary for the Committee and the Applicant. 

 
The applicant was present and addressed the Committee with the 
following points:- 
• The dog grooming business only operated on three days a 

week. 
• Customers dropped off and picked up their dogs; they did not 

stay parked in the area for the duration of their appointment. 
• The photographs submitted by the objector included vehicles 

belonging to family members of the applicant. 
• The business had a customer base of 30-40, but these were 

seen on a 6-8 weekly rotation. 
• Any cleaning products used in the dog grooming were 

approved by DEFRA. 

Page 21



• The applicant did not sell puppies, but noted that she would 
be entitled to sell three litters per year. 

 
An objector was present and addressed the Committee with the 
following points:- 
• The application had only been submitted after a complaint 

was logged. 
• The business caused traffic issues, with parking taken up by 

customers. 
• The applicant had a website, Facebook page and advertised 

in other ways too. 
 

The Committee was minded to approve the application, subject to 
the conditions recommended by the Director – Regeneration and 
Growth. 

 
Resolved that Planning Application DC/21/66199 Retention 
of use of garage as dog grooming facility. 7 Lammermoor 
Avenue Great Barr Birmingham B43 6ET, is granted 
planning permission subject to the following conditions: 
(i) Opening hours; 
(ii) The use hereby approved shall be carried out in 

accordance with the submitted Management Plan 
(dated 8.11.2021); and 

(iii) Permission only benefits for applicant. 
 
114/21 Planning Application DC/21/66247 – Proposed change of use 

from dwelling to 7 No. bedroom HMO - house in multiple 
occupation (pursuant to planning permission DC/21/65962).  
160 Lightwoods Road Smethwick B67 5AZ 

 
The Chair indicated that he was exercising his discretion and 
increasing the length of time for both applicant and objectors to 
speak. 

 
The Service Manager – Development Planning and Building 
Consultancy reported that there was no additional information for 
members to consider. 

 
The applicant’s agent was present and addressed the Committee 
with the following points:- 
• The applicant has in-house management of its properties; most 

of their customers were young professionals. 
• The property is close to the local high street and had good 

public transport links. 

Page 22



• A thorough and detailed management plan for the residents at 
the property had been provided as part of the application. 

 
An objector was present and addressed the Committee with the 
following points:- 
• Parking on Lightwoods Road was under pressure from 

residents as well as workers and visitors on the high street. 
• The objector felt that the numbers of car parking spaces 

required for the proposal was an underestimation. 
• Bin storage solutions could create litter problems as well as be 

unsightly. 
• Pressure on the sewer network, particularly due to the number 

of bathrooms. 
• Increase in noise and the potential for exacerbating already 

existing ASB issues. 
 

Councillor Piper was also present and addressed the Committee 
with the following points:- 
• The property was originally a 3-bedroom property that had been 

increased to a 5-bedroom property. 
• The increase in car parking demand would negatively impact on 

the retail core offer in Bearwood through reducing availability 
for visitor parking. 

 
In response to members’ questions of the applicants and the 
officers present, the Committee noted the following:- 
• Properties in Lightwoods Road were narrower than the length 

of modern vehicles. 
• There were no stairs on the plans to the top floor.  Approval had 

only recently been given to the single-storey extension and 
plans had not been updated. 

 
The Committee was minded to refuse the application due to the 
impact on parking and the noise and disturbance through 
intensification of use. 

 
Resolved that Planning Application DC/21/66247 Proposed 
change of use from dwelling to 7 No. bedroom HMO - house 
in multiple occupation (pursuant to planning permission 
DC/21/65962). 160 Lightwoods Road Smethwick B67 5AZ, 
is refused planning permission on the following grounds: 
(i) Impact on parking 
(ii) Noise, disturbance from comings and goings and 

impact on adjoining properties through intensification of 
use 

Page 23



 
115/21 Applications Determined Under Delegated Powers 
 

The Committee noted the planning applications determined by the 
Director - Regeneration and Growth under powers delegated to 
him as set out in the Council’s Constitution. 

 
116/21 Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate 
 

The Committee noted that the Planning Inspectorate had made the 
following decisions in relation to appeals against refusal of 
planning permission:- 

   
Application Ref 
No.  

Site Address  Inspectorate 
Decision  

DC/20/64780  91 Lewisham 
Road  
Smethwick  
B66 2DD  

Dismissed  

 
 
 

Meeting ended at 9.05 pm 
 
Contact:  democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk 
 

Page 24

mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

19 January 2022 

 

Application Reference DC/21/65664 

Application Received 14 May 2021 

Application Description Proposed two storey side/rear and single 

storey rear extensions, front bay window, 

raising of roof height, loft conversion with 2 No. 

side loft dormer windows. 

Application Address 8 Aldridge Close 

Oldbury 

B68 9NY 

Applicant Mr & Mrs Bali Singh 

Ward Bristnall 

Contact Officer Mr Andrew Dean 

andrew_dean@sandwell.gov.uk  

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to: 

 

(i) External Materials.  

(ii) The rear facing window of the spa room shall be obscurely glazed 

and retained as such.  

(iii) Proposed glazing in the south facing dormer window shall remain 

obscurely glazed and non-opening unless the parts of the window 

which can be opened are more than 1.7 metres above the floor of 

the room in which the window is installed.  

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4

mailto:andrew_dean@sandwell.gov.uk


 

(iv) No additional glazing shall be inserted into the north and south 

facing dormer windows.  

(v) Construction management plan.  

 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal would cause no significant harm to the amenity of the 

occupiers of adjacent properties and have no appreciable impact on the 

visual amenity of the surrounding area or to the safety and convenience 

of users of the highway.  

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?   

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods – The design of 

the proposal is acceptable in respect of national and local 

planning policy.  

4 Context  

 

4.1 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee as seven 

material planning objections to the proposal have been received.  

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

 8 Aldridge Close, Oldbury 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is unallocated within the development plan.  

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:- 

 

Government Policy (NPPF) 

Overlooking/loss of privacy 

Loss of light and/or outlook 

Page 26

https://www.google.com/maps/place/8+Aldridge+Cl,+Oldbury+B68+9NY/@52.4877456,-1.994795,71m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x487097db4d50d767:0x4fda450232c41064!8m2!3d52.4877295!4d-1.9946153


 

Design, appearance and materials 

Parking 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application relates to a detached residential bungalow located at the 

southern end of Aldridge Close, Oldbury. The application property 

consists of a two-bedroom bungalow with a double detached garage to 

the side.  

 

6.2 The character of the surrounding area is residential in nature with 

Aldridge Close predominantly consisting of bungalows which vary in 

design as well as a detached two storey property. Aldridge Close is 

attached to a wider housing estate which contains a mixture of two 

storey dwellings and bungalows.  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 The property has been subject to one recent planning application for a 

single storey rear extension.  

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

  

DC/20/64072 Proposed single storey 

rear extension. 

Grant Permission with 

external materials. 

24.04.2020 

 
 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant is applying to increase the roof height of the original 

dwelling to facilitate a loft conversion, to erect a two-storey side/rear 

extension, a single storey rear extension, a front bay window and 2 No. 

side loft dormer windows. 

 

8.2 An amended plan has been received to reduce the scale of the proposed 

side extension and to improve its design in relation to the existing 

Page 27



 

dwelling. Further amendments include a 1 metre set back of the 

proposed side extension from the side elevation of No. 6 Aldridge Close 

and to remove a proposed dormer window which was highly visible in 

the street scene. 

 

8.3 The amended proposed dimensions are as follows; 

 

i) The eaves of the original dwelling would be increased from 2.5 

metres to 3 metres with the overall height increasing from 4.7 

metres to 6.5 metres. A side dormer window measuring 7 metres 

(L) by 1.7 metres (H) and 1.9 metres (D) would be added to the 

southern roof slope. This alteration would facilitate a loft 

conversion containing two bedrooms and a single bathroom.  

ii) The single storey rear extension would measure 2.5 metres (L) by 

5.6 metres (W) with an overall height of 2.8 metres. The inclusion 

of a roof lantern would increase this height to 3.3 metres.  

iii) The proposed single and two storey side extension would measure 

at the ground floor a maximum of 7 metres (W) at the front 

increasing to 9.8 metres at the rear by 11.4 metres (L) with an 

overall height of 6.5 metres (3 metres to the eaves).  The width of 

the first floor (which would be contained within the roof space) 

would measure 6 metres. A dormer window measuring 8.7 metres 

(L) by 1.7 metres (H) and 1.9 metres (D) would be added to the 

northern elevation of the two storey side extension. This extension 

would facilitate a garage, entrance hall and utility room on the 

ground floor with one bedroom and a spa room being provided on 

the first floor.  

iv) As a result of the proposed internal alterations to the existing 

property as well as the proposed extensions, the dwelling would be 

a four-bedroom property.  

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter, with 

seven letters of objection being received. Following receipt of amended 

Page 28



 

plans, the application was re-publicised with a further four objections 

being received from previous respondents.  

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) The proposal would cause a loss of privacy to adjacent dwellings.  

ii) The proposal would cause a loss of light to adjacent dwellings and 

would block light to two side facing window within the side 

elevation of No. 6 Aldridge Close which overlook the application 

property.   

iii) The proposed extension and alterations are out of character with 

surrounding properties and would tower above existing dwellings.  

iv) The proposal would result in the loss of a single storey bungalow.  

v) Aldridge Close has no pavement, changing the property to a family 

home would increase traffic, parking demand and potentially effect 

pedestrian safety. Furthermore, the extension would be 

constructed on the existing driveway removing car parking spaces 

whilst the amended plan shows an increase in the number of 

bedrooms proposed from 3 to 4. This will increase car parking 

demand. 

vi) Concerns regarding the proximity and scale of the proposed 

extensions to the boundary with No 6 Aldridge Close causing loss 

of light to the rear garden.  

vii) The proposed juliet balcony would cause a loss of privacy. 

viii) Concerns the property would be rented as House in Multiple 

Occupation and would not be used by one family due to the 

number of bedrooms with en-suite facilities. This would result in 

anti-social behaviour and neighbour disputes.  

 

Immaterial objections have been raised regarding noise and disturbance 

during the construction period from vehicles and dust, the bungalow 

should be retained for older people and loss of property value.  

 

 

Page 29



 

9.3 Responses to objections 

 

I respond to the objector’s comments in turn: 

 

(i) See material considerations section 13.2.  

(ii) See material considerations section 13.3. 

(iii) See material considerations section 13.4. 

(iv) The objector is correct in that that the increase in roof height would 

provide additional living space in the loft area. However, the 

character of the property would remain as a dormer bungalow and 

not as a traditional two storey property with a pitched roof above. I 

therefore do not consider this to be so significant to warrant refusal 

of this application.  

(v) The property has sufficient space on the remaining driveway to 

accommodate the two required off street car parking spaces for a 

four-bedroom dwelling. Furthermore, an additional space could be 

provided within the proposed garage.   

(vi) The amended proposal has set the extension off the boundary with 

6 Aldridge Close by 1 metre. The massing of the proposal has also 

been reduced by the first floor element (which is within the roof 

space) also being reduced in width and angled away from the 

boundary with No. 6. Furthermore, the proposal would not extend 

beyond the former garage of No. 6.  

(vii) The juliet balcony has been removed from the scheme.  

(viii) This application is for the extension/alteration of an existing 

residential dwelling and is being determined as such. All en-suites 

have been removed from the proposal with one bathroom being 

provided on the ground and first floors.  

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

There are no statutory consultation responses to report for this 

application. 

 

 

 

Page 30



 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

ENV3: Design Quality    

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

 

12.2 As there are no concerns raised over the impact of the amended 

proposal on residential amenity, or in respect to its design and 

appearance, the development is considered to be compliant with policies 

ENV3 and SAD EOS9. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2  Overlooking/loss of privacy 

 

When taking into consideration the proposed north facing dormer 

window would contain no windows and the south facing dormer window 

would contain an obscurely glazed bathroom window only, I am satisfied 

no loss of privacy would occur to either 6 Aldridge Close or 2B Reservoir 

Road. To ensure this remains, a condition has been included in the 

recommendation for no additional windows to be inserted into either the 

north or south facing proposed dormer windows and for the proposed 

bathroom window to be obscurely glazed and non-opening up to a height 

of 1.7 metres above the internal floor level.  In terms of impact to the 

properties at the rear, to the nearest property there is a separation 

Page 31



 

distance of 21.5 metres from the first-floor rear facing window. This 

exceeds the Council’s Adopted Guidance for separation distances which 

is 21 metres for rear to rear windowed elevations.  However, although 

the rear boundary does contain some significant mature planting, due to 

the proposed first floor window being only 4.2 metres from the boundary, 

a condition for the spa room window to be obscurely glazed and retained 

as such has been included within the recommendation.  

 

13.3 Loss of light and/or outlook 

 

The amended proposal has been set off the boundary with No 6 Aldridge 

Close by 1 metre as not be constructed directly adjacent to two side 

facing windows inserted into a single storey side extension. A review of 

the planning history shows these windows serve a hall and bathroom 

(non-habitable rooms). The remainder of this elevation is made up from 

the side extension and a converted garage with pitched roof. Impact of 

the proposal is further lessened by the fact the proposed first floor (which 

is within the roof space of the extension) being set back 1 metre from the 

side elevation of the extension at the front and angled away from No.6 

due to it following the building line of the application property. This 

results in a predominantly single storey extension being constructed 1 

metre from the boundary with No 6. In terms of 2B Reservoir Road, no 

breach of the 45-degree code line would occur from the garden facing 

lounge window. This property does have a north facing bedroom window 

in a small gable at the rear which faces onto the applicant’s boundary as 

well as a small secondary window to the lounge. The applicant has 

existing mature planting on this boundary with only a small section of the 

application properties roof visible from the bedroom. The application 

property is set off this boundary by 1 metre with the pitched roof sloping 

away from the boundary. The proposed dormer window has been set 

back 2.5 metres from the front elevation of the property and would not be 

directly in front of this bedroom window. Taking the above into 

consideration, I do not consider a significant loss of light or outlook 

would occur as a result of the proposal to neighbouring properties.   

Page 32



 

13.4 Design, appearance and materials 

 

Following receipt of the amended plans to reduce the massing of the 

proposed two storey side extension and its design, I am satisfied the 

impact on the street scene has been reduced with the design now 

mirroring the gable design of the original dwelling. The two-storey side 

extension is set back from the front elevation of the existing dwelling by 

6.8 metres further reducing its impact in the street scene with the 

proposed dormer windows also being set back from the front elevations. 

Although bedrooms would be created on the first floor, these have been 

designed to be incorporated in the roof space creating a dormer 

bungalow design property. In terms of the increase in height of the 

original dwelling, the eastern side of Aldridge Close consists of a two-

storey detached dwelling, a pair of semi-detached bungalows with 

different overall heights and the application property which sits at the far 

end of the cul-de-sac. The adjacent pair of semi-detached bungalows 

are a different design to the application property with No 6 having an 

overall height of 5.3 metres.  Similar design bungalows to the application 

can be found on the western side of Aldridge Close, however, it is noted 

that the application property has slight differences to the other 

bungalows in the cul-de-sac in that it has no front porch, has different 

colour fascia boards, has a detached double garage and does not form 

part of a run of similar designed properties. Taking into consideration the 

above, coupled by the fact the property is detached in nature, within a 

corner location at the end of the cul-de-sac, the eastern side of Aldridge 

Close contains a mixture of property types and designs and the overall 

height would only measure 1.2 metres above the height of the adjacent 

bungalow on Aldridge Close. I do not consider the increase in roof height 

to be so significant or harmful to warrant refusal of this application.  

 

An external materials condition has been included within the 

recommendation to ensure the proposed materials would match the 

existing property and the proposed dormer windows are tiled.  

 

 

 

Page 33



 

13.5 Parking 

 

The applicant has sufficient space on the existing driveway to park the 

required two vehicles for a four-bedroom property. An additional space 

can also be provided within the proposed garage.  

14 Alternative Options 

 

14.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  However, it is considered that this proposal would 

comply with relevant planning policies and there are no material 

considerations to warrant refusal.  

15 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None. 
 

Social Value None. 

 

16. Appendices 

 

Site Plan  

Context Plan 

BV/409/0G 

 

 

 

Page 34



Legend

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

OS Licence NoScale

© Crow n copyright and database rights 2019
   Ordnance Survey Licence No 100023119

Not Set

Not Set

Not Set

04 January 2022

1:1114

DC/21/65664

8 Aldridge Close, Oldbury

Page 35



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 36



St

LIVING

34m²

Up

4311

UTILITY

ENTRANCE

HALL

BEDROOM

7321

4
6
7
9

1
8
1
2

2506

3416

5
1
0
7

819

9
8
5

2512

6
1
1
4

1
4
3
0

3422

2
8
8
6

10752

GARAGE

STORE

1
2
0
0

2
4

0
0

+

2
0

0
0

+

1
5

0
0

+

1
2

0
0

+

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

1
5

0
0

+

2
0

0
0

+

2
4

0
0

+

2
4

0
0

+

2
0

0
0

+

1
5

0
0

+

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 1

20m²

Down

2
1
3
7

3819

1
5

0
0

+

2
0

0
0

+

2
4

0
0

+

400

2203

6253

2
4

0
0

+

2
0

0
0

+

5413

4
6
5
5

2829

3
7
9
1

4
5
2
7

Spa Room

Proposed First Floor

Proposed Ground Floor
Proposed Roof

GARAGE

GROUND FLOOR

5

4

3

SCALE

2

1

0m

Side Elevation

GROUPSfbPART_NUMBERDESCRIPTIONMANUFACTURERQUANTITYWIDTHHEIGHTAREA

Rear Elevation

Front Elevation

Side Elevation

5

4

3

SCALE

2

1

0m

8

2a

2b

El
Sub Sta

S
t

L
I
V

I
N

G

3
4
m

²

U

p

43
11

U

T
I
L
I
T

Y

E

N

T
R

A

N

C

E

H

A

L
L

B

E

D

R

O

O

M

73
21

4679

1812

25
0634
16

5107

81
9 985

25
12

6114

1430

34
22

2886

107
52

G

A

R

A

G

E

5

4

3

SCALE

2

1

0m

N

RESE
RVOI

R Rd

ALDRIDGE 

CLOSE

5

4

3

SCALE

2

1

0m

GROUPSfbPART_NUMBERDESCRIPTIONMANUFACTURERQUANTITYWIDTHHEIGHTAREA

Proposed Rear Elevation

Proposed Side Elevation

GROUP SfbPART_NUMBER DESCRIPTION MANUFACTURER QUANTITY WIDTH HEIGHT AREA

GROUP Sfb PART_NUMBER DESCRIPTION MANUFACTURER QUANTITY WIDTH HEIGHT AREA

Proposed Side Elevation

GROUPSfbPART_NUMBERDESCRIPTIONMANUFACTURERQUANTITYWIDTHHEIGHTAREA

Proposed Rear Elevation

Proposed Front Elevation

GROUPSfbPART_NUMBERDESCRIPTIONMANUFACTURERQUANTITYWIDTHHEIGHTAREA

Proposed Rear Elevation

GROUPSfbPART_NUMBERDESCRIPTIONMANUFACTURERQUANTITYWIDTHHEIGHTAREA

Proposed Rear Elevation

11
5

Londo
nderr

y

Bapti
st Ch

urch

8

193.5m

7

ALDRIDGE CLOSE

1a

3

11

11
3a

191.7m

1

15

2a

2b

2

El

11
3

2

Sub Sta

N

0 5 10 15 20 25

RESE
RVOI

R Rd

Scale

Title

Drawing No.

38 Old Walsall Road,

Great Barr,

Birmingham, B42 1NP

Date

Tel: 0121 358 2233

Fax: 0121 357 7492

Email: contact@integratedesigns.co.uk

Project

rev. date initialdescription

BV/409/0G

1:100/1:200/1:1250 @ A1

Checked

Two storey side/rear and single storey rear 

8 Aldridge Close

Oldbury

West Midlands

1:200 

B68 9NY

A 12-04-21 BVAmendments

1:1250

B 26-04-21 BVAmendments

C 07-05-21 BVAmendments

D 07-05-21 BVAmendments

E 08-05-21 BVAmendments

F 03-06-21 BVAmendments

extensions, front bay window, raising roof 

height, loft conversion with 2 No. side loft 

dormer windows

G 25-10-21 BVAmendments

PRELIMINARY

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

19 January 2022 

 

Application Reference DC/21/66106 

Application Received 10 September 2021 

Application Description Proposed industrial unit (Use Class E(g)(iii) 

Industrial processes) with ancillary offices and 

associated parking. 

Application Address Land At 

Summerton Road 

Oldbury 

Applicant J S Convenience (Holdings) Limited 

Ward Oldbury 

Contact Officer Mr Andrew Dean 

andrew_dean@sandwell.gov.uk  

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 Subject additional comments being received from the Council’s 

Conservation Officer, that planning permission is granted subject to the 

approval of Full Council as the development is a departure from the 

development plan being allocated for housing, and conditions 

concerning: - 

 

(i) External Materials.  

(ii) Vehicle parking and manoeuvring areas to be implemented and 

retained.  

(iii) Drainage including (SuDS). 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5

mailto:andrew_dean@sandwell.gov.uk


 

(iv) Contaminated Land. 

(v) Finished floor levels.  

(vi) Use restriction.  

(vii) Hard and soft landscaping scheme to include additional tree 

planting to canal frontage.  

(viii) Boundary treatments. 

(ix) External lighting scheme to include details of any light spillage over 

the canal corridor.  

(x) Cycle Storage details and implementation.  

(xi) Electric Vehicle Charging points.  

(xii) Construction management plan.  

  

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposed development is acceptable in its scale, design and 

appearance, and would not cause significant harm to the amenity of the 

occupiers of adjacent properties and would have no appreciable impact 

on the visual amenity of the surrounding area. 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

A strong and inclusive economy – opportunities for job 

creation. 

4 Context  

 

4.1 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee because 

the application is a departure from the development plan.  

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

Land at Summerton Road, Oldbury 

 

 

 

Page 40

https://www.google.com/maps/@52.5088392,-2.0308461,195m/data=!3m1!1e3


 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is allocated for housing in the development plan.  

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government Policy (NPPF) 

Proposals in the Development Plan and Planning history (including 

appeal decisions) 

Overlooking/loss of privacy 

Loss of light and/or outlook 

Design, appearance and materials 

Access, highway safety, parking and servicing 

Noise and disturbance from the scheme  

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site relates to a long-term vacant piece of land located 

on the eastern side of Summerton Road, Oldbury. The property is bound 

by a canal to the north and industrial premises to the east and south.  

The character of the surrounding area is mixed use in nature with 

Summerton Road containing a mixture of residential dwellings and 

commercial/industrial premises.  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 The site has been subject to a recent planning application seeking 

outline approval for residential. This application was refused by the Local 

Planning Authority (LPA) for the following reasons; - 

 

i) The proposal is contrary to the National Planning Policy 

Framework, the Black Country Core Strategy policies DEL2, 

HOU1, ENV3 and ENV4 as well as the Council's Site Allocations 

and Delivery Development Plan Document polices HOU1, EMP4, 

and EOS9 in that the proposal would create an unsatisfactory 

Page 41



 

living environment adjacent to industrial premises where there is a 

potential for noise and general disturbances and where the 

proposed development might compromise a future comprehensive 

redevelopment of the area. 

ii) The development proposed is in close proximity to a major gas 

pipe line and in the interest of public safety The Health and Safety 

Executive advises against the granting of Planning Permission. 

 

The decision to refuse the application by the LPA was appealed to the 

Planning Inspectorate where it was dismissed for the same reasons 

highlighting proposals resulting in the loss of employment land should 

demonstrate a comprehensive approach, making the best use of 

available land and infrastructure and not prejudicing existing and 

neighbouring uses.  

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

DC/17/60736 Proposed outline 

application for residential 

development (all matters 

reserved). 

Application Refused.  

02.10.2017 

Dismissed at appeal 

17.08.2018  

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant is applying to erect a detached industrial building 

measuring 15.5 metres (W) by 48.8 metres (L) with an overall height of 

7.1 metres. The building would consist of a 630m2 work space and with 

an ancillary office, reception and staff facilities. The applicant has agreed 

the use of the building would be for Class E(g)(iii) Industrial processes. 

This is effectively light industrial uses suitable adjacent to residential 

areas.  
 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter, with 

one letter of objection being received from a neighbouring property.  

Page 42



 

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) The proposal is contrary to the land allocation within the 

development plan and would prevent the objectors site coming 

forward for housing. To grant permission for the proposed 

development would be contrary to the decision of the Council 

under application reference DC/17/60736.   

ii) The proposal overlooks the objectors land.  

 

Immaterial objections have been raised regarding loss of land value, loss 

of investment plans and loss of view.  

 

9.3 Responses to objections 

 

I respond to the objector’s comments in turn: 

 

(i) It is noted that the site is allocated for housing within the Site 

Allocations and Delivery Development Plan Document. The 

proposal submitted under application DC/17/60736 was an outline 

application for residential development which was assessed on its 

own individual merits. The lpa refused the application and an 

appeal was dismissed by the Planning Inspectorate. The reasons 

for refusal of DC/17/60736 related to an unsatisfactory living 

environment for residents due to potential noise and disturbance 

from adjacent industrial premises, the proposed development 

might compromise a future comprehensive redevelopment of the 

area and the proximity of the development to a major gas pipeline. 

The planning inspector highlighted that proposals resulting in the 

loss of employment land should demonstrate a comprehensive 

approach, making the best use of available land and infrastructure 

and not prejudicing existing and neighbouring uses. As the 

proposed residential development was an isolated scheme, the 

appeal was dismissed. The current proposal differs from the 

Page 43



 

refused scheme in that it is for an employment use which is 

surrounded by existing employment uses. Planning Policy have 

reviewed the application and raised no objections to the 

application stating the site could not come forward on its own as a 

residential development. The Council would be looking for the 

comprehensive development of the wider allocation. Under BCCS 

DEL2 Policy it is considered that the proposed development would 

not restrict the wider development of the residential allocation in 

the future.  

(ii) No windows would directly be overlooking the objectors land.  

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Planning and Transportation Policy 

 

No objections. The site of the proposed development forms part of a larger 

area that is allocated for residential development on the SAD Policies Map 

therefore SAD Policy H1 would be applicable. Guidance set out under this 

policy states these sites are suitable for 10 dwellings or more and that 

other uses would not be acceptable. However, the site in question is a 

section of the wider allocation and could not be developed in isolation for 

residential development, as adjacent to the site are located existing 

employment uses. The Council would be looking for the comprehensive 

development of the wider residential allocation. Under BCCS DEL2 Policy 

it is considered that the proposed development would not restrict the wider 

development of the residential allocation in the future. 

 

Transportation Policy have raised no objections to the application 

subject to a condition for details of cycle storage to be submitted, 

approved and implemented.  

 

10.2 Highways 

 

 No objections subject to the offices being ancillary only.  

 

 

Page 44



 

10.3 Public Health (Air Quality)  

 

 No objection subject to conditions for electric vehicle charging points and 

a construction management plan.  

 

10.4 Public Health (Contaminated Land)  

 

 No objection subject to the standard contaminated land condition.  

 

10.5 Public Heath (Air Pollution and Noise) 

 

 No objection subject to the unit being restricted to Class E (g)(iii) 

Industrial processes (which can be carried out in any residential 

area without causing detriment to the amenity of the area). This 

condition was requested because the proposed B2 and B8 uses could 

generate significant noise and increased HGV movements to the existing 

residential properties on Summerton Road and George Wood Avenue.  

 

10.6 West Midlands Police 

 

 No objection.  

 

10.7 Canal and River Trust 

 

 Concerns were raised regaridng the removal of self-setting trees near to 

the boundary of the canal and the proximity of car parking spaces to the 

boundary. To address this concern a soft landscaping condition to 

include additional tree planting to the canal boundary has been included 

within the recommendation as well as further condition for an external 

lighting scheme. The trust has indicated the site previously consisted of 

two canal basins and heritage remains may exist below the site. A 

recommendation for a desk top archaeological assessment has been 

made. Further advice on this matter has been sought from the Council’s 

Conservation Officer, an update will be provided to the committee 

members verbally at the meeting.  

 

Page 45



 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the Council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

DEL2: Managing the Balance between Employment Land and Housing.  

ENV3: Design Quality    

ENV5: Flood Risk, Sustainable Drainage System and Urban Heat Island 

Effect  

ENV4: Canals 

ENV8: Air Quality  

SAD H1: Housing Allocation 

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

SAD EOS10: Design Quality & Environmental Standards.  

 

12.2 The site of the proposed development forms part of a larger area that is 

allocated for residential development on the SAD Policies Map, therefore 

SAD Policy H1 would be applicable. Guidance set out under this policy 

states these sites are suitable for 10 dwellings or more and that other 

uses would not be acceptable. However, the site in question could not 

be developed in isolation for residential development, as adjacent to the 

site are located existing employment uses. The Council would be looking 

for the comprehensive development of the wider residential allocation. 

Under BCCS DEL2 Policy it is considered that the proposed 

development would not restrict the wider development of the residential 

allocation in the future. 

 

12.3 The proposal raises no significant concerns in respect of design or 

appearance. Conditions for electric vehicle charging points and 

additional landscaping to the canal boundary have been included within 

Page 46



 

the recommendation. The proposal is therefore compliant with ENV3, 

SAD ESO9 and SAD EOS10. 

 

12.4 ENV5 seeks the incorporation of sustainable drainage systems to assist 

with reducing the impact of flooding and surface run-off. A condition for a 

drainage scheme to include SUDs has been included within the 

recommendation.  

 

12.5  ENV4 states that development which is likely to affect the canal must 

protect and enhance its visual amenity and protect and enhance its 

nature conservation value. To enhance and protect the canal conditions 

for soft landscaping to include the planting of additional trees to the 

canal boundary as well as an external lighting scheme to limit light spill 

onto the canal corridor have been included within the recommendation.   

 

12.6 A condition to ensure that 10% of the car parking spaces proposed have 

an electric vehicle charging point meets the mitigation measures set out 

within the Black Country Air Quality SPD and accords with Policy ENV8. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2  Proposals in the Development Plan and Planning history (including 

appeal decisions) 

 

It is noted that the site is allocated for housing within the Site Allocations 

and Delivery Development Plan Document. The proposal submitted 

under application DC/17/60736 was an outline application for residential 

development which was assessed on its own individual merits. The LPA 

refused the application and an appeal was dismissed by the Planning 

Inspectorate. The reasons for refusal of DC/17/60736 related to an 

unsatisfactory living environment for residents due to potential noise and 

disturbance from adjacent industrial premises, the proposed 

Page 47



 

development might compromise a future comprehensive redevelopment 

of the area and the proximity of the development to a major gas pipeline. 

The planning inspector highlighted that proposals resulting in the loss of 

employment land should demonstrate a comprehensive approach, 

making the best use of available land and infrastructure and not 

prejudicing existing and neighbouring uses. As the proposed residential 

development was an isolated scheme, the appeal was dismissed. The 

current proposal differs from the refused scheme in that it is for an 

employment use which is surrounded by existing employment uses. 

Planning Policy have reviewed the application and raised no objections 

to the application stating the site could not come forward on its own as a 

residential development. The Council would be looking for the 

comprehensive development of the wider allocation. Under BCCS DEL2 

Policy it is considered that the proposed development would not restrict 

the wider development of the residential allocation in the future. 

 

13.3 Overlooking/loss of privacy 

 

As no residential properties are adjacent to the site, no loss of residential 

amenity would occur. No windows are present on the elevation facing 

the adjacent employment unit and therefore no overlooking or loss of 

privacy would occur.  

 

13.4 Loss of light and/or outlook 

 

As no residential properties are adjacent to the site, no loss of residential 

amenity would occur. As the adjacent employment unit has no office 

windows directly overlooking the application site, I do not consider a 

significant loss of light or outlook would occur. 

 

13.5  Design, appearance and materials 

 

The proposed unit is acceptable in scale, design and appearance and is 

appropriate to the context of the area. Proposed landscaping to the 

canal boundary will help to soften the appearance of the building from 

the canal corridor.  

Page 48



 

 

13.6 Access, highway safety, parking and servicing 

 

Following receipt of a tracking plan, the Head of Highways has raised no 

objections to the application.  

 

13.7 Noise and disturbance from the scheme 

 

The Pollution Control Team (noise) has reviewed the application and 

raised no objections subject to the use being restricted to Class E (g)(iii) 

Industrial processes (which can be carried out in any residential 

area without causing detriment to the amenity of the area). 

14 Alternative Options 

 

14.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so. In my opinion the proposal would be acceptable 

and raises no concerns from a visual point of view, highways safety 

perspective or harm to residential amenity. 

15 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value Potential opportunity for new employment. 

 

Page 49



 

16. Appendices 

 

Site Plan  

Context Plan 

1179-01 

1179-02 A 

 

Page 50



Legend

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

OS Licence NoScale

© Crow n copyright and database rights 2019
   Ordnance Survey Licence No 100023119

Not Set

Not Set

Not Set

04 January 2022

1:1114

DC/21/66106

Land At Summerton Road, Oldbury

Page 51



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 52



Page 53



P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

19 January 2022 

 

Application Reference DC/21/66122 

Application Received 15 September 2021 

Application Description Proposed 2 no. 3 bedroom dormer bungalows 

with boundary fencing and associated car 

parking. 

Application Address Land Adjacent The Bungalow 

Corngreaves Road 

Cradley Heath 

Applicant Mr Adrian Lloyd 

Ward Cradley Heath & Old Hill 

Contact Officer Dave Paine 

David_paine@sandwell.gov.uk 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to: 

 

(i) External materials 

(ii) Boundary treatments 

(iii) Landscaping 

(iv) Drainage to include SuDS 

(v) Cycle storage 

(vi) Method statement for construction 

(vii) Provision and retention of parking 

(viii) Compliance with recommendations of ecological report 

(ix) Electric vehicle charging 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 6



 

  

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 This site enjoys outline consent for a single dwelling.  The addition of a 

second dwelling would not cause any significant impact on the amenity 

of the occupiers of surrounding properties or cause significant additional 

traffic to warrant refusal.  The 2 dwellings would be of good quality 

design and appearance.  This proposal would bring an unused plot of 

land back into use and would have benefits in deterring anti-social 

behaviour and other crime which can be associated with plots such as 

this, which lack natural surveillance. 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?   

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods – The design of 

the proposal is acceptable in respect of national and local 

planning policy.  

4 Context  

 

4.1 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee because 8 

objections have been received. 

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

Land at Corngreaves Road 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is unallocated in the development plan. 

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Page 58

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Corngreaves+Rd,+Cradley+Heath/@52.4665078,-2.075481,45m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x487096d69fe11111:0xbb261f259f7f2c55!8m2!3d52.4667345!4d-2.076678


 

Planning history  

Overlooking/loss of privacy 

Loss of light and/or outlook 

Public visual amenity 

Layout and density of building 

Design, appearance and materials 

Access, highway safety, parking and servicing 

Noise and disturbance from the scheme  

Nature conservation and loss of ecological habitats 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site is situated adjacent to The Bungalow, Corngreaves 

Road and behind a row of houses facing onto Corngreaves Road.  

 

6.2 The site is currently overgrown and unused.  There is a semi-derelict 

workshop/garage on site.   

 

6.3 The site is accessed from a private driveway which currently serves 11 

dwellings for the first 10 metres, then it splits to serve only The 

Bungalow and a parking area to the rear of Cremona House. 

 

6.4 The site is approximately 760sqm in area. 

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 Outline consent was granted in January 2020 for a single dwelling. 

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

7.3  

DC/19/63555 Proposed erection of 1 

No. dwelling (outline 

application for access). 

Grant Outline 

Permission with 

Conditions  

8.1.2020 
 

 

Page 59



 

 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant proposes to construct 2no. 3 bedroom detached dormer 

bungalows, with rear private gardens, front to rear access and 2 parking 

spaces each to the front. 

 

8.2 The dwellings would be of a matching design with front and rear 

dormers, and front and rear gabled features.  Each bungalow would 

provide 2 bedrooms on the ground floor and a master suite on the first 

floor/loft space. 

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter with 

8 objections and one letter of support received in return. 

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

(i) Increased traffic. 

(ii) Increased parked cars. 

(iii) Issues during construction: dust, noise, safety, impact on 

sewers, blocking of driveway access. 

(iv) Loss of privacy. 

(v) Loss of light to gardens. 

(vi) Ecological impact. 

(vii) Demolition of the existing building. 

(viii) Noise from the development impacting on neighbours’ 

enjoyment of their garden. 

(ix) Impact on drainage. 

 

Page 60



 

Immaterial objections have been raised regarding impact on existing 

electric vehicle charging, existing boundary issues and matters relating 

to another site. 

 

9.3 Responses to objections 

 

I respond to the objector’s comments in turn: 

 

(i) This development would require 2 parking spaces per dwelling.  

This would add some pressure on the junction between the private 

driveway and Corngreaves Road.  However, the addition of these 

two dwellings would not create a significant difference here, when 

considering that a single dwelling already has outline consent. 

(ii) The proposed site plan shows 2 parking spaces of acceptable size 

per dwelling.  Sufficient space would exist to allow manoeuvring in 

and out of the spaces. 

(iii) Concerns relating to construction, can be adequately addressed by 

the inclusion of a condition requiring a construction management 

plan. 

(iv) The residential design guide requires a side to rear separation 

distance of 14 metres and a rear to rear separation distance of 21 

metres.  The side facing bathroom window of the nearer proposed 

bungalow would be 22 metres from the nearest existing facing 

window.  

(v) Although there would be some shading over neighbouring 

gardens, this is not considered a significant planning concern.  The 

height of the proposed bungalows is not excessive. 

(vi) An ecological report was requested, and this was completed and 

provided on 25th November 2021.  Requirements regarding 

protection of birds and hedgehogs were recommended which can 

be conditioned. 

(vii) A condition is recommended to control demolition methods and 

disposal of materials. 

(viii) This proposal falls within a built-up area.  All affected neighbours 

have existing boundaries with other residential dwellings.  It is 

therefore reasonable for residents to expect some noise whilst 

Page 61



 

using their gardens and the addition of these two dwellings would 

not significantly change this. 

(ix) A drainage condition is recommended which would also include 

details of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) to reduce surface 

water run off. 

 

9.4 Support  

 

 The response of support noted that this would bring an area of 

wasteland back into use.  They noted that vermin have been seen in the 

area and expressed concern about crime being associated with the site. 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Planning Policy 

 

 Planning Policy noted that this would be a housing windfall site and 

would comply with policy SAD H2 in this respect.  They noted that the 

proposal could be considered backland development. 

 

10.2 Highways 

 

 Highways requested further information, specifically regarding 

information on how refuse trucks and emergency vehicles would 

manoeuvre.  They noted that the access is over 25 metres in length and 

commented that the width of the drive should be 4.5m.    

 

Highways object to the application primarily due to the length of the 

driveway with no passing places, causing congestion at the vehicular 

access from Corngreaves Road.  This could lead to vehicles queuing on 

the highway at the entrance to the driveway or even reversing back onto 

Corngreaves Road and could lead to an increase in injury accidents at 

this location. 

 

 

 

Page 62



 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

 The NPPF also states;  

 

“Development should only be prevented or refused on highways 

grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway 

safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network 

would be severe.” 

 

The effect caused by an additional dwelling in this instance would 

not create an unacceptable highway safety issue or a severe 

cumulative impact. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

DEL1: Infrastructure Provision 

HOU1: Delivering Sustainable Housing Growth 

HOU2: Housing Density, Type and Accessibility 

ENV3: Design Quality    

ENV5: Flood Risk, Sustainable Drainage System and Urban Heat Island 

Effect  

ENV8: Air Quality  

SAD H2: Housing Windfalls 

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

 

12.2 In regard to DEL1, electric vehicle charging points are required for new 

development.  Although the charging points are shown on the plan, a 

condition is recommended to ensure these are installed and retained. 

 

Page 63



 

12.3 The proposal would contribute to the target for providing new homes 

(policy HOU1). 

 

12.4  The proposal meets the requirements of policy HOU2 in that it proposes 

a property type which would be accessible by sustainable transport to 

residential services. The proposal would also achieve high quality design 

with minimal amenity impact. 

 

12.5  The proposal raises no significant concerns in respect of design and is 

therefore compliant with policy ENV3 and policy SAD EOS 9. 

 

12.6  A condition can be applied to ensure appropriate drainage to include 

SuDS, in accordance with policy ENV5. 

 

12.7  In respect of air quality (ENV8), an electric vehicle charging point would 

be ensured by condition, in accordance with the Black Country Air 

Quality SPD. 

 

12.8  The development site is not allocated for residential development in the 

SAD Policies Map and is therefore classed as a housing windfall site. 

Whilst policy SAD H2 would be applicable, the policy officer has 

confirmed that the proposal meets the guidance set out in the policy, as 

the site is previously developed land that is suitable for residential 

development. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2  Planning History 

 

 This site already has outline consent for a single dwelling which remains 

extant.   

 

Page 64



 

13.3 Overlooking/loss of privacy 

 

This proposal would exceed the separation distance standards set out in 

the residential design guide.  No privacy issues would occur between 

habitable rooms of adjoining dwellings. 

 

13.3 Loss of light 

 

The proposal may cause some shading to neighbouring gardens but 

would not impact significantly on windows serving habitable rooms of 

neighbouring dwellings.  The 45-degree line would not be breached by 

this proposal. 

 

13.5 Layout and density of building 

 

The sizes of the proposed dwellings would be reasonable, and the plot 

sizes would be generous.  The use of bungalows on the site would lead 

to a reduced impact when compared to a more typical 2 storey dwelling. 

 

13.6 Design, appearance and materials 

 

 The design of these two bungalows would differ from any neighbouring 

dwellings.  However, this is a somewhat isolated site which stands apart 

from its neighbours.  The two dwellings would match and would be of a 

high-quality design.  Materials shown on plan appear to be acceptable, 

but the specifics of material type would be ensured by condition. 

Furthermore, sufficient external amenity space would be provided for 

future occupants. 

 

13.7 Access, highway safety, parking and servicing. 

 

 There are a number of concerns regarding these matters.  Highways 

have objected for the reasons given in 10.2 above.  Objections have also 

referred to these issues.  In mitigation of these concerns, consideration 

must be given to the extant outline consent granted in 2020.  The 

officer’s comments at the time stated; “The Bungalow is exclusively 

Page 65



 

served by the access way, but the owners of Cremona House do access 

and park in a small parking area at the rear of their property. Given that 

only three properties would use the accessway, I have no significant 

concerns from a highway safety perspective; particularly as visibility 

when pulling out onto Corngreaves Road is adequate. Concerns were 

raised over access for emergency service vehicles (the accessway 

ranges from approximately 2.8m – 3m). Manual for Streets states that 

‘the requirements for emergency vehicles are generally dictated by the 

fire service requirements’. Paragraph 6.7.3 goes on to state ‘Simply to 

reach a fire, the access route could be reduced to 2.75 m over short 

distances, provided the pump appliance can get to within 45 m of 

dwelling entrances’. Furthermore, access for fire service is a requirement 

of the Building Regulations and I see no reason to impose conditions 

which would replicate requirements under that legislation.” 

 

 These comments would largely hold for this application.  In terms of 

access and highway safety, this application differs only in that 2 

dwellings are proposed, rather than 1.  Given that the existing consent 

allows for 3 dwellings to be served by the main driveway (The Bungalow, 

Cremona House and the new dwelling), I do not consider that the 

addition of a fourth dwelling would create a sufficient impact such as to 

warrant refusal.  The driveway entrance from Corngreaves Road 

currently serves 11 dwellings. 

 

13.8  Noise and disturbance from the scheme 

 

 Objector’s comments raised concerns about disturbance caused during 

construction, particularly regarding construction vehicles blocking the 

drive and loss of utilities.  These are not planning matters.  Contractors 

would be expected to comply with other, non-planning legislation and 

civil law in these respects.  Although some noise etc. would be expected 

as part of any construction scheme, with the inclusion of a condition 

relating to a construction management plan, there is no reason to 

suppose that this proposal would lead to any uncommon or 

unreasonable disturbance.   

 

Page 66



 

13.9 Nature conservation and loss of ecological habitats 

 

A preliminary ecological report was carried out in response to an 

objection.  The recommendations from this report can be ensured by 

condition. 

14 Alternative Options 

 

14.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  This application would provide good quality new 

homes and would not significantly impact on local residential amenity. 

Whilst noting the highway objections, given the planning history of the 

site and that this is a marginal increase of one additional dwelling, 

highway safety is unlikely to be significantly impacted by this change. 

15 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None 
 

Social Value None  

16. Appendices 

 Location plan 

 Context plan 

Plan No. 1000 – Location plan 

Plan No. 1100  -  Site plan 

Plan No. BA29410819-01 – Topographical survey 

Plan No. 3000 – Floor elevation plans 

Page 67



Legend

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

OS Licence NoScale

© Crow n copyright and database rights 2019
   Ordnance Survey Licence No 100023119

Not Set

Not Set

Not Set

04 January 2022

1:1114

DC/21/66122

Land Adjacent The Bungalow Corngreaves Road

Page 68



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 69



10 14

Ashdene

11

CO
RNG

REAVES RO
AD

12

Villas

Ludd House

58

Wychbury

Newlyn

New Villa

Cartre
f

RimmingtonWenlock

The Bungalow

9

Highbury

Fair-v
iew

Grove

15

Cremona

House

Meadowend

16

N

S

EW

Garden

Patio

Garden

Living

a/c

HallBath
Bedroom 2

Bedroom 3

cpbd

u

Kitchen 

Dining

Living

a/c

HallBath
Bedroom 2

Bedroom 3

cpbd

u

Kitchen 

DiningPlot 1

Plot 2
Patio

bins
bins

permeable block paving

1

2

1

2

EVP

EVP

turning for refuse wagon, ambulance etc.. 

3.4m wide
extg access drive

bins
bins

marshalls g
rass g

uard

permeable block paving
permeable block paving

2.4 x 22m
 visibility splay

20

10 14

Ashdene

11

CO
RNG

REAVES RO
AD

12

Villas

Ludd House

19

58

7

Wychbury

Newlyn

New Villa

Cartre
f

RimmingtonWenlock

8

The Bungalow

9

Highbury

Fair-v
iew

30

Grove

15

Cremona

House

Meadowend

16

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2021. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

N

S

EW

CR/2

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN &

SCALE:

DATE:
September 2021

DRAWING NO.

Land Adjacent The Bungalow

Cradley Heath
B64 7EA

TITLE:

REV:

NCR TOWN PLANNING

neilranford@btinternet.comMob : 07956 805316

Corngreaves Road

a

Proposed 2 No. New 3 Bed Bungalows

1:100, 1:200 & 1:1250 

1st & 2nd Floors

Stourbridge
34 Lower High Street

West Midlands
DY8 1TA

0 2 4

Metres - Scale 1:100

1 3 5

0 20 50

Metres - Scale 1:1250

10 40

6

30 60

0 4 8

Metres - Scale 1:200

2 6 10 12

Location Plan 1:1250

Site Plan 1:200

a. 22/10/2021 - planning & highways amendments

P
age 70



P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

19 January 2022 

 

Application Reference DC/21/66156 

Application Received 24 September 2021 

Application Description Proposed two storey side, first floor front and 

single storey front/rear extensions. 

Application Address 21 Yewtree Lane 

Rowley Regis 

B65 8BU 

Applicant Mr Lee Finch 

Ward Blackheath 

Contact Officer Dave Paine 

David_paine@sandwell.gov.uk 

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to: 

 

(i) A condition to ensure the materials match with the existing 

property. 

  

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The application is compliant with both national and local planning 

policies.  It would have a minimal impact on neighbouring properties. 

 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?   

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods – The design of 

the proposal is acceptable in respect of national and local 

planning policy.  

4 Context  

 

4.1 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee because 

the agent is an employee of Sandwell MBC. 

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

21 Yewtree Lane 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is unallocated in the adopted development plans. 

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Loss of light and/or outlook 

Design, appearance and materials 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 This application relates to a detached property situated on the west side 

of Yewtree Lane.  This is a residential area, characterised by modern 

detached dwellings.  These dwellings are designed around a consistent 

design code, but each dwelling uses individual design details to 

distinguish it from its neighbours. 

 

 

 

 

Page 74

https://www.google.com/maps/place/21+Yew+Tree+Ln.,+Rowley+Regis+B65+8BU/@52.4786533,-2.049603,31m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x4870971bc160f56f:0x703aae5585da2d32!8m2!3d52.4783802!4d-2.0496036


 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 This dwelling and its neighbours form a small development of 5 

detached homes, approved in 1987. 

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

7.3  

DC/22140 Construction of 5 three 

and four bedroom 

residential units. 

Granted with 

conditions 21 

September 1987 
 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant proposed to construct extensions to the front, side and 

rear of the property.  To the rear would be a single storey extension 

measuring 8.4 metres wide by 2.1 metres deep by 3.4 metres high.  To 

the side would be a two storey extension measuring 2.6 metres wide by 

9.0 metres deep by 7.4 metres high.  To the front there would be both 

single and two storey elements to the extension, measuring 8.4 metres 

wide by 1.2 metres deep by 6.6 metres high. 

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter with 

no responses. 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

There are no statutory consultation responses to report for this 

application. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

ENV3: Design Quality    

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

 

12.2 These policies emphasise the need for good design and proposals 

should be of an acceptable scale.  Although these proposals would 

substantially alter the appearance of the front elevation, these changes 

would be within the established design code of the immediate vicinity.   

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2  Loss of light and outlook 

 

Although the proposed extensions would bring the dwelling towards the 

neighbouring property, it would not impact on any of the windows serving 

habitable rooms.  The 45 degree line would not be breached. 

 

13.3 Design, appearance and materials 

 

Further to the points made above in 12.2; this street does not have an 

establish building line.  The proposed front extension would blend well 

between number 20 and 22, and would not make the property 

incongruous.  The front gable design would mirror the similar feature on 

Page 76



 

number twenty and create a pleasing harmony between the two 

dwellings, as seen below: 

 
It would therefore comply with design policies BCCS ENV3 and SAD 

EOS9.  It will be of primary importance that the materials used match 

with the existing property and the neighbouring properties, and this 

should be conditioned.  

14 Alternative Options 

 

14.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  However, it is considered that this proposal would 

comply with relevant policies and there are no material considerations to 

warrant refusal. 

15 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Page 77



 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None  
 

Social Value None  

 

16. Appendices 

 

Location Plan  

Context Plan 

Plan No. 2 – Extension floor plans and elevations. 

Plan No. 3 – Proposed floor plans. 

Plan No. 4 – Proposed elevations. 

 

 

 

Page 78



Legend

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

OS Licence NoScale

© Crow n copyright and database rights 2019
   Ordnance Survey Licence No 100023119

Not Set

Not Set

Not Set

04 January 2022

1:1114

DC/21/66156

21 Yewtree Lane, Rowley Regis

Page 79



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 80



Site Location Plan - 1:1250

New Single Storey Front Extension.

21 Yew Tree Way,
Rowley Regis,
B65 8BU.

Scale
1:1250
1:500

Drg No

1

Date

Size

A3

Rev

Location

Drawing Title

OS Maps

Sept 2021

Job No

2021-037
0 12.5 25 50

Scale Bar - 1:1250

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 4075 100

Scale Bar - 1:500

Site Plan - 1:500

Boundary Line.

w:
ca

rw
el
l.
co

.u
k

New Single Storey Rear Extension.

New Two Storey Extension.

P
age 81

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Yew Tree House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Yew Tree House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
North

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
YEWTREE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Sewage Ppg Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Totnalls

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Produced on 14 September 2021 from the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision available at this date.

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
This map shows the area bounded by 396652 286680,396794 286680,396794 286822,396652 286822,396652 286680

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey.

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Crown copyright 2021. Supplied by copla ltd trading as UKPlanningMaps.com a licensed Ordnance Survey partner (100054135).

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Data licence expires 14 September 2022. Unique plan reference: v2c//689649/933939

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
23



bedroom

bedroom

en suite

bedroom

lounge

garagewc

kitchen

bathroom

bedroom

st

21 Yew Tree Way,
Rowley Regis,
B65 8BU.

Scale

1:100

Drg No

2

Date

Size

A3

Rev

Location

Drawing Title

Existing Details

Rev Item Date

Note

The proposals may be subject to the Party
Wall Act 1996 which requires the owners to
serve the adjoining owner with a notice at
least 2 months prior to the intended
commencement date of the works.

Local Authority Drawings Only

Sept 2021

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Job No

2021-037

w:
ca

rw
el
l.
co

.u
k

Scale Bar - 1:100

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20Scale Bar - 1:200

The exact depth and position is to be determined on
site by the builder. Confirmation of the drainage
details are to be determined at an early stage of the
proposed project including the junction where the
drainage meets from the adjacent property.

ACTUAL POSITION NOT KNOWN. THE BUILDER
AND THE BUILDING CONTROL OFFICER ARE TO
AGREE THE POSITION WHEN STARTING ON SITE.

Existing Drainage

The builder is to take all the necessary measures in
supporting the existing structure when removing the existing
walls and windows etc. All necessary props and supports
are to be used.

Supporting Structure

Builder to dispose of all waste and cart away from site with
the use of skips which are to be located in a suitable
location in agreement with the client.

Any Asbestos based material found is to be removed
carefully with the necessary Safety steps taken and an
authorized Asbestos Removal Company if so required.

Removal of Waste
If you are having work done on your own home, and
it is not in connection with a business, you will be a
domestic client. The only responsibility a domestic
client has under CDM 2015 is to appoint a principal
designer and a principal contractor when there is
more than one contractor working on the scheme.
However, if you do not do this, (as is common
practice) your duties as a domestic client are
automatically transferred to the contractor or
principal contractor.

It is your responsibility, as the domestic client, to
appoint a suitably Qualified Principal Designer.

Domestic Clients - Health and Safety

Ground Floor Plan

Existing Plans - 1:100

Existing walls are to be removed.

Boundary.

Existing Elevations - 1:200
Front Elevation Side Elevation Side ElevationRear Elevation

First Floor Plan

Existing walls are to be removed.

Existing walls are to be removed.

P
age 82



bedroom

bedroom

bathroom

bedroom

en suite

bedroom

en suite

en suite

dining room

lounge

garagewc

kitchen

st

steel

steel

ste
el

ste
el

ste
el

ste
el

steel steel

steel

ste
el

utility

wood burner

steel

flue rwp

rwp

rwp rwp

Scale

1:100

Drg No

3

Date

Size

A3

Rev

Location

Drawing Title

Proposed Plans

Rev Item Date

Note

The proposals may be subject to the Party
Wall Act 1996 which requires the owners to
serve the adjoining owner with a notice at
least 2 months prior to the intended
commencement date of the works.

Local Authority Drawings Only

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Job No

w:
ca

rw
el
l.
co

.u
k

Scale Bar - 1:100

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20Scale Bar - 1:200

The exact depth and position is to be determined on
site by the builder. Confirmation of the drainage
details are to be determined at an early stage of the
proposed project including the junction where the
drainage meets from the adjacent property.

ACTUAL POSITION NOT KNOWN. THE BUILDER
AND THE BUILDING CONTROL OFFICER ARE TO
AGREE THE POSITION WHEN STARTING ON SITE.

Existing Drainage

The builder is to take all the necessary measures in
supporting the existing structure when removing the existing
walls and windows etc. All necessary props and supports
are to be used.

Supporting Structure

Builder to dispose of all waste and cart away from site with
the use of skips which are to be located in a suitable
location in agreement with the client.

Any Asbestos based material found is to be removed
carefully with the necessary Safety steps taken and an
authorized Asbestos Removal Company if so required.

Removal of Waste
If you are having work done on your own home, and
it is not in connection with a business, you will be a
domestic client. The only responsibility a domestic
client has under CDM 2015 is to appoint a principal
designer and a principal contractor when there is
more than one contractor working on the scheme.
However, if you do not do this, (as is common
practice) your duties as a domestic client are
automatically transferred to the contractor or
principal contractor.

It is your responsibility, as the domestic client, to
appoint a suitably Qualified Principal Designer.

Domestic Clients - Health and Safety
21 Yew Tree Way,
Rowley Regis,
B65 8BU.

Sept 20212021-037

Ground Floor Plan

Proposed Plans - 1:100
First Floor Plan

Boundary.

Double glazed windows and doors. Safety
Glass to BS6206.

Facing brickwork to match existing.

Indicative steelwork location.

Double glazed windows and doors. Safety
Glass to BS6206.

Indicative steelwork location.

Double glazed windows and doors. Safety
Glass to BS6206.

Indicative steelwork location.

Indicative steelwork location.Double glazed windows and doors. Safety
Glass to BS6206.

Facing brickwork to match existing.

Indicative steelwork location.

P
age 83



Double glazed windows. Safety Glass to
BS6206.

Facing brickwork finish.

Roof tiles to match existing.

Scale

1:100

Drg No

4

Date

Size

A3

Rev

Location

Drawing Title

Proposed Elevations

Rev Item Date

Note

The proposals may be subject to the Party
Wall Act 1996 which requires the owners to
serve the adjoining owner with a notice at
least 2 months prior to the intended
commencement date of the works.

Local Authority Drawings Only

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Job No

w:
ca

rw
el
l.
co

.u
k

Scale Bar - 1:100

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20Scale Bar - 1:200

The exact depth and position is to be determined on
site by the builder. Confirmation of the drainage
details are to be determined at an early stage of the
proposed project including the junction where the
drainage meets from the adjacent property.

ACTUAL POSITION NOT KNOWN. THE BUILDER
AND THE BUILDING CONTROL OFFICER ARE TO
AGREE THE POSITION WHEN STARTING ON SITE.

Existing Drainage

The builder is to take all the necessary measures in
supporting the existing structure when removing the existing
walls and windows etc. All necessary props and supports
are to be used.

Supporting Structure

Builder to dispose of all waste and cart away from site with
the use of skips which are to be located in a suitable
location in agreement with the client.

Any Asbestos based material found is to be removed
carefully with the necessary Safety steps taken and an
authorized Asbestos Removal Company if so required.

Removal of Waste
If you are having work done on your own home, and
it is not in connection with a business, you will be a
domestic client. The only responsibility a domestic
client has under CDM 2015 is to appoint a principal
designer and a principal contractor when there is
more than one contractor working on the scheme.
However, if you do not do this, (as is common
practice) your duties as a domestic client are
automatically transferred to the contractor or
principal contractor.

It is your responsibility, as the domestic client, to
appoint a suitably Qualified Principal Designer.

Domestic Clients - Health and Safety
21 Yew Tree Way,
Rowley Regis,
B65 8BU.

Sept 20212021-037

Rear Elevation

Proposed Elevations - 1:100
Side Elevation

Front Elevation Side Elevation

Double glazed windows. Safety Glass to
BS6206.

Facing brickwork finish.

Roof tiles to match existing.

Double glazed windows and doors. Safety
Glass to BS6206.

Facing brickwork to match existing.

Flue from wood burner.
Roof tiles to match existing.

Roof tiles to match existing.

P
age 84



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

19 January 2022 

 

Application Reference DC/21/66185 

Application Received 04 October 2021 

Application Description Proposed change of use from dwelling to 8 No. 

bedroom HMO (house in multiple occupation) 

with two/single storey side and single storey 

rear extensions. 

Application Address 54 St James Road 

Oldbury 

B69 2DX 

Applicant Mrs Lavanya Gamsani 

Ward Oldbury 

Contact Officer Mr Andrew Dean 

andrew_dean@sandwell.gov.uk  

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to: 

 

(i) External Materials; 

(ii) Car parking to implemented and retained; 

(iii) Existing drop kerb to be extended; 

(iv) Details of Cycle storage; 

(v) Details of bin storage; 

(vi) No glazing shall be inserted into the Western facing side elevation 

of the proposed single and two storey side/ rear extension;  

(vii) Room 7 privacy glazing scheme;  

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 8

mailto:andrew_dean@sandwell.gov.uk


 

(viii) Details of drainage to the car parking area;  

(ix) Electric Vehicle Charging point; 

(x) Low NOx boilers; 

(xi) Construction management plan; and  

(xii) Details of security measures. 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal raises no significant concerns from an amenity or design 

perspective and proposes suitable living accommodation.  The Council’s 

Highways team has raised no objections to the application with the 

development providing suitable parking provision for the number of 

rooms proposed. I am satisfied there would be no significant impact to 

the safety and convenience of users of the highway. Furthermore, there 

are no compelling policy reasons for refusal. 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?   

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods – The design of 

the proposal is acceptable in respect of national and local 

planning policy. 

4 Context  

 

4.1 At the last Committee meeting Members resolved to visit the site. 
 

4.2 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee because 23 

objections and a 36-signature petition against the proposal has been 

received.  

 

4.3 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 
below: 
 
54 St James Road, Oldbury 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is unallocated in the development plan.  

Page 86

https://www.google.com/maps/place/54+St+James+Rd,+Oldbury+B69+2EA/@52.5036494,-2.0306738,87m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x4870979cd52d61d3:0xba9abed7bf315489!8m2!3d52.5036378!4d-2.0306739


 

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Planning history (including appeal decisions) 

Overlooking/loss of privacy 

Loss of light and/or outlook 

Layout and density of building 

Design, appearance and materials 

Access, highway safety, parking and servicing 

Noise and disturbance from the scheme  

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application relates to a detached residential dwelling situated on the 

southern side of St James Road, Oldbury. The character of the 

surrounding area is residential in nature with a mixture of house types 

and designs visible in the street scene.   

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 There is no relevant planning history. 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant is proposing to convert the property from a single dwelling 

to an 8 No. bedroom HMO (house in multiple occupation) as well as 

erecting a single/ two-storey side extension and single storey rear 

extension.  

 

8.2 The proposed single and two storey side extension would measure 3.3 

metres (W) by 7.8 metres (L) and have an overall height of 8 metres (5.7 

metres to the eaves). The proposed two-storey side extension includes a 

0.6m set back of the first floor to the front. The single storey side 

extension would measure 1.23m (W) by 2.26 metres (L) and have an 

Page 87



 

overall height of 2.9 metres with a flat roof. The single storey rear 

extension would measure 2.7 metres (L) by 7.1 metres (W) and have an 

overall height of 3.5 metres (3 metres to the eaves).     

 

8.3 The proposed ground floor layout would provide 4 bedrooms each with 

an en-suite bathroom and a communal kitchen and dining area 

measuring 22m2. The proposed first floor layout would provide a further 

4 bedrooms with en-suite bathrooms.  The bedroom sizes including en-

suite bathrooms are as follows:-  

 

 Bedroom 1 – 14.2m2 

 Bedroom 2 – 13.2m2 

 Bedroom 3 – 12.9m2 

 Bedroom 4 – 12.3m2 

 Bedroom 5 – 14.6m2 

Bedroom 6 – 12.2m2 

Bedroom 7 – 13.3m2 

Bedroom 8 – 12.3m2 

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter, site 

notice and notification to local ward members with 23 objections and a 

36-signature petition against the proposal being received.  

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) The development has a lack of car parking for residents. St James 

Road already suffers from high levels of on street car parking and 

the situation is exacerbated by the proximity of Rounds Green 

primary school.  St James Road is also a major bus route.  

ii) Concerns regarding the additional sewage generated by 8 

bathrooms.  

Page 88



 

iii) Anti-social behaviour and general concerns regarding the type of 

people who will be living at the property, school children walk past 

the property and safety of neighbouring residents. An existing 

HMO on an adjacent street has caused issues such as loud music 

etc. 

iv) A HMO is out of character with the surrounding area which is 

dominated by medium/low density single family housing with 

associated private amenity space or gardens, mainly detached, 

semi-detached and terrace houses. 

v) The proposal is contrary to PPS 7 - Safeguarding the Character of 

Established Residential Areas which applies to established 

residential areas.  

vi) The proposal would result in noise and disturbance.  

vii) Overdevelopment of the site.  

viii) It is the understanding of local residents that the property would be 

used as a bail hostel/ halfway house for offenders. This is 

inappropriate for the surrounding area.  

ix) The development would attract visitors as well as tenants.  

x) The property should be retained for family housing.  

xi) The plans do not provide sufficient external access - ie means of 

escape in case of fire. 

xii) There is no guarantee that the site would be used eight people 

with the potential for more to be staying in each room.  

xiii) The development would set a precedent. 

xiv) The proposal extension would result in loss of light into two side 

facing windows.  

xv) The proposal would overlook the objector’s property causing a loss 

of privacy to the objector garden.  

xvi) The application form has been completed incorrectly with the site 

being listed as not vacant.  

 

Immaterial objections have been raised regarding loss of property value, 

the effect the proposal would have on a local child-minding business, 

disturbance caused during refurbishment works and the impact building 

work/seeing strangers in the local area would have on a local resident.  

 

Page 89



 

9.3 Responses to objections 

 

I respond to the objector’s comments in turn: 

 

(i) The applicant has demonstrated on plan the frontage of the 

property would be converted to car parking with 4 spaces being 

provided for residents. The applicant has amended the plan to 

show that the proposed spaces meet size requirements of 

Highways. The revised parking plan meets the Council’s standards 

for houses in multiple occupation and Highways have no 

objections to the application (refer to 10.2 below).  

(ii) I am satisfied that any future drainage details and connections to 

the public sewer would be dealt with via building regulations 

approval and Severn Trent. A condition has been included within 

the recommendation for drainage details (to include SuDS) to be 

submitted and approved for the proposed car parking area to the 

front. 

iii) The local planning authority has no control over the prospective 
occupants of the HMO.  West Midlands Police has raised no 
objections (see 10.5).  In addition, in terms of future occupiers, 
they would be expected to abide by the rules and regulations set 
out in the conditions of their tenancy and these will be managed by 
the landlord.  The local authority can impose fines of up to £5,000 
on landlords, if these regulations are not complied with. 

iv) It is considered that a house in multiple occupation contributes to 

the range of housing needs that are required within the borough; 

and with the right design and layout and appropriate management 

through Private Sector Housing licensing they can make a positive 

contribution to an area. Furthermore, it is a permitted change 

under the Use Classes Order that a residential dwelling can be 

converted into a 6-person HMO without planning approval. 

v) Planning Policy Statements were replaced by the National 

Planning Policy Framework in 2012. However, the property would 

remain as a residential use within a residential area and has 

sufficient off-street car parking to meet Highway’s standards.  

vi) Public Health has reviewed the application and raised no concerns 

regarding over excessive noise being an issue for residents in the 

Page 90



 

wider area. As a residential use, I have no significant concerns in 

respect of the impact of the proposed HMO on noise.  

vii) The proposed extensions are acceptable in scale and appearance 

and would sit comfortably within the site. The layout of the 

proposed HMO complies with HMO standards and the required 

amount of car parking can be provided on the property frontage. I 

therefore do not consider the proposal to be over development of 

the site.   

viii) The applicant has confirmed the proposed use would not be for a 

bail hostel and would be a professional-let HMO. As a bail hostel is 

a sui generis use, should the applicant wish to use the site for this 

purpose a new planning application would be required. 

ix) The local planning authority are unable to control people visiting 

residents at a property.  

x) This is the opinion of the objector. HMO’s provide an alternative 

accommodation type in the borough and as stated above, it is a 

permitted change under the Use Classes Order that a residential 

dwelling can be converted into a 6-person HMO without planning 

approval.  

xi) Fire safety and means of escape would be addressed through 

building regulations and the HMO licence procedure.  

xii) As no separate living room has been provided, the bedroom sizes 

proposed are only suitable for single occupancy resulting in a total 

of 8 residents being accommodated on the site.  

xiii) Each application is assessed on its own individual merits.  

xiv) The proposed extension would not be constructed up to the 

boundary with the objector’s property. A 1.1m gap from the 

proposed side wall of the extension to the property boundary would 

be maintained to allow access to the rear. The two side facing 

windows on the gable wall serve as secondary windows and it is 

typical that these windows face on to gable walls which is seen on 

neighbouring properties on the street. The agent has 

demonstrated on plan that no breach of the 45-degree code would 

take place from the objector’s rear facing windows and the 

proposed two storey side extension. The objector’s rear wing does 

have a window facing onto the applicant’s property. Whilst the 

Page 91



 

outlook from this window would be of the side elevation of the 

proposed single storey rear extension, due to the levels change 

and existing boundary treatment, I do not consider a significant 

loss of light or outlook would occur.  Furthermore, when assessing 

impact, consideration needs to be made in terms of extensions the 

applicant could erect under permitted development. Permitted 

development would allow the applicant to erect a single storey side 

extension which is slightly reduced in width by 0.2m and projects 

beyond the rear elevation of the applicant’s property by 4 metres 

with an overall height of up to 4 metres. On this basis, I consider 

any loss of light or outlook would not be so significant to warrant 

refusal of the application.  

xv) No windows proposed would be directly overlooking the objector’s 

property with the proposed west facing elevation of the single and 

two storey side/ rear extension containing no glazing.  The 

proposed first floor rear window contained within the two-storey 

side extension would overlook the applicant’s own rear garden 

area. Some overlooking of neighbouring properties garden areas is 

typical for first floor rear windows. However, due to the levels 

change, and to restrict any potential loss of privacy to the window 

mentioned above, a condition for a privacy glazing scheme to be 

submitted and approved for room 7 has been included within the 

recommendation.  

xvi) This is noted, although the site contains an existing residential 

property.   

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Planning and Transportation Policy 

 

 No objection.  

 

10.2 Highways 

 

 No objection. HMOs require one off street car parking space for every 

two bedrooms proposed. The applicant would be providing the required 

Page 92



 

four off street spaces to the property frontage. The amended plan 

demonstrates the spaces comply with Highways requirements of 2.8 

metres x 5 metres.  

 

10.3 Public Health (Air Quality)  

 

 No objection subject to a condition for an electric vehicle charging point, 

low NOx boilers and construction management plan.  

 

10.4 Public Heath (Air Pollution and Noise) 

 

 No objection subject to hours of construction being limited. Confirmation 

of construction hours will be included within the construction 

management plan condition.  

 

10.5 West Midlands Police 

 

No objection subject to a condition relating to security measures being 

included within the recommendation. Concerns were noted relating to 

the transient nature of occupants and the potential risk of conflict within 

premises.  

 

10.6 Housing 

 

 Matters raised fall under building regulations and the Housing Act. These  

 comments have been passed to the agent.  

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

11.2 The policy also refers to highways and states that: ‘Development should 

only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an 

unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 

Page 93



 

impacts on the road network would be severe’.  No objections have been 

raised by highways. 

 

11.3 In addition, with regard to crime and anti-social behaviour: ‘… create 

places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health 

and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future 

users, and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not 

undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.’  As 

indicated above, there is no factual evidence to suggest that the 

proposal would increase crime, and the development itself is well 

designed according to the standards of the council’s residential design 

guidance and HMO regulations. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the Council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

DEL1: Infrastructure provision 

HOU1:Delivering Sustainable Housing Growth 

HOU2: Housing Density, Type and Accessibility 

ENV3: Design Quality    

ENV5: Flood Risk, Sustainable Drainage System and Urban Heat Island 

Effect  

ENV8: Air Quality  

TRAN4: Creating Coherent Networks for Cycling and Walking 

SAD H2: Housing Windfalls 

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

 

12.2 DEL1 refers to providing suitable on-site infrastructure provision. In this 

instance the scheme provides electric vehicle charge points, a parking 

area, bins and cycle stores which support other policies within the core 

strategy. 

 

12.3 HOU1 requires the local planning authority to deliver 63,000 homes upto 

2026, at present there is a housing shortfall and hence the introduction 

of this HMO will create additional homes for residents. 

Page 94



 

 

12.3 HOU2 refers to providing a range of types of accommodation. In the 

instance of this locality, the area is primarily residential family housing, 

however it is considered that a HMO would contribute to the existing 

range of accommodation in the area. 

 

12.4 ENV3 and SAD ESO9 encourage high quality design. I consider the 

design of the proposed extensions to be acceptable in appearance and 

the internal room sizes and shared areas of the HMO would meet 

housing requirements.  Matters relating to cycle storage and bin storage 

can be conditioned.  

 

12.5 ENV5 requires development to reduce the capacity on sewers through 

the use of SuDS, and the scheme can be conditioned to ensure that the 

frontage provides a drainage scheme that meets this requirement. 

 

12.6 A condition for an electric vehicle charging point, low NOx boilers and a 

construction management plan meets the mitigation measures set out 

within the Black Country Air Quality SPD and accords with policy ENV8. 

 

12.7 TRAN4 states that: ‘Cycle parking facilities should be provided at all new 

developments and should be located in a convenient location…’. A 

condition for details of cycle storage to be submitted and approved has 

been included within the recommendation.  

 

12.8 The proposed development meets the guidance set out in the policy 

SADH2 in that it is previously developed brownfield land and it 

compatible with other development plan policies. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

 

Page 95



 

13.2  Planning history (including appeal decisions) 

 

 Members should also be mindful of a previous inspector’s decisions. 

 

Firstly, the Inspectorate decision for Brunswick Terrace stated: 
 
‘Anti-social behaviour does not seem to me to be an inevitable 
consequence of HMOs as opposed to the single occupation of dwellings, 
but rather a question of individual behaviour and appropriate 
management.’ (Inspector appeal decision) 

 

  Secondly, the planning appeal for HMOs along Bearwood Road, and 

indeed more recent appeals have been allowed following refusal.  The 

critical factors to consider are whether members consider that in this 

location the scheme would be inappropriate in its scale and character, 

and whether there is factual evidence to suggest that in introducing 

HMOs in this area, they would increase crime and anti-social behaviour.  

From the information presented, there is no evidence to suggest that 

crime and anti-social behaviour would worsen, particularly given that the 

scheme would be licensed and fines can be issued of up to £5,000 for 

breaches of the licence. 

 

13.3 Layout and density of building 

 

The layout of the proposal accords with the standards set out for HMOs 

and the proposed extension is of a suitable scale and appearance.  

 

13.4 Overlooking/loss of privacy 

 

No windows proposed would be directly overlooking adjacent dwellings 

with the proposed west facing elevation of the single and two storey 

side/ rear extension containing no glazing.  The proposed first floor rear 

window contained within the two-storey side extension would overlook 

the applicant’s own rear garden area. Some overlooking of neighbouring 

properties garden areas is typical for first floor rear windows. However, 

due to the levels change, and to restrict any potential loss of privacy of 

an adjacent dwellings side facing window, a condition for a privacy 

Page 96



 

glazing scheme to be submitted and approved for room 7 has been 

included within the recommendation. 

 

13.5 Loss of light and/or outlook 

 

The proposed extension would not be constructed up to the boundary 

with the objector’s property. A 1.1m gap from the proposed side wall of 

the extension to the property boundary would be maintained to allow 

access to the rear. The two side facing windows in the gable wall serve 

as secondary windows and it is typical that these windows face on to 

gable walls which is seen on neighbouring properties on the street. The 

agent has demonstrated on plan that no breach of the 45-degree code 

would take place from the objector’s rear facing windows and the 

proposed two storey side extension. The objector’s rear wing does have 

a window facing onto the applicant’s property. Whilst the outlook from 

this window would be of the side elevation of the proposed single storey 

rear extension, due to the levels change and existing boundary 

treatment, I do not consider a significant loss of light or outlook would 

occur.  Furthermore, when assessing impact, consideration needs to be 

made in terms of extensions the applicant could erect under permitted 

development. Permitted development would allow the applicant to erect 

a single storey side extension which is slightly reduced in width by 0.2 

metres and projects beyond the rear elevation of the applicant’s property 

by 4 metres with an overall height of up to 4 metres. On this basis, I 

consider any loss of light or outlook would not be so significant to 

warrant refusal of this application. 

 

 

 

 

13.6 Design, appearance and materials 

 

The proposed extensions are suitable in design and appearance with the 

proposed two storey side extension complying with design guidance 

contained within the Revised Residential Design Guide SPD in that it 

has a first floor set back and drop down of the ridgeline.  A condition for 

Page 97



 

the external materials to match the existing property has been included 

within the recommendation.  

 

13.7 Access, highway safety, parking and servicing 

 

It is appreciated that residents are concerned about parking associated 

with this proposal and the potential negative effect it would have on road 

safety. I am satisfied that the proposed parking provision will meet the 

needs of the development and accords to parking standards for HMOs. 

Furthermore, the Head of Highways has raised no objections to the 

application.  

 

13.8 Noise and disturbance from the scheme 

 

Public Health has reviewed the proposal and raised no objections to the 

application on noise grounds.  

14 Alternative Options 

 

14.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so. In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant policies and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.    

15 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Page 98



 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

Refer to the summary of the report (2.1).  
 

Social Value Refer to the summary of the report (2.1).  

 

16. Appendices 

 

Site Plan  

Context Plan 

PL01 REVA 

PL02 

 

 

Page 99



Legend

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

OS Licence NoScale

© Crow n copyright and database rights 2019
   Ordnance Survey Licence No 100023119

Not Set

Not Set

Not Set

23 November 2021

1:1114

DC/21/66185

54 St James Road, Oldbury, B69 2DX

Page 100



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 101



As shown @ A3

Status: Scale:

Project:

Drawn by:

Rev: Drg. No.

Date:

Title:

Anjum Design Limited,  Suite 104, 123 Stratford Road,         

Shirley, Solihull B90 3ND  TEL: 0121 364 7650              

E: info@anjumdesign.co.uk

Rev Description Date chkd

Aug 2021

Copyright of ANJUM DESIGN LTDC
 No liability will be accepted for amendments made

PL01

Location Plan and Site Plan

54, St James Road, Oldbury B69 2DX
House to 8 rooms HMO Conversion

Site Plan
Scale 1:200

Scale 1:1250

Location Plan

North

Single storey forward 
extension

Single storey rear 
extension

Single storey side 
extension

double storey side 
extension

Parking capacity for 4 
cars in front fore court

0 50m25m25m 75m 100m 125m

1:1250

04m 4m 8m 12m 16m 20m

1:200

45 degree line

A

P
age 102



Reception 
Room

Lounge

Kitchen
/Dining

Bathroom

Bedroom

Bedroom

Bedroom
Room 5 
12 sq.m

Room 6 
10 sq.m

Room 7 
11 sq.m

Room 8 
10 sq.m

Room 4
9.5 sq.m

Kitchen/Dining/Lounge
22 sq.m

Room 3 
10.5 sq.m

Room 2 
11 sq.m

Utility 
Room

2.34 sq.m

Room 1
12.46 sq.m

Copyright of ANJUM DESIGN LTDC
 No liability will be accepted for amendments made

As shown @ A2

Status: Scale:

Project:

Drawn by:

Rev: Drg. No.

Date:

Title:

Anjum Design Limited,  Suite 104, 123 Stratford Road,         

Shirley, Solihull B90 3ND  TEL: 0121 364 7650              

E: info@anjumdesign.co.uk

Rev Description Date chkd

Aug 2021

PL02

Existing and Proposed Floor Plan & 
Elevations

54, St James Road, Oldbury B69 2DX
House to 8 rooms HMO Conversion

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

19 January 2022 

 

Application Reference DC/21/66223 

Application Received 14 October 2021 

Application Description Proposed demolition of existing buildings and 

construction of a five-storey building comprising 

of 42 No. apartments with external bin/cycle 

store, associated access, parking and 

landscaping. 

Application Address Regis Lodge, 50 George Avenue, Rowley 

Regis B65 9BD 

Applicant Black Country Housing Group 

Ward Blackheath 

Contact Officer Carl Mercer 

carl_mercer@sandwell.gov.uk 

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 Subject to no objection from the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA), that 

planning permission is granted subject to the applicant entering into a 

section 106 agreement to ensure affordable housing and to conditions 

relating to the following:- 

 

(i) External materials (compliance with submitted detail); 

(ii) Contamination; 

(iii) Noise mitigation scheme; 

(iv) Drainage to include SuDS; 

 

Page 105

Agenda Item 9



 

(v) Landscaping and boundaries (compliance with submitted detail); 

(vi) Cycle storage (compliance with submitted detail); 

(vii) Refuse storage (compliance with submitted detail); 

(viii) Electric vehicle charging (compliance with submitted detail); 

(ix) Low NOx boilers; 

(x) External lighting; 

(xi) Provision and retention of parking; 

(xii) Method statement for site working; 

(xiii) Restriction on construction hours (8:00 – 17:30 weekdays, 9:00 – 

13:00 Saturdays, no working on Sundays or bank holidays); and 

(xiv) Employment and skills plan; 

  

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal would regenerate a site which has fallen into disrepair and 

provide a contemporary building of high quality design on a gateway site 

to Blackheath town centre, close to local amenities, increasing the 

availability and choice of accommodation in the area. Additionally, the 

development is policy compliant and can be delivered with limited impact 

on the amenity of the surrounding area.   

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan? 

 

 

Strong resilient communities – The proposal would provide 

additional housing in a sustainable location. 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods – The design of 

the proposal is acceptable in respect of national and local 

planning policy. 

 

A strong and inclusive economy – Opportunities for jobs and 
apprenticeships during construction phases. 

 

 

 

Page 106



 

4 Context  

 

4.1 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee because 

the recommendation is subject to a section 106 agreement to ensure 

affordable housing. 

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 
below: 
 
Regis Lodge, George Avenue, Rowley Regis 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is unallocated in the Development Plan. 

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Planning history (including appeal decisions) 

Overlooking/loss of privacy 

Loss of light and/or outlook 

Overshadowing 

Layout and density of building 

Design, appearance and materials 

Access, highway safety, parking, traffic generation and servicing 

Contamination by a previous use 

Noise and disturbance from the scheme  

Flood risk 

Planning balance 

Planning gain (obligations, affordable housing etc) 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The site lies at the edge of Blackheath town centre with Blackheath 

Coronation Social Club to the south, two storey housing to the north and 

Page 107

https://www.google.com/maps/place/George+Ave,+Blackheath,+Rowley+Regis/@52.4778418,-2.0401484,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x48709706a6432d55:0x93fd9f6597d9c391!8m2!3d52.4778418!4d-2.0379597
https://www.google.com/maps/place/George+Ave,+Blackheath,+Rowley+Regis/@52.4778418,-2.0401484,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x48709706a6432d55:0x93fd9f6597d9c391!8m2!3d52.4778418!4d-2.0379597


 

east, and the Kingdom Central Birmingham church across Birmingham 

Road to the west. 

 

6.2 The site is currently occupied by a former council care home, of one and 

two storey design, which has been vacant for some years. The building 

lies at a lower land level than the highway of Birmingham Road, with a 

grass embankment at this boundary, but is at the same level as George 

Avenue. 

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 There is some relevant planning history for residential development. A 

planning application for 43 apartments was submitted in 2017 and 

refused by Planning Committee on grounds of insufficient parking. A 

further application was submitted for 39 apartments and was approved 

subject to conditions. 

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

DC/17/61157 Partial demolition and 

proposed conversion and 

extension to create 39 No. 

1 & 2 bed apartments 

Approved subject to 

conditions - 

31.01.2018 

DC/17/60487 Conversion and extension 

to create 43 no. 1 & 2 bed 

apartments 

Refused - 06.10.2017 

 
 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The application is submitted by Black Country Housing Group (BCHG) to 

provide social rented housing. The existing building would be 

demolished to construct a five-storey building of 42 apartments, 

comprising six, one bed apartments and 36, two bed apartments, with 

external bin/cycle stores, associated access, parking and landscaping. 

 

Page 108



 

8.2 The core of the building would be four storeys high with a fifth storey to 

the southwest corner. The end elevations to the north of the site would 

reduce to three stories. All elevations incorporate a staggered building 

line to reduce the impact of the massing and scale of the building. 

 

8.3 Parking for 33 vehicles would be available to the side and rear of the 

building, accessed from George Avenue.  

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter and 

press notice, with one objection being received. 

 

9.2 Objections 

 

The objectors raise the following issues: 

 

i) Traffic generation and parking; 

ii) Anti-social behaviour; 

iii) Loss of sunlight and privacy; and 

iv) Pollution. 

 

An immaterial point of objection has also been raised regarding loss of 

property value because of the development. 

 

9.3 Responses to objections 

 

I respond to the objectors’ comments in turn: 

 

i) Highways raise no objection to the proposal. This point will be 

discussed further in the report. 

ii) There is no evidence to suggest the provision of the apartments 

would prompt a rise in anti-social behaviour. West Midlands Police 

raise no objection to the proposal. 

Page 109



 

iii) The primary massing of the proposal would be set away from 

existing residential properties, but some impact may occur. Again, 

this point will be discussed further in the report. 

iv) Pollution Control raise no objection in respect of air quality and 

mitigation (electric vehicle charge (EVCs) bays and low NOx 

boilers), in line with the Black Country Air Quality SPD, can be 

ensured by condition. 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Planning and Transportation Policy 

 

 No objection. Urban design and highway matters raised have been 

addressed by relevant consultees and by condition. 

 

10.2 Highways 

 

 No objection in respect of layout or number of parking spaces. Highways 

are comfortable with the information contained within the submitted 

Highways Statement – Technical Note, which justifies the reduced 

parking level in this instance (discussed further in paragraphs 12.14 and 

13.8). 

 

10.3 Urban Design  

  

 The Urban Design officer has welcomed the scheme and raises no 

significant concerns. Amendments have been requested largely 

concerning materials, amenity space and boundary treatments. 

Amended plans have been received which broadly address the matters 

raised. 

 

10.4 Public Health (Air Quality)  

 

 No objection subject to conditions relating to EVC points, low NOx 

boilers and dust/emission mitigation during construction. 

 

10.5 Public Health (Contaminated Land)  

Page 110



 

 

 No objection subject to condition ensuring a desktop study and 

remediation if required. 

 

10.6 Public Heath (Noise) 

 

It is recommended that a condition is attached to any approval that 

requires the applicant to submit a noise migitation scheme to the local 

authority that meets the building envelope performance requirements set 

out noise assessment report P4940-R1-V (22 September 2021). Detailed 

drawings and specifications of any proposed acoustic glazing and 

ventilation scheme should be submitted for approval before construction 

commences. Furthermore, a construction method statement should be 

required by condition, and hours of work restricted to safeguard the 

amenity of the area during the build phase. 

  

10.7 West Midlands Police 

 

 No objection. 

 

10.8 Lead Local Flood Authority 

 

 Further information required. This is currently under review by the LLFA. 

 

10.9  Seven Trent Water 

 

 No objection subject to condition. 

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

11.2 In respect of paragraph 69 of the NPPF, this windfall site would make an 

important contribution to meeting the housing requirement of the area. 

Page 111



 

 

11.3 Considering the views of the Council’s Urban Design officer, I am of the 

opinion that the scheme is of good design, in accordance with paragraph 

126 of the NPPF. 

 

11.4 Regarding highways, paragraph 111 states that development should 

only be refused where ‘there would be an unacceptable impact on 

highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network 

would be severe’. There is no evidence that such an impact would occur. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

CSP4: Place-Making; 

HOU1: Delivering Sustainable Housing Growth; 

HOU2: Housing Density, Type and Accessibility; 

HOU3: Delivering Affordable Housing; 

TRAN2: Managing Transport Impacts of New Development; 

TRAN4: Creating Coherent Networks for Cycling and Walking; 

ENV3: Design Quality; 

ENV5: Flood Risk, Sustainable Drainage Systems Urban Heat Island 

Effect; 

ENV7: Renewable Energy; 

ENV8: Air Quality; 

EMP5: Improving Access to the Labour Market 

SAD H2: Housing Windfalls; 

SAD H3: Affordable Housing; 

SAD TRAN3: Car Parking 

SAD EMP2: Training and Recruitment; and 

SDEOS9: Urban Design Principles. 

 

12.2 In respect of CSP4 the design of the development is influenced by the 

context of the local area and would enhance the attributes the area 

offers in terms of its local character. The street scenes provide comfort 

that the scale and massing is appropriate to neighbouring properties on 

Page 112



 

Birmingham Road and George Avenue and it would not compete with or 

dominate the landmark church opposite. 

 

12.3 Whilst land is identified and allocated in the Development Plan to meet 

the borough’s sustainable housing growth, under policy HOU1 additional 

housing capacity will also be sought elsewhere through planning 

permissions on suitable sites.  As such, this proposal will assist with 

providing much needed housing within the borough. 

 

12.4 The proposal meets the requirements of policy HOU2 in that it proposes 

a range of types and sizes of accommodation which would be accessible 

by sustainable transport to residential services. The proposal would also 

achieve high quality design with minimal amenity impact. 

 

12.5 The scheme would be 100% affordable housing (HOU3 and SAD H3), 

ensured by s106. 

 

12.6 In respect of TRAN2, Highways raise no objection to the supporting 

information provided in the submitted Highways Statement – Technical 

Note. 

 

12.7 Adequate cycle parking provision (TRAN4) is shown on plan and should 

be ensured via condition. 

 

12.8 As discussed below, the proposal raises no significant concerns in 

respect of design and is therefore compliant with policies ENV3 and SAD 

EOS 9. 

 

12.9 Subject to no objection from the LLFA (ENV5), a compliance condition 

would ensure that the drainage strategy is sufficient for the proposal. 

 

12.10 The submitted Energy Statement demonstrates that the requirements of 

policy ENV7 can be met by a ‘fabric first’ approach, which aims to 

minimise the need for energy consumption through building design and 

is generally considered to be more sustainable than relying on energy 

saving technology, or renewable energy generation. 

Page 113



 

 

12.11 In respect of air quality (ENV8), the applicant has shown electric vehicle 

charging points on plan and these would be ensured by condition, as 

well as the provision of low NOx boilers by condition. 

 

12.12 Training and recruitment opportunities should be provided as part of any 

new development (EMP5 and SAD EMP2), in this instance a skills and 

employment plan has been proposed to secure apprenticeships and 

local employment opportunities as part of the construction process. 

 

12.13 The development site is not allocated for residential development in the 

SAD Policies Map and is therefore classed as a housing windfall site. 

Whilst policy H2 of the SADD document would be applicable, the policy 

officer has confirmed that the proposal meets the guidance set out in the 

policy as the site is previously developed land that is suitable for 

residential development.  

 

12.14 Of relevance to the parking provision, SAD TRAN3 states that a ‘flexible 

approach will be taken to car parking provision for new housing. 

Reduced levels of car parking provision may be accepted, particularly: in 

association with developments in town centres; close to quality public 

transport; where targeted at low car ownership groups…’. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below:- 

 

13.2  Planning history (including appeal decisions) 

 

The planning history has established residential redevelopment of the 

site. 

 

 

 

Page 114



 

 

13.3  Loss of light and/or outlook 

 

Whilst the objectors have not provided their address, it is considered that 

the most immediate impact in respect of the massing of the building 

would be on the occupiers of the adjacent dwelling to the north on 

Birmingham Road. Other dwellings are considered to be of a sufficient 

distance from the site as to not be significantly affected by the scale of 

the proposal. In addressing concerns over loss of light/outlook, whilst the 

building would be five storeys at its highest point, the building reduces in 

height to three storeys at it northern boundary. The greater massing of 

the building is therefore at the southern boundary and is sufficiently 

stepped away from the adjacent dwelling as to not have an appreciable 

impact on light or outlook. Furthermore, the rear aspect of the adjacent 

property does not overlook the site and the building should not be 

immediately noticeable from the rear windows of this dwelling. 

 

13.4 Overshadowing 

 

As stated above, the massing of the building would not significantly 

overshadow neighbouring properties due to the separation distances 

between the existing and proposed, and the primary massing of the 

building being situated at the southern boundary. 

 

13.5 Overlooking/loss of privacy 

 

There is a credible concern regarding overlooking/loss of privacy to 

dwellings to the north. The first-floor element of the existing building 

already overlooks these dwellings from north facing windows and, but 

whilst the scale of the proposal would greatly increase the existing built 

form, the building would be a U-shape, placing the massing along the 

eastern, southern and western borders of the site. Whilst the internal 

courtyard windows would overlook properties to the north, this would be 

from a significant distance, with many of the courtyard windows looking 

on to each other. The closest windows to the northern boundary would 

be in the rear elevation of the three storey elements, and these would be 

Page 115



 

an appropriate distance from rear elevations of surrounding properties, 

not to a degree which would adversely affect privacy by directly facing 

habitable room windows. Whilst rear gardens would be overlooked, due 

to the distances been the building and these gardens, the impact would 

not be oppressive or overly intrusive, in my estimation. 

 

13.6 Layout and density of building 

 

The U-shaped design of the building and staggering of the building line 

alleviates the visual impact of the massing and scale of the building and 

would provide an impressive landmark building on the approach into the 

town centre. The approach to limit the massing is successful in 

assimilating the building into the existing built form and would provide a 

positive contrast to the church on the opposite corner of Birmingham 

Road. Adequate amenity space for the apartments is provided by private 

balcony and a shared courtyard area. Refuse storage is provided for 

across the site. 

 

13.7 Design, appearance and materials 

 

As discussed above, the design of the building is considered to be a 

positive addition to the streetscene, and in addition to staggering the 

building line and its height, the contrasting materials help to soften the 

appearance of the building; the buff red brick requested by Urban Design 

picking up on the character of the local vernacular. 

 

13.8 Access, highway safety, parking, traffic generation and servicing 

 

The applicant, Black Country Housing state that car ownership amongst 

tenants is anticipated to be as low as 50% and 40 cycle parking spaces 

would be provided for the use of residents. Crucially, the development 

raises no concerns from Highways, and is policy compliant considering 

the wording of policy SAD TRAN 3. Servicing would take place within the 

site area and the access from George Avenue is adequate from a 

highway safety perspective. I have no significant concerns regarding 

these matters. 

Page 116



 

 

 

13.9 Contamination by a previous use 

 

No significant issues anticipated. The matter can be addressed by 

condition. 

 

13.10 Noise and disturbance from the scheme  

 

No significant concerns are raised over the residential use of the site and 

its impact on the surrounding area. A noise assessment is required to 

safeguard occupants of the building from noise, and a constriction 

method statement and restrictions on construction hours are required by 

condition to safeguard the amenity of the area during the build. 

 

13.11 Flood risk 

 

Final comments from the LLFA are expected but it is anticipated that a 

compliance condition will be recommended once the additional 

information has been reviewed. 

 

13.12  Planning balance 

 

The opportunity to regenerate the site with a building of high quality 

design and provide much-needed housing on this edge of centre location 

outweighs the limited impact that the development may have, as 

discussed above. 

 

13.13  Planning gain (obligations, affordable housing etc) 

 

The delivery of affordable housing will be ensured by s106 agreement.  

14 Alternative Options 

 

14.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so. Given that the benefits of providing a well-

Page 117



 

designed apartment scheme which has raised no appreciable concerns 

from consultees appear to outweigh the concerns surrounding the 

proposal, reasons for refusal would be required to be robust and 

defensible. 

15 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

Delivery of high quality housing. 

Social Value Provision of additional housing and employment 

opportunities during the build. 

16. Appendices 

Site Plan  

Context Plan 

PL002  

PL200 E 

PL201 D 

PL202 C 

PL203 C 

PL204 C 

PL300 B 

PL301  

PL302 A 

PL303 B 

Visuals plan 

Visuals plan  

Page 118



Legend

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

OS Licence NoScale

© Crow n copyright and database rights 2019
   Ordnance Survey Licence No 100023119

Not Set

Not Set

Not Set

04 January 2022

1:1114

DC/21/66223

Regis Lodge, 50 Geroge Avenue, Rowley Regis

Page 119



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 120



C

A

U

S

E

W

A

Y

B

I

R

M

I

N

G

H

A

M

 

R

O

A

D

177.4m

176.8m

S

P

R

I
N

G

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

G

E

O

R

G

E

A

V

E

N

U

E

173.7m

S

P

R

I

N

G

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

El Sub Sta

ESS

B

I

R

M

I

N

G

H

A

M

 

R

O

A

D

S

H

O

R

T

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

H

E

N

D

E

R

S

O

N

 

W

A

Y

date

status

rev

Copyright is reserved by Zebra Architects and the drawing is issued on the
condition that it is not copied either wholly or in part without first obtaining
written consent from them. Do not scale from this drawing, figured dimensions
only to be used. All dimensions to be checked on site before commencement
of any work, shop drawings or the ordering of materials. This drawing is to be
read in conjunction with appropriate consultant engineers drawings,
schedules, specification and manufacturer's information.

zebra architects ltd. is part of zebra group consulting ltd.

30 st georges square | worcester | wr1 1hx
hello@zebraarchitects.co.uk | 01905 351 472

N

location plan

Black Country Housing

zeb1601

Former Regis Lodge
Rowley Regis

PL002

Proposed Site Pla
Location Plan

September 2021

Planning

-

1 : 1250  @  A3

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number
100022432

scale

0
m

5 10 15

P
age 121



177.4m

BIRMINGHAM ROAD

14
15

1

2
3

4

5

6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13

18

19

20
107

5

1375

Euro
bin

107
5

1375

Euro
bin

107
5

1375

Euro
bin

107
5

1375

Euro
bin

107
5

1375

Euro
bin

107
5

1375

Euro
bin

bin store

26

27

28

29

30

31

24
23

22

33

17

16

cycle store
x20

cycle store
x20

drying lines

21

25

32

ra
m

p

date

status

rev

Copyright is reserved by Zebra Architects and the drawing is issued on the
condition that it is not copied either wholly or in part without first obtaining
written consent from them. Do not scale from this drawing, figured dimensions
only to be used. All dimensions to be checked on site before commencement
of any work, shop drawings or the ordering of materials. This drawing is to be
read in conjunction with appropriate consultant engineers drawings,
schedules, specification and manufacturer's information.

zebra architects ltd. is part of zebra group consulting ltd.

30 st georges square | worcester | wr1 1hx
hello@zebraarchitects.co.uk | 01905 351 472

N

BLACK COUNTRY HOUSING

zeb1601

Former Regis Lodge
Rowley Regis

PL002

Proposed Site Plan

June 2021

information

D

1 : 200  @  A1

0 2 4 6 10 14
m

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number
100022432

scale

proposed site plan

P
age 122

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
177.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
177.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
177.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
177.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
178.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
178.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
178.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
178.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
178.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
178.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
178.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
177.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
177.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
177.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
174.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
174.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
174.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
175.8



kitchen/
dining

living

bathroom

bed 1

bed 2

st.

hall

kitchen

living

dining

bed 1
bed 2

st.

bathroom

hall

kitchen

living

dining

bed 1
bed 2

st.

ba
th

ro
om

hall

kitchen/
dining

living

bathroom

bed 1

bed 2

st.

hall

kitchen

living

dining bed 1

bed 2

st.

bathroom

hall

kitchen/
dining

living

bathroom

bed 1

bed 2

st.

hall

kitchen

living

dining bed 1

bed 2

bathroom

hall

st.

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

11
00

 lt 
EU

RO
BI

N
ht:

 14
60

kitchen

bed 1
bed 2

st.

living

dining

hall

01

ground floor 1-10 first floor 11-21

bathroom

internal bin
store

02 03

05

06

07

08

10

dining

bathroom bed 2

kitchen

st.

living

st.

bed 1

hall 09

bathroom

bed 2 bed 1

st.

lift

kitchen/
dining

living04

date

status

rev

Copyright is reserved by Zebra Architects and the drawing is issued on the
condition that it is not copied either wholly or in part without first obtaining
written consent from them. Do not scale from this drawing, figured dimensions
only to be used. All dimensions to be checked on site before commencement
of any work, shop drawings or the ordering of materials. This drawing is to be
read in conjunction with appropriate consultant engineers drawings,
schedules, specification and manufacturer's information.

zebra architects ltd. is part of zebra group consulting ltd.

30 st georges square | worcester | wr1 1hx
hello@zebraarchitects.co.uk | 01905 351 472

N

BLACK COUNTRY HOUSING

zeb1601

Former Regis Lodge
Rowley Regis

PL200

Plots 1 - 10
Ground Floor Plans

June 2021

information

E

1 : 100  @  A1

0 1 2 3 5 7
m

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number
100022432

scale

GROUND FLOOR

2B3P X10 @ 61.5 SQM = 615 SQM NETT
GIA = 843.9 SQM (785.2 SQM Minus Bin Store)

P
age 123



kitchen

dining

bed 1

st.

st. bathroom

kitchen

living

dining

bed 1 bed 2

st.

bathroom

hall

living

bed 2

hall

kitchen

bed 1
bed 2

st.

living

dining

hall

bathroom

dining

bathroom bed 2

kitchen

st.

living

st.

bed 1

hall

kitchen

living

dining

bed 1

bed 2

st.st.

bathroom hall

kitchen

living

dining
bed 1

bed 2

st.

bathroom

hall

bathroom

bed 2 bed 1

st.

lift

bed 1
bed 2

kitchenliving

hall

bathroom

dining

st. st.

kitchen/
dining

living

bathroom

bed 1 bed 2

st.

hall

kitchen/
dining

living

kitchen

living

dining

bed 1

bed 2

st.st.

bathroom hall

kitchen

living

dining
bed 1

bed 2

st.

bathroom

hall

11

12

13 14

15

16

17

18

19

2021

date

status

rev

Copyright is reserved by Zebra Architects and the drawing is issued on the
condition that it is not copied either wholly or in part without first obtaining
written consent from them. Do not scale from this drawing, figured dimensions
only to be used. All dimensions to be checked on site before commencement
of any work, shop drawings or the ordering of materials. This drawing is to be
read in conjunction with appropriate consultant engineers drawings,
schedules, specification and manufacturer's information.

zebra architects ltd. is part of zebra group consulting ltd.

30 st georges square | worcester | wr1 1hx
hello@zebraarchitects.co.uk | 01905 351 472

N

BLACK COUNTRY HOUSING

zeb1601

Former Regis Lodge
Rowley Regis

PL201

Plots 11 - 21
First Floor Plans

June 2021

information

D

1 : 100  @  A1

0 1 2 3 5 7
m

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number
100022432

scale

FIRST FLOOR

2B3P X11 @ 61.5 SQM = 676.5 SQM NETT
GIA = 843.9 SQM

P
age 124



kitchen

dining

bed 1

st.

st. bathroom

kitchen

living

dining

bed 1 bed 2

st.

bathroom

hall

living

bed 2

hall

kitchen

bed 1
bed 2

st.

living

dining

hall

bathroom

dining

bathroom bed 2

kitchen

st.

living

st.

bed 1

hall

kitchen

living

dining

bed 1

bed 2

st.st.

bathroom hall

kitchen

living

dining
bed 1

bed 2

st.

bathroom

hall

bathroom

bed 2 bed 1

st.

lift

bed 1
bed 2

kitchenliving

bathroom

hall
dining

st. st.

kitchen/
dining

living

bathroom

bed 1 bed 2

st.

hall

kitchen/
dining

living

kitchen

living

dining

bed 1

bed 2

st.st.

bathroom hall

kitchen

living

dining
bed 1

bed 2

st.

bathroom

hall

22

23

24 25

26

27

28

29

30

3132

date

status

rev

Copyright is reserved by Zebra Architects and the drawing is issued on the
condition that it is not copied either wholly or in part without first obtaining
written consent from them. Do not scale from this drawing, figured dimensions
only to be used. All dimensions to be checked on site before commencement
of any work, shop drawings or the ordering of materials. This drawing is to be
read in conjunction with appropriate consultant engineers drawings,
schedules, specification and manufacturer's information.

zebra architects ltd. is part of zebra group consulting ltd.

30 st georges square | worcester | wr1 1hx
hello@zebraarchitects.co.uk | 01905 351 472

N

BLACK COUNTRY HOUSING

zeb1601

Former Regis Lodge
Rowley Regis

PL202

Plots 22 - 32
Second  Floor Plans

June 2021

information

C

1 : 100  @  A1

0 1 2 3 5 7
m

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number
100022432

scale

SECOND FLOOR

2B3P X11 @ 61.5 SQM = 676.5 SQM NETT
GIA= 843.9 SQM

P
age 125



kitchen

bed 1
bed 2

st.

living

dining

hall

bathroom

dining

bathroom bed 2

kitchen

st.

living

st.

bed 1

hall

bathroom

bed 2 bed 1

st.

lift

kitchen/
dining

living

33

35

40

41

kitchen/
dining

hall

bed 1

st.
bathroom

st.

bed 1

dining

living

office

hall
34

kitchen

dining

bathroom

hall

living

st.

kitchen

bathroom

36

kitchen/
dining

st.

bed 1

hall

living

st.

kitchen/
dining

bathroom

bed 1

st.

hall

living

st.

kitchen

bed 1
dining

bathroom

hall

living

st.

37

38

39

st.

bathroom

living

bed 1

date

status

rev

Copyright is reserved by Zebra Architects and the drawing is issued on the
condition that it is not copied either wholly or in part without first obtaining
written consent from them. Do not scale from this drawing, figured dimensions
only to be used. All dimensions to be checked on site before commencement
of any work, shop drawings or the ordering of materials. This drawing is to be
read in conjunction with appropriate consultant engineers drawings,
schedules, specification and manufacturer's information.

zebra architects ltd. is part of zebra group consulting ltd.

30 st georges square | worcester | wr1 1hx
hello@zebraarchitects.co.uk | 01905 351 472

N

BLACK COUNTRY HOUSING

zeb1601

Former Regis Lodge
Rowley Regis

PL203

Plots 33 - 41
Third  Floor Plans

June 2021

information

C

1 : 100  @  A1

0 1 2 3 5 7
m

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number
100022432

scale

THIRD FLOOR

1B2P X6 @ 50.1 SQM = 300.6 SQM NETT
2B3P X3 @ 61.5 SQM = 184.5 SQM NETT
GIA = 643 SQM

P
age 126



kitchen/
dining

living

bathroom

bed 2 bed 1

st.

lift

42

date

status

rev

Copyright is reserved by Zebra Architects and the drawing is issued on the
condition that it is not copied either wholly or in part without first obtaining
written consent from them. Do not scale from this drawing, figured dimensions
only to be used. All dimensions to be checked on site before commencement
of any work, shop drawings or the ordering of materials. This drawing is to be
read in conjunction with appropriate consultant engineers drawings,
schedules, specification and manufacturer's information.

zebra architects ltd. is part of zebra group consulting ltd.

30 st georges square | worcester | wr1 1hx
hello@zebraarchitects.co.uk | 01905 351 472

N

BLACK COUNTRY HOUSING

zeb1601

Former Regis Lodge
Rowley Regis

PL204

Plot 42
Fourth Floor Plans

June 2021

information

C

1 : 100  @  A1

0 1 2 3 5 7
m

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number
100022432

scale

FOURTH FLOOR

2B3P X1 @ 61.5 SQM
GIA  = 95.6 SQM

P
age 127



finished floor level

28
50

28
50

28
50

finished floor level

finished floor level

b i r m i n g h a m  r o a d  e l e v a t i o n  a : a

finished floor level

28
50

28
50

28
50

finished floor level

finished floor level

28
50

28
50

20
0

finished floor level

finished floor level

finished floor level

28
50

28
50

28
50

finished floor level

finished floor level

28
50

28
50

20
0

finished floor level

finished floor level

177.4m

14
15

1

2
3

4

5

6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13

18

19

20
107

5

1375

Euro
bin

107
5

1375

Euro
bin

107
5

1375

Euro
bin

107
5

1375

Euro
bin

107
5

1375

Euro
bin

107
5

1375

Euro
bin

bin store

26

27

28

29

30

31

24
23

22

33

17

16

cycle store
x20

cycle store
x20

drying lines

21

25

32

ra
m

p

date

status

rev

Copyright is reserved by Zebra Architects and the drawing is issued on the
condition that it is not copied either wholly or in part without first obtaining
written consent from them. Do not scale from this drawing, figured dimensions
only to be used. All dimensions to be checked on site before commencement
of any work, shop drawings or the ordering of materials. This drawing is to be
read in conjunction with appropriate consultant engineers drawings,
schedules, specification and manufacturer's information.

zebra architects ltd. is part of zebra group consulting ltd.

30 st georges square | worcester | wr1 1hx
hello@zebraarchitects.co.uk | 01905 351 472

N

BLACK COUNTRY HOUSING

zeb1601

Former Regis Lodge
Rowley Regis

PL300

Elevations

August 2021

Planning

B

1 : 100  @  A1

0 1 2 3 5 7
m

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number
100022432

scale

Elevations

elevation b:b

elevation c:c

A

A

B

B

C
C

P
age 128

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
177.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
177.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
177.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
177.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
177.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
177.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
175.8



finished floor level

28
50

28
50

28
50

finished floor level

finished floor level

28
50

28
50

20
0

finished floor level

finished floor level

finished floor level

28
50

28
50

28
50

finished floor level

finished floor level

28
50

28
50

20
0

finished floor level

finished floor level

finished floor level

28
50

28
50

28
50

finished floor level

finished floor level

28
50

28
50

20
0

finished floor level

finished floor level

177.4m

14
15

1

2
3

4

5

6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13

18

19

20
107

5

1375

Eurobin

107
5

1375

Eurobin
107

5

1375

Eurobin
107

5

1375

Eurobin

107
5

1375

Eurobin

107
5

1375

Eurobin

bin store

26

27

28

29

30

31

24
23

22

33

17

16

cycle store
x20

cycle store
x20

drying lines

21

25

32

ra
m

p

ram
p

ram
p

date

status

rev

Copyright is reserved by Zebra Architects and the drawing is issued on the
condition that it is not copied either wholly or in part without first obtaining
written consent from them. Do not scale from this drawing, figured dimensions
only to be used. All dimensions to be checked on site before commencement
of any work, shop drawings or the ordering of materials. This drawing is to be
read in conjunction with appropriate consultant engineers drawings,
schedules, specification and manufacturer's information.

zebra architects ltd. is part of zebra group consulting ltd.

30 st georges square | worcester | wr1 1hx
hello@zebraarchitects.co.uk | 01905 351 472

N

BLACK COUNTRY HOUSING

zeb1601

Former Regis Lodge
Rowley Regis

PL301

Elevations

August 2021

Planning

1 : 100  @  A1

0 1 2 3 5 7
m

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number
100022432

scale

Elevations

elevation e:e

elevation f:f

elevation d:d

D

D

E
E

F
F

P
age 129

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
177.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
177.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
177.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
177.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
177.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
177.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
175.8



Birmingham Road

SI
TE

 B
O

U
N

D
AR

Y

SI
TE

 B
O

U
N

D
AR

Y

173m

179m

175m

177m

187m

183m

181m

185m

171m

189m

191m

193m

195m

197m

199m

201m

203m

205m

207m

Section Line
in Foreground

177.4m

BIRMINGHAM ROAD

14
15

1

2
3

4

5

6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13

18

19

20
107

5

1375

Euro
bin

107
5

1375

Eur
obin

107
5

1375

Euro
bin

107
5

1375

Eur
obin

107
5

1375

Eur
obin

107
5

1375

Eur
obin

bin store

26

27

28

29

30

31

24
23

22

33

17

16

cycle store
x20

cycle store
x20

drying lines

21

25

32

ra
m

p

Birmingham Road

pavement

SI
TE

 B
O

U
N

D
AR

Y

SI
TE

 B
O

U
N

D
AR

Y

Section Line
in Foreground

173m

179m

175m

177m

187m

183m

181m

185m

171m

189m

191m

193m

195m

197m

199m

date

status

rev

Copyright is reserved by Zebra Architects and the drawing is issued on the
condition that it is not copied either wholly or in part without first obtaining
written consent from them. Do not scale from this drawing, figured dimensions
only to be used. All dimensions to be checked on site before commencement
of any work, shop drawings or the ordering of materials. This drawing is to be
read in conjunction with appropriate consultant engineers drawings,
schedules, specification and manufacturer's information.

zebra architects ltd. is part of zebra group consulting ltd.

30 st georges square | worcester | wr1 1hx
hello@zebraarchitects.co.uk | 01905 351 472

N

BLACK COUNTRY HOUSING

zeb1601

Former Regis Lodge
Rowley Regis

PL302

Elevations

August 2021

Planning

A

1 : 200  @  A1

0 2 4 6 10 14
m

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number
100022432

scale

proposed elevations

elevation a:a

A

elevation b:b

A

B

B

P
age 130

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
286540N

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
286560N

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
286580N

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
286600N

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
286620N

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
286640N

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
177.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
177.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
177.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
177.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
178.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
178.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
178.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
178.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
178.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
176.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
176.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
178.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
178.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
175.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
175.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
175.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
174.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
174.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
176.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
177.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
177.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
177.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
177.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
177.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
177.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
176.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
174.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
174.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
174.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
176.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
174.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
175.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
175.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
175.8



B

Balconies - Grey timber (effect) slatted with brick/timber divides 
Window & door frames - Grey
Down pipes & guttering - Colour to match windows

*Please refer to planning elevations for further details*

September 2021

Materials Plan

PL303

Zinc Effect Cladding   Dark Grey Brick     Light Grey Brick   Red Multi Brick   Pale Grey Render

P
age 131



P
age 132



P
age 133



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

19 January 2022 

 

Application Reference DC/21/66233 

Application Received 15 October 2021 

Application Description Retention of use of garage as hair salon 

(previously refused application DC/21/65576). 

Application Address 1 Hydes Road 

Wednesbury 

WS10 9SX 

Applicant Mr P Talbot 

Ward Wednesbury North  

Contact Officer Mr Anjan Dey 

anjan_dey@sandwell.gov.uk  

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is refused:- 

 

The retail use by way of its location in a residential area would be 

contrary to Town Centre Policies CEN4, CEN6 & CEN7 of Sandwell’s 

Black Country Core Strategy.  

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal would be contrary to the authority’s adopted Town Centre 

Policies in that a retail use in this location is considered to be 

 

Page 135

Agenda Item 10

mailto:anjan_dey@sandwell.gov.uk


 

inappropriate. These uses are generally identified for either Wednesbury 

town centre or one of the borough’s other defined centres.  

 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

A strong and inclusive economy – the proposal is contrary to 

aspirations to create strong economic town centres. 

4 Context  

 

4.1 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee at the 

request Councillor Elaine Costigan as she considers that the salon 

benefits the community, creating income for the Council as customers 

park on the pay and display car park at Spring Head and it does not cause 

any highway issues.  

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

1 Hydes Road, Wednesbury  

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is unallocated in the development plan. 

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Local policy 

Access, highway safety, parking & servicing 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

   6.1     This application relates to a detached property located on the northern 

side of Hydes Road, Wednesbury.  

Page 136

https://www.google.com/maps/place/1+Hydes+Rd,+Wednesbury+WS10+9SX/@52.5538195,-2.0155242,221m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x4870985e1f25544d:0x83a482c85749dd5a!8m2!3d52.5538179!4d-2.0144299


 

 

  6.2 The area is residential in character and the property is located at the 

corner with Brunswick Park Road;  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 The property has been subject to a recent planning application that was  

refused on highway safety grounds and also being contrary to local 

policies.  

 

7.2    Relevant planning applications are as follows;  

 

DC/21/65576 Retention of use of 

garage as hair salon. 

Refuse Permission: 

21.07.2021.  

  

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 This retrospective application relates to enforcement case ENF/21/11461 

and is for the retention of use of a garage that has been converted to a 

retail hair salon (Use Class E). Planning permission for the double 

garage was granted in May 2007 (DC/07/47601) and the applicant has 

confirmed its dimensions as 7.5m long by 5.5m wide by 4m high.           

 

8.2     As indicated by the Enforcement Officer, the applicant has advised that 

his spouse used to operate the business from a retail/commercial unit 

elsewhere in the borough. However, due to Covid 19 restrictions income 

from the business had stopped and she could no longer afford rent/rates 

for the commercial unit. The applicant has confirmed that staff numbers 

have been reduced; consisting of the applicant, who resides at the 

property, and 2 full time equivalent staff. Hours of business are:  

 

1000 to 1700 (Wednesday)  

1000 to 1900 (Thursday & Fridays) 

0900 to 1700 (Saturdays) 

 

 

Page 137



 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter 

without response. 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1  Highways 

 

They have assessed additional information provided by the agent 

regarding customer and staff parking arrangements, they have 

subsequently recommended a temporary consent for a period of 2 years 

to allow the local planning authority to monitor the use.   

 

10.2  Public Health (Noise) 

 

No objections to the proposal.  

 

10.3  Planning Policy  

 

They object to the proposal with regards to the appropriateness of a 

retail use in a predominantly residential area, Planning Policy confirms 

that the hair salon would be best suited to a town centre location, such 

as Wednesbury, or one of the other defined centres with the borough. 

This is set out in Black Country Core Strategy policies CEN4 

(Regeneration of Town Centres) and CEN7 (Controlling Out-Of- Centre 

Development). 

 

Policy confirms that the site is more than 300 metres away from 

Wednesbury town centre and therefore cannot be considered to be an 

edge of centre location; instead it is defined as out of centre.  

 

They also note the applicant’s planning statement argues that this location 

effectively acts as a local centre, given the variety of commercial uses 

within the vicinity.    

 

Page 138



 

In response policy planners state that the majority of the commercial uses 

identified fall along Walsall Street, which is to the west of the proposed 

site.  Whilst this area could be classed as a local centre, it is not formally 

adopted as such within the development plan.   In addition, even if this 

area was adopted as a local centre, the boundary should not stretch as 

far as the application site, as it is separated from the cluster of commercial 

businesses on Walsall Street, and is within a more stand-alone location 

within a more residential area. Furthermore, the Doctors surgery, which is 

adjacent the proposal site, is already established and is an appropriate 

use within residential areas, as it provides an important local service.  

 

It is also considered that the applicant has not demonstrated why the 

proposal cannot be located within Wednesbury Town centre itself, and has 

not proven that the proposal site is within easy and accessible walking 

distance from the centre itself. The latest centre surveys for Wednesbury 

town centre indicate that there are a significant number of vacant units 

that are suitable for this type of retail use. Utilising existing vacant units 

within Wednesbury town centre would contribute towards the daytime 

economy and contribute towards the regeneration of the town centre.   

 

Within the applicant’s Planning Statement, Under CEN6 – Meeting Local 

Needs for Shopping and Services, the agent/applicant have quoted policy 

from CEN5, which deals with district and local centres. As this location 

does not fall within a designated centre, CEN5, the policy quoted, does 

not apply.  

 

CEN6 allows for small scale convenience shops out of centre, that serve 

an essential day to day need. In an out of centre location, this would refer 

to serving the needs of the local community and meeting essential day-to-

day needs, which tends to refer to a convenience retail store, such as a 

newsagent, as this can provide essential provisions such as bread and 

milk that may be required daily. It may also include that of a post-office or 

pharmacy etc. A hairdresser would not be classed as providing an 

essential day-to-day need. Furthermore, from the latest information 

available, there is already a hair salon within the run of shops along 

Walsall Street. 

Page 139



 

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

ENV3: Design Quality    

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

CEN4: Regeneration of town centres  

CEN6: Meeting Local Needs for Shopping and Services  

CEN7: Controlling Out of Centre Development 

 

12.2 ENV3 and SAD EOS9 refer to well-designed schemes that are in scale 

and massing to the existing area.  The converted garage is considered 

to be acceptable in terms of scale etc. and therefore does not conflict 

with either policies ENV3 or SAD EOS9. 

 

12.3   Planning Policy consultation comments (10.3 above) confirms that the 

continued use of a retail hair salon in this predominantly residential area 

is not supported by policies CEN4, CEN6 & CEN7. The use would be 

best suited to a town centre location or one of the borough’s defined 

centres.  

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

 

 

Page 140



 

13.2 Local Policy (CEN4, 6 and 7) 

 

Local Policies have been referred to above (see 10.3 above) which state 

that the retention of the hair salon is contrary to relevant town centre 

policies and no evidence has been provided to demonstrate that this 

policy should be set aside. 

 

13.2  Parking, highway safety & traffic generation 

 

Highways (10.1 above) have indicated that they have highway concerns 

about the impact of the continued use of the salon and therefore would 

only recommend a temporary consent to enable the impact on the 

highway to be monitored. 

14 Alternative Options 

 

14.1 Approval of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so. It is considered that this proposal would not comply 

with relevant policies and the applicant has not demonstrated otherwise. 

15 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None  
 

Social Value None  

 

Page 141



 

16. Appendices 

 

 Location Plan 

 Context Plan 

Location plan 1  

         Site & block plan 2  

 

Page 142



Legend

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

OS Licence NoScale

© Crow n copyright and database rights 2019
   Ordnance Survey Licence No 100023119

Not Set

Not Set

Not Set

04 January 2022

1:1114

DC/21/66233

1 Hydes Road, Wednesbury

Page 143



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 144



P
age 145



0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20

m

Sh
el

te
r

13

17

3

1

29

8

2

HYDES ROAD

139.0m

1a

20

22

GROVE

15

9

11

152

28
27

4

Health Centre

26

151

7

150

75

1

22

1a

El Sub Sta

14

32

Manse

18

7

16

77

0m
16

399

18 20 0m
22

399

39916
0m

18 20

39922
0m

0m06295

08

10

0m12295

295060m

08

10

295120m

1 Hydes Road, WS10 9SX

OS MasterMap 1250/2500/10000 scale
Tuesday, October 19, 2021, ID: MPMBW-00997307 
 www.blackwellmapping.co.uk

1:500 scale print at A4, Centre: 399186 E, 295098 N

©Crown Copyright Ordnance Survey. Licence no. 100041041

1 Hydes Road,
Wednesbury,
Sandwell
WS10 9SX

Page 146



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

19 January 2022 

 

Application Reference DC/21/66293 

Application Received 2 November 2021 

Application Description Proposed new section of 2.1m high railings and 

relocation of access gate to the front of private 

footway (Resubmission of previously withdrawn 

application DC/21/66021). 

Application Address Footpath Adjacent To The Front Garden Of 1 

Asbury Walk, Great Barr, Birmingham, B43 

6HF 

Applicant Asbury Walk Management Company 

Ward Charlemont With Grove Vale 

Contact Officer William Stevens 

William_stevens@sandwell.gov.uk   

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to: 

 

(i) The fence and gate being painted to match in colour to the existing 
entrance gates 

  

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal is of satisfactory design that would provide added security 

for residents of this private road.    

 

Page 147

Agenda Item 11

mailto:William_stevens@sandwell.gov.uk


 

 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Strong resilient communities 

4 Context  

 

4.1 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee because 

the application has generated a number of neighbour responses both 

objecting to and in favour of the application.  

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

Asbury Walk, Great Barr 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is unallocated and relates to the entrance to this private estate.  

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are: - 

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site relates to the footpath on the southern side of 

Asbury Walk, Great Barr. Asbury Walk is a private road that serves 

seven properties. The area is residential in nature.   

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 Planning Permission was granted in 2005 for the demolition of 75 Pear 

Tree Drive and the erection of six detached houses and one bungalow. 

Page 148

https://www.google.com/maps/@52.5467245,-1.9534878,3a,75y,89.74h,89.73t/data=!3m7!1e1!3m5!1skX8jYNL167w4_1ljkUkTDA!2e0!6shttps:%2F%2Fstreetviewpixels-pa.googleapis.com%2Fv1%2Fthumbnail%3Fpanoid%3DkX8jYNL167w4_1ljkUkTDA%26cb_client%3Dmaps_sv.tactile.gps%26w%3D203%26h%3D100%26yaw%3D71.104034%26pitch%3D0%26thumbfov%3D100!7i13312!8i6656


 

To the front of the drive is an existing fence (approved under reference 

DC/13/56445) with gates for pedestrian and vehicular access. Members 

will note from 4.2 above, the railings do not cover the entire frontage. 

The applicant proposed to extend the railings over the front lawn of no: 1 

Asbury Walk (DC/21/66021), however communications and enquiries 

relating to the incorrect ownership certificates being served, this 

application was withdrawn.  

 

7.2 Following objections from a resident of Asbury Walk, the plans of 

DC/13/56445 were amended so no fence was adjacent to the front 

garden of 1 Asbury Walk for garden maintenance. Therefore, as 

mentioned above the implementation of the 2013 application left a gap in 

the fence line.   

 

7.3  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

7.4  

DC/05/45148 Demolition of existing 

dwelling at 75 Pear Tree 

Drive and proposed 

erection of 6no. detached 

houses, 1no. bungalow 

and associated garages. 

 

Grant Permission 

Subject to Conditions 

 

25.11.2005 

DC/13/56445 Proposed automatic gates 
and fencing across private 
road entrance. 
 

Granted Permission 

 

02.12.2013 

DC/21/66021 Proposed new 2.1m high 

railings to secure 

boundary. 

 

Application Withdrawn 

 

16.09.2021 

   

 

 

 
 

Page 149



 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant proposes to erect 2.1m high railings and relocate one of 

the existing access gates to the front of the existing private footway 

(adjacent to the existing alleyway). The agent has confirmed that all 

supporting posts will be off the private highway and built on the private 

footpath.  

 

8.2  Unlike the 2013 application (see point 7.2), this new fence will be 

erected to the back of the kerb stone, not the back of pavement, so the 

resident of 1 Asbury Walk can still maintain their front garden.  

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 Nine letters of publicity were sent including all seven properties within 

Asbury Walk. Three objections have been received and five letters in 

support (however two of those letters of support have been sent from the 

same property).  

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) Safety concerns in that the railings will be built to the edge of the 

footpath leaving no room for pedestrians to escape should 

pedestrians be on the road and a vehicle drives too close,  

ii) Concerns have been raised about children extending their arms 

through the proposed railings and being hit by a car, 

iii) Locking of the gates will inhibit the postman from accessing the 

estate,  

iv) Once the new gate is in position, a reduced gate width of between 

630mm and 800mm would be provided, whereas gates should be 

900mm to allow for wheel chair access, and 

v) The new fence will enclose the front garden of no: 1 Asbury Walk, 

 

Page 150



 

Immaterial objections have been raised regarding the withdrawn 

application DC/21/66021 and the incorrect ownership certificate served 

to the Council which led to the application being withdrawn, as well as 

property values and affordability (I assume from the shared cost of the 

development of the scheme and potential ongoing maintenance).  

 

9.3 Responses to objections 

 

I respond to the objector’s comments in turn: 

 

i) Any pedestrian walking down Asbury Walk will either be inside the 

proposed gated area or on the footpath on the opposite side of 

Asbury Walk, accessing the estate from the existing pedestrian 

access. In my opinion, there is no need for pedestrians to be on 

the road at this point. The Council’s Highway Department raise no 

concerns (refer to 10.1), 

ii) Other railings and gates are already in place since the approval of 

DC/13/56445 (see below). I do not envisage the extension of the 

existing railings will cause any safety concerns, 

iii) Currently any pedestrian visitor to the site would have to use the 

existing communication system on the gate post. However, the 

road is not secure and pedestrians could walk over the front 

garden of 1 Asbury Walk,  

 

Page 151



 

 

iv) At this location, there is currently a pinch point (see above) where 

the corner of Asbury Walk and the existing alleyway meet, limiting 

access for wheel chair users. On the opposite side of Asbury Walk 

is a significantly wider pedestrian gate (see image below) than the 

one to be relocated to be positioned next the existing alleyway. 

Therefore, wheelchair users would still be able to access the 

private road. However, the plans do indicate that the width of the 

proposed gate would be 880mm.  

 

 
 

v) The proposed fence would be adjacent to the kerb stone of Asbury 

Walk, and therefore would enclose a small part of the front garden 

of 1 Asbury Walk (see photograph above), however, the moving 

forward of the existing gate would, in my opinion, open up the 

garden at the point where the existing gate is, whilst providing 

added security to the residents of the private road. 

 

 

 

Page 152



 

9.4 Support  

 

9.4.1 The reason for supporting this application are: 

 

i) The proposal would secure the existing open boundary preventing 

various crimes that have been experienced by existing residents 

and was recommended by West Midlands Police to eliminate the 

constant occurrence of crime within the cul-de-sac, and  

ii) The proposed gates would have no effect on access to any of the 

properties. 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Highways 

 

 The Council’s Highways Team have been consulted and have raised no 

objections to the proposal. 

 

10.2 West Midlands Police 

 

 West Midland Police have been consulted without response.  

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

ENV3: Design Quality    

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

 

Page 153



 

12.2 The proposal complies with both ENV3 and ESO9 in that the 

development is of satisfactory design.  

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in sections 11 and 12.  

14 Alternative Options 

 

14.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so. However, in my opinion, the proposal is of 

satisfactory design, which would secure the private road without causing 

any highway safety issues.  

15 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None  
 

Social Value None  

 

16. Appendices 

Site Plan  

Context Plan 

Plan No: 2050-p01 

Plan No: 2050-p02 

Plan No: 2050-p03 

Page 154



Legend

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

OS Licence NoScale

© Crow n copyright and database rights 2019
   Ordnance Survey Licence No 100023119

Not Set

Not Set

Not Set

05 January 2022

1:1114

DC/21/66293

Footpath Adjacent To The Front Garden Of 1 Asbury Walk

Page 155



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 156



SITE PLAN AS EXISTING SITE PLAN AS EXISTING

SITE PLAN

Proposed new section of railing
 and new pedestrian gate shown in red

SITE PLAN AS PROPOSED
PROPOSED RAILINGS SHOWN IN RED
REFER TO ELEVATION DRAWING FOR DETAILS

SCALE 1:200 @ A3

P
age 157



PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO GATE AND RAILING - GATE TO BE REMOVED
& RELOCATED TO THE FRONT OF THE PRIVATE FOOTWAY.

ELEVATION OF THE
PEDESTRIAN GATE

drawing no 2050_p02

P
age 158



'Sa.l--e5%aubrtryWl
b/y/)/A gplegooo! i{g^rns!Z0Z lu6u,(doc u,t oJO €r

IV
N

tr)
N
N
cr)
ort

olr)
NCO
O
$

oo
co
cv)
O
$

ssJlau
m
020t0

- -T7Y @
g
$

,6COdS

89Zt6Z

9LZV6Z

00t?62

gztn6Z

qL
wv'ozL

Y]VAA AUNESV

{N

09e?62

\tWZ'Z

Qe;,'7

to

r

tr

69

/

I
,/

,,//

#
7

4,

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

19 January 2022 

 

Application Reference DC/21/66295 

Application Received 2 November 2021 

Application Description Proposed single storey front/side extension to 

existing outbuilding in rear garden for use as a 

home office/gym. 

Application Address 125 Bleakhouse Road 

Oldbury 

B68 0LT 

Applicant Mr Arun Prkash & Ramya Ramamurthy Rajan 

Ward Old Warley 

Contact Officer Mr Andrew Dean  

andrew_dean@sandwell.gov.uk  

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to: 

 

(i) External materials.  
(ii) The outbuilding shall be used for purposes that remain ancillary to 

the main dwelling house.   

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 It is considered the proposed outbuilding is acceptable in its design, 

appearance and scale and would not result in any significant loss of 

amenity to neighbouring residential properties. A condition to ensure that 

 

Page 161

Agenda Item 12

mailto:andrew_dean@sandwell.gov.uk


 

the use of the outbuilding would be for purposes that are ancillary to 

main dwellinghouse has been included within the recommendation.  

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods – The design of 

the proposal is acceptable in respect of national and local 

planning policy. 

4 Context  

 

4.1 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee as six 

material planning objections to the proposal have been received 

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

125 Bleakhouse Road, Oldbury 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is unallocated within the development plan.  

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Planning history 

Design, appearance and materials 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application relates to a detached residential dwelling located at the 

junction of Bleakhouse Road and Edward Road, Oldbury. The character 

of the surrounding area is residential in nature.   

 

Page 162

https://www.google.com/maps/place/125+Bleakhouse+Rd,+Oldbury+B68+0LT/@52.4699679,-1.9990025,120m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x48709633795cf245:0x5ab6d7896d4760e9!8m2!3d52.4699756!4d-1.9991677


 

6.2 The applicant is proposing to erect a detached ancillary outbuilding in 

the rear garden of the residential property adjacent to the rear boundary.  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 The property has been subject to two recent planning applications. A 

number of extensions to the main dwellinghouse were approved under 

application reference DC/21/65813 and a proposal to create a separate 

planning unit in the rear garden by erecting a detached outbuilding to be 

used as a Barbers shop was refused under application reference 

DC/21/65840. The grounds for refusal were as follows:- 

 

i) Noise and disturbance from increased comings and goings.  

ii) The proposal being contrary to policy CEN6 (Meeting local needs 

for shopping & services) in that no evidence of justification was 

provided as to why the proposal couldn’t have been located within 

Brandhall Local Centre.  

iii) No off-street parking was being provided for the proposal.  

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

DC/21/65813 Proposed single storey 

front and rear, two storey 

front/side/rear and first 

floor side extensions with 

first floor rear balcony. 

Grant Permission 

subject to conditions 

08.10.2021.  

DC/21/65840 Proposed single storey 

outbuilding in rear garden 

to be used as a Barbers 

shop. 

Application Refused 

24.09.2021 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant is proposing to extend and increase the height of the 

existing pebble dash concrete panel outbuilding which would be used as 

an ancillary home office/gym by the applicant. The extended outbuilding 

Page 163



 

would measure 6.5 metres (L) by 8 metres (W) and have an overall 

height of 3.626 metres (2.55 metres to eaves).  

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter, with 

6 objections against the proposal being received. 

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) The objectors believe the applicants intention is to operate a 

business from this property which would cause the same issues as 

the previously mentioned refused application for a Barbers shop. 

This includes traffic concerns, car parking, air pollution, impact of a 

commercial unit in a residential street and noise and disturbance 

from comings and goings.  

ii) The proposed outbuilding would look out of place and an eyesore 

in the street given the proposed size and height.  

iii) Noise concerns.  

iv) Drainage issues caused by more land being covered by buildings.  

v) Loss of rear garden green space. 

vi) Concerns regarding the access to the property from Edward Road. 

 

Immaterial objections have been raised regarding loss of property value, 

problems arising during the construction period and why does the 

applicant need to build another outbuilding when he already has one.   

 

9.3 Responses to objections 

 

I respond to the objector’s comments in turn: 

 

(i) The previous application for a commercial unit on the property to 

be used as a Barbers shop was refused by the Local Planning 

Authority (LPA). The current application is for an ancillary 

Page 164



 

outbuilding only, which would be used by the applicant as a home 

office/gym and not as a commercial unit. The application is 

therefore being assessed as it has been applied for. If the 

applicant was to convert the outbuilding into a commercial unit, the 

LPA have enforcement powers to investigate and take action if 

required.  

(ii) I do not consider the proposal to be out of keeping within the street 

scene. The outbuilding proposed is single storey, has been 

designed to be set off the boundary fence adjacent to the highway 

by 0.7m at the rear increasing to 1.3m at the front and has been 

designed with a pitched roof to improve its appearance within the 

street scene. The applicant could erect an outbuilding with the 

same footprint as proposed under permitted development should 

the overall height be reduced to measure no more than 2.5m.  

(iii) As the proposed use would be ancillary to the use of the main 

dwellinghouse, I do not consider neighbouring properties would 

suffer significant levels of noise disturbance.  

(iv) The majority of the area in question is covered by existing 

outbuildings and hard standing. Only a small area of grass would 

therefore be lost as a result of the proposal therefore having limited 

impact on drainage. The LPA have no powers to prevent the 

applicant from replacing grass/green space within an enclosed rear 

garden with hardstanding.  

(v) As indicated in (iv) above, The LPA have no powers to prevent the 

applicant from replacing grass/green space within an enclosed rear 

garden with hardstanding.  

(vi) An existing gated access is already present from Edward Road to 

the applicant’s rear garden.  

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

There are no statutory consultation responses to report for this 

application. 

 

 

 

Page 165



 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

ENV3: Design Quality    

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

 

12.2 ENV3 and SAD ESO9 encourage high quality design. I consider the 

design of the proposed outbuilding to be acceptable in its appearance. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2  Planning history 

 

A recent application to create a separate planning unit in the rear garden 

by erecting an outbuilding to be used as a Barbers shop was refused 

permission under application reference DC/21/65840. The current 

application differs from the refused application in that the current 

proposal is seeking to erect an ancillary outbuilding to be used by the 

home owners as a home office/gym. The use of the proposed 

outbuilding would not be for commercial purposes and ancillary 

outbuildings for the use of residents within the curtilage of a 

dwellinghouse are common and not unreasonable. A condition to ensure 

the use of the outbuilding remains ancillary to the main dwellinghouse 

has been included within the recommendation.  

 

Page 166



 

13.3 Design, appearance and materials 

 

I am satisfied the design, appearance and scale of the proposed 

outbuilding is acceptable with the proposed materials (pebble dash 

render) matching the materials of the outbuilding currently in situ.   

14 Alternative Options 

 

14.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so. In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant policies and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.     

15 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None. 
 

Social Value None. 

 

16. Appendices 

 

Site Plan  

Context Plan 

D-020 REV A 

D-021 REV A 

D-022 REV A 

 

Page 167



 

 

 

Page 168



Legend

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

OS Licence NoScale

© Crow n copyright and database rights 2019
   Ordnance Survey Licence No 100023119

Not Set

Not Set

Not Set

05 January 2022

1:1114

DC/21/66295

125 Bleakhouse Road, Oldbury

Page 169



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 170



P
age 171



P
age 172



P
age 173



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Planning Committee 

19 January 2022 

Subject: Applications Determined Under Delegated 
Powers 

Director: Director of Regeneration and Growth 
Tony McGovern  

Contact Officer: John Baker 
Service Manager – Development Planning and 
Building Consultancy 
John_Baker@sandwell.gov.uk  

Alison Bishop  
Development Planning Manager 
Alison_Bishop@sandwell.gov.uk 

1 Recommendations 

1.1 That the Planning Committee notes the applications determined under 
delegated powers by the Director – Regeneration and Growth set out in 
the attached Appendix. 

2 Reasons for Recommendations 

2.1 This report is submitted to inform the Committee of the decisions on 
applications determined under delegated powers by the Director – 
Regeneration and Growth. 

Page 175

Agenda Item 13

mailto:John_Baker@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:Alison_Bishop@sandwell.gov.uk


 

 
3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

  

We now have many new homes to meet a full 
range of housing needs in attractive 
neighbourhoods and close to key transport 
routes. 
 
Our distinctive towns and neighbourhoods are 
successful centres of community life, leisure and 
entertainment where people increasingly choose 
to bring up their families. 
 
Sandwell now has a national reputation for 
getting things done, where all local partners are 
focused on what really matters in people’s lives 
and communities. 

  

  

 
 
4 Context and Key Issues 
 
4.1 The applications determined under delegated powers are set out in the 

Appendix. 
 
 
5 Alternative Options 
 
 There are no alternative options.  
 
 
6 Implications 
 
Resources: There are no implications in terms of the Council’s 

strategic resources. 
Legal and 
Governance: 

The Director – Regeneration and Growth has taken 
decisions in accordance with powers delegated under 
Part 3 (Appendix 5) of the Council’s Constitution. 

Risk: There are no risk implications associated with this 
report. 

Equality: There are no equality implications associated with this 
report. 

Page 176



 

Health and 
Wellbeing: 

There are no health and wellbeing implications 
associated with this report. 

Social Value There are no implications linked to social value with 
this report. 

 
 
7 Appendices 
 
 Appendix 1 - Applications determined under delegated powers by the 
 Director – Regeneration and Growth. 
 
 
8 Background Papers 
 
 There are no background papers 
 
 

Page 177



SANDWELL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
Applications determined under delegated powers by the Director – Regeneration and 

Growth since your last Committee Meeting 
 

REPORT FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY 
 

Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

    

DC/21/65667 
 
Newton 

190 Hamstead Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5BJ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension, first floor 
rear extension to extend 
existing flat and 
additional parking. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/65745 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

9 - 17 Victoria Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 8ET 
 

Proposed two storey roof 
extension to create new 
fourth and fifth floors to 
provide 12 No. residential 
units, external alterations 
and associated parking, 
servicing and external 
works. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/65960 
 
Friar Park 

19 Shelton Close 
Wednesbury 
WS10 0TZ 
 

Proposed two storey side 
and single storey rear 
and front extensions. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66031 
 
Newton 

132 Newton Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6BL 

Proposed boundary wall 
and gates. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

Page 178



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66050 
 
Soho & Victoria 

British Heart 
Foundation Furniture 
And Electrical 
Unit 4 
Cape Hill Retail 
Centre 
Cape Hill 
Smethwick 
B66 4PH 
 

Proposed installation of 
palisade gates/fencing to 
loading bay. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66124 
 
Rowley 

37 - 39 And Rear Of 
45 Hawes Lane 
Rowley Regis 
B65 9AL 
 

Proposed demolition of 
existing building and 
erection of 4 No. 
detached dwellings with 
associated car parking. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/6736A 
 
Old Warley 

4 Wolverhampton 
Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0LH 
 

Proposed 2 No. internally 
illuminated fascia signs 
to front/side and 1 No. 
illuminated door 
surround. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66177 
 
Great Bridge 

Land Adjacent To 
27 Sheepwash Lane 
Tipton 

Proposed 2 no. 3 
bedroom semi-detached 
dwellings and associated 
parking. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66212 
 
Old Warley 

98 Apsley Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0QU 
 

Demolition of existing 
conservatory and 
proposed single storey 
side and rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

Page 179



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

PD/21/01935 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

25 Graham Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 4ED 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.00m L x 
4.00m H (2.70m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66230 
 
St Pauls 

20 Jacmar Crescent 
Smethwick 
B67 7LE 

Retention of outbuilding 
in rear garden. 

Grant 
Retrospective 
Permission 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

PD/21/01936 
 
Smethwick 

16 Dorothy Road 
Smethwick 
B67 6JP 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
2.60m H (2.40m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66248 
 
Bristnall 

21 Brookfields Road 
Oldbury 
B68 9QT 
 

Proposed access ramp 
with handrails to front. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66254 
 
Oldbury 

13 Lower City Road 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 2HA 
 

Proposed single/two 
storey side and single 
storey rear extensions. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

PD/21/01957 
 
Newton 

Forge Farm 
Forge Lane 
West Bromwich 
B71 3SY 
 

Proposed demolition of 
farm house and 
associated outbuildings. 

Grant Demolition 
Consent 
 
24th November 
2021 

    

Page 180



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/65888 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

165 Park Lane 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9RZ 

Proposed single and two 
storey side and rear 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66037 
 
Bristnall 

78 Salop Road 
Oldbury 
B68 9AB 

Proposed single storey 
rear and two storey side 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66071 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

4 Packwood Drive 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6BD 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension, and 
relocation of patio steps 
at rear. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66116 
 
St Pauls 

23 Jacmar Crescent 
Smethwick 
B67 7LE 

Proposed single and two 
storey side and single 
storey rear extensions. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

PD/21/01910 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

Unit I 
Park Lane Industrial 
Estate 
West Bromwich 
B21 8LE 

Proposed part change of 
use of ground and first 
floor offices to 8 no. self-
contained flats with 
associated car parking. 

Permitted 
Development 
Refused 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

Page 181



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66134 
 
Bristnall 

95 Moat Road 
Oldbury 
B68 8ED 

Proposed first floor 
extension, two storey 
side and front extension, 
canopy to front and 
outbuilding to rear. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66147 
 
Great Bridge 

2 Oakley Avenue 
Tipton 
DY4 0PR 

Single and two storey 
rear extension 
(amendment to 
previously approved 
application 
DC/21/65548). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/6735A 
 
Blackheath 

265 Oldbury Road 
Rowley Regis 
B65 0PP 
 

Proposed 1 No. digital 
LED wall panel. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66176 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

4 Marnham Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 4AB 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension (Lawful 
Development Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66191 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

44 Edward Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 8NU 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

Page 182



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66197 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

35 Holly Wood 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6EH 

Proposed front porch and 
new pitched roof over 
existing garage. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

PD/21/01939 
 
Newton 

322 Hamstead Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5EH 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

PD/21/01940 
 
Hateley Heath 

5 Moorlands Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 2EP 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.00m L x 
3.80m H (3.00m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

PD/21/01941 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

32 Stanway Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 1RW 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.50m L x 
3.90m H (2.90m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66276 
 
Bristnall 

64 Pryor Road 
Oldbury 
B68 9QJ 

Proposed single storey 
rear & side extension 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

PD/21/01945 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

27 Oakeswell Street 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9AH 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.50m L x 
4.00m H (2.80m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
26th November 
2021 

Page 183



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

    

PD/21/01947 
 
Smethwick 

300 Queens Road 
Smethwick 
B67 6PE 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 7.50m L x 
4.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

PD/21/01948 
 
Abbey 

Pheasant Inn 
273 Abbey Road 
Smethwick 
B67 5NQ 
 

Proposed demolition of 
The Pheasant Public 
House. 

Grant Demolition 
Consent 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

PD/21/01951 
 
Oldbury 

19A Gate Street 
Tipton 
DY4 7SP 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 3.297m L x 
3.050m H (2.60m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

PD/21/01952 
 
Old Warley 

8 Walters Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0QA 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.00m L x 
3.62m H (2.52m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
26th November 
2021 

    

DC/21/66150 
 
Soho & Victoria 

Yevs And Company 
Certified 
Accountants 
130 Cape Hill 
Smethwick 
B66 4PH 
 

Proposed two storey rear 
extension and installation 
of 2 No. security bollards 
to front. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
30th November 
2021 

    

PD/21/01781 
 
Smethwick 

23 Valley Road 
Smethwick 
B67 6JE 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.0m L x 
3.9m H (2.9m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder 
required and 
granted 
 
1st December 
2021 

Page 184



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

    

DC/21/66076 
 
Newton 

92 Green Lane 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5LG 
 

Proposed single storey 
front extension, and 
single and two storey 
side/rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66096 
 
Tipton Green 

The Old Manse 
85 Dudley Road 
Tipton 
DY4 8ED 

Proposed conversion of 
vehicle storage area to 
deceased storage area, 
removal of existing 
refrigeration unit to 
include 2 no. additional 
car parking bays and 2 
no. coffin stores, and 
fencing. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66127 
 
Hateley Heath 

Front Garden Of 
21 Trotters Lane 
West Bromwich 
B71 2QE 

Proposed 2 bed 
detached dwelling with 
associated parking 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66162 
 
Hateley Heath 

11 Hall Green Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 3JS 
 

Proposed single storey 
side/rear extension and 
re-positioning of external 
access stairs to side and 
rear. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66172 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

11 Julia Gardens 
West Bromwich 
B71 3NT 
 

Proposed single storey 
front extension. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

Page 185



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66180 
 
Smethwick 

26 Ford Street 
Smethwick 
B67 7QX 
 

Retention of single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Retrospective 
Permission 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66184 
 
Soho & Victoria 

21 New Hope Road 
Smethwick 
B66 3TX 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66190 
 
Tipton Green 

46 Vernon Avenue 
Tipton 
DY4 8EJ 

Proposed two storey side 
extension, loft conversion 
and replacement porch to 
front. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66200 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

11 Snapdragon 
Drive 
Walsall 
WS5 4RE 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66202 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

75 Wolseley Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 0LR 

Proposed single storey 
rear/side extension and 
ramp to side and rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

Page 186



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66204 
 
Langley 

The Bulls Head Inn  
389 Birchfield Lane 
Oldbury 
B69 1AQ 

Retention of raised 
decking and an open 
pergola forming external 
seating area at front. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Retrospective 
Consent 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66205 
 
Oldbury 

115 Temple Way 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 3JR 
 

Proposed two storey 
side/rear and single 
storey front/side 
extensions and two 
storey side extension. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66213 
 
Friar Park 

7 Woden Road East 
Wednesbury 
WS10 0RQ 
 

Proposed single and two 
storey side and rear 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66215 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

21 Red House Park 
Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6ND 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66241 
 
St Pauls 

8 Berry Drive 
Smethwick 
B66 1RN 

Proposed loft conversion. Grant 
Permission 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66257 
 
Old Warley 

3 Grove Road 
Oldbury 
B68 9JL 

Proposed hip to gable 
roof extension with rear 
dormer (Revised 
application 
DC/21/66053). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

Page 187



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

    

DC/21/66263 
 
Oldbury 

1 Sandwell Court 
Oldbury 
B69 4EA 

Proposed two storey side 
extension, raising of roof 
height, loft conversion 
with 2 No. side dormer 
windows (Revised 
application 
DC/21/65870). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66264 
 
Great Bridge 

20 Arthur Road 
Tipton 
DY4 0NL 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66267 
 
Soho & Victoria 

92 Kinsey Road 
Smethwick 
B66 4SL 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66268 
 
Rowley 

10 Linton Road 
Cradley Heath 
B64 5NR 

Proposed two storey and 
first floor side extensions. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66277 
 
Friar Park 

293A Crankhall Lane 
Wednesbury 
WS10 0DX 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension and 
ramped access to front 
and side (Revision of 
DC/21/65635). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

Page 188



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66278 
 
Abbey 

16 Pitcairn Road 
Smethwick 
B67 5NF 

Proposed front porch 
extension, first floor side 
extension, single storey 
rear extension, dormer to 
rear and outbuilding in 
rear garden. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66288 
 
Soho & Victoria 

4 Amity Close 
Smethwick 
B66 3AB 
 

Retention of rear 
conservatory. 

Grant 
Retrospective 
Permission 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01954 
 
St Pauls 

97 St Stephens 
Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 4LP 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.40m H (2.60m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
1st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66154 
 
Oldbury 

21 Church Street 
Oldbury 
B69 3AF 
 

Proposed change of use 
from veterinary centre to 
6 No. bedroom care 
home. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
2nd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/65732 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

301 High Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 8ND 

Proposed first and 
second floor extensions 
to front and rear to create 
9 No. self-contained 
apartments. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

Page 189



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/65991 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

29 Hollyhedge Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 3BS 

Proposed replacement of 
fencing with wall piers 
and metal railings 
(amendment to 
previously refused 
application 
DC/21/65666). 

Grant 
Permission 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66063 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

51 Churchfields 
Road 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9DY 
 

Proposed two storey side 
and rear extension, and 
loft conversion with 
dormer window to rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66068 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

Former Site Of The 
Little Garden Centre 
97 - 101 Bromford 
Lane 
West Bromwich 
B70 7HN 

Proposed variation of 
conditions 1 and 8 and 
removal of condition 16 
of DC/06/46034 
(Demolition of garden 
centre & erection of 7 
houses and 2 
apartments).  Conditions 
1 and 8  - Amended car 
parking arrangement.  
Condition 16 - Security 
gates are no longer 
required. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66074 
 
Blackheath 

78 Waterfall Lane 
Cradley Heath 
B64 6RL 

Proposed demolition of 
existing public house and 
development of 3 No. 
houses (Outline 
application for access, 
appearance, layout and 
scale). 

Grant Outline 
Permission with 
Conditions 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

Page 190



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66130 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

115 Wolseley Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 0LR 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66135 
 
Rowley 

Land To The Rear 
Of 12 And 13 
Elmhurst Avenue 
And 
Reservoir Road 
Rowley Regis 
B65 9HD 
 

Proposed 1 No. 4 
bedroom dwelling with 
detached garage and 
parking. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66137 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

66 Longleat 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6QD 

Single storey front and 
rear extensions and 
rendering to existing 
elevations. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66179 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

6 Perry Place 
West Bromwich 
B70 0PE 
 

Proposed first floor side 
extension above garage. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66183 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

3 Spring Crescent 
Cradley Heath 
B64 7LL 
 

Proposed excavation of 
ground level with new 
retaining walls to create 
driveway and relocation 
of steps. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

Page 191



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66201 
 
St Pauls 

1A Michael Road 
Smethwick 
B67 7LH 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension, two 
storey side extension 
with door and roof 
canopy to front. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01927 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

8 Devonshire Drive 
West Bromwich 
B71 4AA 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.30m L x 
3.00m H (2.65m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66206 
 
Abbey 

562 Bearwood Road 
Smethwick 
B66 4BS 

Proposed change of use 
from a bank (financial 
and professional services 
use) to an adult gaming 
centre (sui generis). 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/6737A 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

Advertisement 
Hoarding Adjacent 
Railway Bridge 
Corngreaves Road 
Cradley Heath 

Proposed upgrade of 
existing 48 sheet advert 
to support digital poster. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66217 
 
Bristnall 

27 Hollyoake Close 
Oldbury 
B68 8NL 

Proposed two storey side 
and single storey front 
and rear extensions. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

Page 192



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66221 
 
Abbey 

55 Milcote Road 
Smethwick 
B67 5BQ 

Proposed roof alterations 
forming a loft conversion, 
including a front and rear 
dormer and raising the 
ridge height. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66222 
 
Smethwick 

4 High Street 
Smethwick 
B66 1DX 
 

Proposed first floor rear 
extension to create 1 No. 
self-contained flat. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66231 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

25A York Crescent 
West Bromwich 
B70 0JT 
 

Proposed first floor side 
extension and single 
storey front porch 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66249 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

Side Garden Of 2 
Arran Close 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 7AD 

Proposed four bedroom 
house and garage. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66250 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

25 Cambridge Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 8HG 

Proposed loft conversion 
with dormer to rear 
(Lawful Development 
Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

Page 193



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66261 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

Site Of The Little 
Garden Centre 
97 - 101 Bromford 
Lane 
West Bromwich 
 
 

Proposed additional pair 
of semi-detached houses 
to previously approved 
application DC/06/46034. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01943 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

38 Chatsworth 
Avenue 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6QN 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4:00m L x 
3.60m H (2.70m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01944 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

28 Pear Tree Close 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6JB 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.0m L x 
3.51m H (2.7m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01963 
 
Rowley 

1 Scotwell Close 
Rowley Regis 
B65 8DF 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.00m L x 
3.50m H (2.30m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
3rd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/65861 
 
Great Bridge 

9 Sheepwash Lane 
Tipton 
DY4 7JF 
 

Retention of use as bed 
and breakfast on first and 
second floors and shisha 
bar at ground floor, and 
proposed single storey 
extension to be used as 
storage (amendment to 
previously refused 
application 
DC/21/65299). 

Refuse 
permission 
 
8th December 
2021 

    

Page 194



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66252 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

17 Forge Lane 
Cradley Heath 
B64 5AL 

Proposed single/two 
storey side extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
8th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66280 
 
Newton 

94 Highfield Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5AJ 
 

Proposed two storey rear 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
8th December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01953 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

22 Wilderness Lane 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 7RU 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
4.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
8th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66306 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

42 Charlemont 
Crescent 
West Bromwich 
B71 3DA 
 

Proposed porch and 
canopy to front 
(previously approved 
application 
DC/21/66036). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
8th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66325 
 
Bristnall 

28 Kenelm Road 
Oldbury 
B68 8PF 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
8th December 
2021 

    

Page 195



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66047 
 
Great Bridge 

James W Shenton 
Limited 
Tinsley Street 
Tipton 
DY4 7LQ 
 

Part demolition of 
existing buildings and 
proposed refurbishment 
of retaining structures, 
additional new industrial 
units, and parking area 
for uses B2 and B8. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
10th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66100 
 
Old Warley 

141 Apsley Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0QT 
 

Proposed two storey 
side, single storey 
front/rear extensions with 
loft conversion and rear 
dormer window. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
10th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/65903 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

10 Pennyhill Lane 
West Bromwich 
B71 3RW 

Proposal first floor side 
extension and loft 
conversion. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
13th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/65924 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

31 Hallam Street 
West Bromwich 
B71 4HF 
 

Retention of first floor 
rear/side extension, and 
loft conversion including 
raising of roof to the rear 
wing to include dormer to 
rear. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
13th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/65948 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

49 - 51 Upper High 
Street 
Wednesbury 
WS10 7HJ 

Proposed change of use 
of retail shop to 
restaurant (Class E) and 
hot food takeaway (Sui 
Generis) with extraction 
duct to rear. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
13th December 
2021 

    

Page 196



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/65990 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

Units 1 - 6 
Oldbury Road 
Industrial Estate 
West Bromwich 
B70 9DD 

Proposed single storey 
side extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
13th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66119 
 
Friar Park 

127 Hydes Road 
Wednesbury 
WS10 0DH 
 

Proposed single and two 
storey side and rear 
extension, and single 
storey front extension 
with porch. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
13th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66195 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

24 Turton Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 8LA 
 

Retention of storage 
room in rear garden. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Retrospective 
Consent 
 
13th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66243 
 
 

390 Bearwood Road 
Smethwick 
B66 4EX 
 

Proposed variation of 
condition 3 of planning 
permission DC/13/56059 
(Proposed change of use 
from retail shop to hot 
food take away at ground 
floor only and installation 
of extraction flue at rear 
(resubmission 
DC/09/50695)) to 
permanently allow 
additional operating 
hours between 20:00 and 
23:00 Monday to 
Sunday. 
 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
14th December 
2021 

    

Page 197



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66072 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

7 All Saints Way 
West Bromwich 
B71 1PX 
 

Proposed dropped kerb. Grant 
Permission 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66216 
 
Soho & Victoria 

42 Cape Hill 
Smethwick 
B66 4PB 
 

Proposed second floor 
rear infill extension to 
create 1 No. additional 
flat, subsequent to the 
approval of 7 No. flats 
under planning approval 
DC/21/65796. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01933 
 
Great Bridge 

17 Toll End Road 
Tipton 
DY4 0HP 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 3.82m L x 
3.15m H (2.61m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66227 
 
Hateley Heath 

46 Monmouth Drive 
West Bromwich 
B71 2SN 
 

Proposed single and two 
storey rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66246 
 
Old Warley 

5 Oldacre Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0RL 
 

Proposed two/single 
storey side/rear 
extensions with front 
canopy. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66251 
 
Abbey 

130-132 Sandon 
Road 
Smethwick 
B66 4AB 
 

Proposed change of use 
to restaurant (Lawful 
Development Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

Page 198



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66260 
 
Hateley Heath 

Side Garden Of 
45 Sandfield Road 
West Bromwich 

Proposed new dwelling. Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66266 
 
Oldbury 

137 Mckean Road 
Oldbury 
B69 4AQ 

Proposed single storey 
rear and first floor 
side/rear extensions 
(revised application to 
DC/21/65171). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01942 
 
Tipton Green 

Telecommunications 
Mast SWL19522 
Junction Of Station 
Street/Park Lane 
East 
Tipton 

Proposed 15.0m phase 8 
monopole C/W 
wrapround cabinet at 
base and associated 
ancillary works. 

Prior Approval  
is Required and 
Granted 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66289 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

45 Dartmouth Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 8BX 
 

Proposed external wall 
insulation to front, side 
and rear elevations 
(revised application to 
DC/21/65890). 

Grant 
Permission 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66292 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

Side Of 21 Pear 
Tree Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6HY 

Proposed new detached 
dwelling. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

Page 199



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66296 
 
Great Bridge 

1 Millwright Close 
Tipton 
DY4 7QN 

Proposed first floor rear 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01959 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

4 Earl Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 9HR 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.84m L x 
4.0m H (2.6m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder 
required and 
granted 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66301 
 
Hateley Heath 

JH Lavender And Co 
Limited 
Crankhall Lane 
West Bromwich 
B71 3JZ 
 

Proposed new open 
canopy. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01968 
 
Langley 

36 Boundary Avenue 
Rowley Regis 
B65 0NY 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 3.80m L x 
3.49m H (3.49m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
15th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66239 
 
Smethwick 

Rear Of 78 Coopers 
Lane 
Smethwick 
B67 7DJ 

Demolition of 2 no. 
existing garages and 
proposed 1 no. bedroom 
bungalow with boundary 
treatment and new 
vehicle access. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
16th December 
2021 

    

Page 200



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66058 
 
Rowley 

Edwin Richards 
Quarry 
Portway Road 
Rowley Regis 
 
 

Proposed new soil 
treatment area within 
existing waste 
management facility. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66110 
 
Bristnall 

29 Barnfordhill Close 
Oldbury 
B68 8ES 
 

Proposed single storey 
side and rear extension, 
and porch extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66132 
 
Old Warley 

548 - 550 Hagley 
Road West 
Oldbury 
B68 0BZ 

Proposed change of use 
from retail (E)  to 
restaurant (E(b)) and 
takeaway (sui generis), 
including new kitchen 
extract system and shop 
front. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66193 
 
Oldbury 

Land Adjacent 38 
Salop Street 
Oldbury 
 
 

Proposed 2 No. 4 
bedroom dwellings 
(Revision to approved 
planning permission 
DC/20/64402). 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66211 
 
Abbey 

18 Woodbourne 
Road 
Smethwick 
B67 5LY 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension, first floor 
side extension, and 
garage conversion into 
wet-room and bedroom. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

Page 201



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66214 
 
St Pauls 

Hawthorns Court 
Colliery Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 4JS 

Proposed part change of 
use to training academy 
and food experience 
venue to support existing 
catering business. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Temporary 
Permission 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66245 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

123A Hill Top 
West Bromwich 
B70 0RU 
 

Retention of first floor 
rear extension and 
dormer window to rear 
(previously refused 
application 
DC/20/64866). 

Grant 
Conditional 
Retrospective 
Consent 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66265 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

217 Halesowen 
Road 
Cradley Heath 
B64 6JQ 

Proposed change of use 
from bank to 2 No. retail 
units at ground floor with 
conversion of first floor 
into 7 No. 1 bed self-
contained flats with 
single storey rear 
extension, new 
ramp/balustrades to unit 
2, alterations to ramp 
access to unit 1 and car 
park layout. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66269 
 
Langley 

830 Wolverhampton 
Road 
Oldbury 
B69 4RS 

Proposed change of use 
from dwelling to 
residential home for up to 
2 No. children (Lawful 
Development Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

Page 202



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

PD/21/01949 
 
Tividale 

Telecommunications 
Mast SWL19548  
Junction Darbys Hill 
Road/Regent Road/ 
Oakham Road 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
 
 

Proposed installation of a 
15m telecommunications 
monopole supporting 6 
No. antennas, 4 No. 
equipment cabinets and 
development works 
ancillary. 

Prior Approval  
is Required and 
Granted 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66287 
 
Bristnall 

71 Dog Kennel Lane 
Oldbury 
B68 9LZ 
 

Retention of single storey 
side and rear extensions 
including conservatory 
(revision to planning 
approval DC/20/64700). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66319 
 
Tividale 

196 Wallace Road 
Oldbury 
B69 1HU 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66321 
 
Old Warley 

26 Edward Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0LY 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension, new 
pitched roof to existing 
side/rear elevation and 
detached outbuilding in 
rear garden to be used 
as home office/gym. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66322 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

19 Turton Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 8LA 

Proposed single storey 
side and rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

Page 203



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

PD/21/01960 
 
Hateley Heath 

49 Milton Street 
West Bromwich 
B71 1NJ 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.70m H (2.80m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66326 
 
Blackheath 

125 Grange Road 
Cradley Heath 
B64 6RS 

Proposed single storey 
side extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66331 
 
Old Warley 

135 Castle Road 
West 
Oldbury 
B68 0EL 

Proposed single storey 
front/rear extensions and 
raising of roof height of 
existing ground floor side 
elevation. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01966 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

29 Meyrick Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 0JL 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.0m L x 
4.0m H (2.9m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder 
required and 
refused 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01967 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

10 Old Park Road 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9LU 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.0m L x 
3.8m H (2.5m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder 
required and 
refused 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

Page 204



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66338 
 
Tividale 

254 Newbury Lane 
Oldbury 
B69 1JG 
 

Proposed two storey 
front and side extension. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66340 
 
Tividale 

12 Wheatsheaf 
Road 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 1SW 

Proposed two and single 
storey rear extensions, 
front porch with canopy. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66341 
 
Hateley Heath 

93 Beaconsfield 
Street 
West Bromwich 
B71 1QJ 

Proposed first floor rear 
extension (revised 
application to 
DC/21/65772). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01970 
 
Smethwick 

28 Blackthorne Road 
Smethwick 
B67 6PZ 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.0m L x 
3.9m H (2.9m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
17th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66225 
 
Newton 

92 Spouthouse Lane 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5QA 
 

Proposed two storey 
rear/single storey rear 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
20th December 
2021 

    

Page 205



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66262 
 
Abbey 

219 Abbey Road 
Smethwick 
B67 5NG 

Proposed raising the roof 
height of existing garage 
and single storey rear 
extensions. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
20th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66275 
 
Blackheath 

3 And 4A Long Lane 
Rowley Regis 
B65 0HT 
 

Proposed new shop front 
to number 3, demolition 
of existing ground floor 
rear extension and 
erection of ground floor 
rear extension and rear 
dormer windows to 
create 2 No. self-
contained flats across 
first and second floors 
(revision of 
DC/20/64103). 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
20th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66279 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

9 Orchard Road 
Walsall 
WS5 4UT 

Proposed single storey 
side and single storey 
front extension with 
garage conversion. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
20th December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01969 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

7 Anson Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 0NA 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.0m L x 
3.1m H (2.7m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
20th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/65892 
 
Soho & Victoria 

Land East Of 
Perrott Street 
Smethwick 
 
 

Proposed new secondary 
school (outline 
application for access). 

Grant Outline 
Permission with 
Conditions 
 
21st December 
2021 

    

Page 206



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66030 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

38 High Street 
Cradley Heath 
B64 5HL 
 

Demolition of existing 
single storey rear, 
proposed new two storey 
rear extension and 
conversion from 
shops/offices to provide 4 
No. studio flats. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
21st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66175 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

139 Park Lane 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9RZ 

Proposed two storey side 
extension, single and two 
storey rear extension and 
loft conversion with 
dormer to the rear 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
21st December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66075 
 
Langley 

Land At 
Mill Lane 
Oldbury 
 
 

Proposed variation of 
conditions 1a (layout) of 
DC/15/58915 (outline 
planning permission for 
residential development 
to include access) and 
conditions 1 (boundary 
detail) and 3 
(landscaping) of reserved 
matters application 
DC/18/61546 (pursuant 
to outline application 
[DC/15/58915]). 

Grant 
Conditional 
Reserved 
Matters 
 
22nd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66273 
 
Smethwick 

173 Queens Road 
Smethwick 
B67 7HG 
 

Proposed two storey 
side/rear, single storey 
front extensions with 
front canopy and 
dropped kerb (Revision 
to approved planning 
permission 
DC/21/65911). 

Refuse 
permission 
 
22nd December 
2021 

    

Page 207



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66285 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

11 Barrs Road 
Cradley Heath 
B64 7HB 

Proposed 1 No. new 
dwelling house. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
22nd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66286 
 
Blackheath 

Land To The Rear 
Of 1 To 5 
Halesowen Street 
Rowley Regis 
 
 

Retention of 8 No. 
industrial storage units. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
22nd December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01971 
 
Friar Park 

78 Carisbrooke 
Road 
Wednesbury 
WS10 0JB 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.0m L x 
3.0m H (3.0m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
22nd December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01972 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

124 Scott Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6JU 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.74m L x 
3.1m H (2.7m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
22nd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66352 
 
Blackheath 

12 Sandringham 
Drive 
Rowley Regis 
B65 9RJ 

Proposed single/two 
storey side and first floor 
rear extensions. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
22nd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66356 
 
St Pauls 

22 Bright Road 
Oldbury 
B68 8JR 

Proposed two/single 
storey side and rear 
extensions. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
22nd December 
2021 

    

Page 208



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/21/66357 
 
St Pauls 

43 St Stephens 
Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 4LR 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
22nd December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01975 
 
Princes End 

2 Summerhill Road 
Tipton 
DY4 9QA 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.11m L x 
2.85m H (2.85m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
22nd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66360 
 
Langley 

52 Fairway Road 
Oldbury 
B68 8BE 

Retention of outbuilding 
in rear garden. 

Grant 
Retrospective 
Permission 
 
22nd December 
2021 

    

DC/21/6741A 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

Advert Hoarding 
Holloway Bank 
Wednesbury 

Proposed upgrade of 
existing advert to support 
digital poster. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
29th December 
2021 

    

PD/21/01977 
 
Blackheath 

5 The Crescent 
Rowley Regis 
B65 8AU 
 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 3.938m L x 
3.260m H (2.820m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
29th December 
2021 

    

DC/21/66302 
 
Soho & Victoria 

Flat 1  
154 Windmill Lane 
Smethwick 
B66 3ET 

Proposed change of use 
from 1 No. flat to 2. No 
studio apartments. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
4th January 
2022 

    

 

Page 209



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee 

19 January 2022 

Subject: Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate 

Director: Director – Regeneration and Growth 
Tony McGovern 

Contribution towards Vision 
2030: 

Contact Officer(s): John Baker 
Service Manager - Development Planning 
and Building Consultancy 
John_baker@sandwell.gov.uk  

Alison Bishop 
Development Planning Manager 
Alison_bishop@sandwell.gov.uk 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 
That Planning Committee: 

Notes the decisions of the Planning Inspectorate as detailed in the 
attached appendices. 

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

This report is submitted to inform the Committee of the outcomes of 
appeals that have been made to the Planning Inspectorate by applicants 
who were unhappy with the Committee’s decision on their application. 

2 IMPLICATIONS FOR SANDWELL’S VISION 2030 

The planning process contributes to the following ambitions of the Vision 
2030 –  

Page 211

Agenda Item 14



 

Ambition 7 – We now have many new homes to meet a full range of 
housing needs in attractive neighbourhoods and close to key transport 
routes. 
 
Ambition 8 - Our distinctive towns and neighbourhoods are successful 
centres of community life, leisure and entertainment where people 
increasingly choose to bring up their families. 

 
Ambition 10 -  Sandwell now has a national reputation for getting things 
done, where all local partners are focused on what really matters in 
people’s lives and communities. 
 

3 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS  
 

3.1 Applicants who disagree with the local authority’s decision on their 
planning application may submit an appeal to the Planning Inspectorate.  
An appeal may also be made where the local authority has failed to 
determine the application within the statutory timeframe. 
 

3.2 Appeals must be submitted within six months of the date of the local 
authority’s decision notice. 
 

3.3 Decisions on the following appeals are reported, with further detailed set 
out in the attached decision notices:- 
 

Application Ref Site Address Inspectorate 
 
PD/21/01708 

129 Charlemont Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 3EH 

Dismissed 

  

Page 212



 

 
4 STRATEGIC RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS  

 
4.1 There are no direct implications in terms of the Council’s strategic 

resources.   
 

4.2 If the Planning Inspectorate overturns the Committee’s decision and 
grants consent, the Council may be required to pay the costs of such an 
appeal, for which there is no designated budget.  

 
5 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  
 
5.1 The Planning Committee has delegated powers to determine planning 

applications within current Council policy.  
 

5.2 Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 gives applicants a 
right to appeal when they disagree with the local authority’s decision on 
their application, or where the local authority has failed to determine the 
application within the statutory timeframe.  

 
Tony McGovern  
Director – Regeneration and Growth 
 

 

Page 213



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 2 November 2021 

by S A Hanson BA(Hons) BTP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 8 December 2021 

 
Appeal Ref: APP/G4620/D/21/3274637 

129 Charlemont Road, West Bromwich, West Midlands B71 3EH 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant approval required under a development order. 

• The appeal is made by S Singh against the decision of Sandwell Metropolitan Borough 

Council. 

• The application Ref PD/21/01708, dated 26 January 2021, was refused by notice dated 

13 April 2021. 

• The development proposed is described as Proposed first floor storey extension (Class 

AA application). 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Preliminary Matters  

2. Under Article 3(1) and Schedule 2, Part 1, Class AA of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended 

(the GPDO), planning permission is granted for the enlargement of a 
dwellinghouse consisting of the construction of one additional storey, where the 

existing dwellinghouse consists of one storey, immediately above the topmost 
storey of the dwellinghouse, together with any engineering operations 
reasonably necessary for the purpose of that construction. Development is 

permitted by Class AA subject to the conditions set out in sub-paragraphs (2) 
and (3). 

3. Development under Class AA is permitted subject to the condition that before 
beginning the development, the developer must apply to the local planning 
authority for prior approval. The local planning authority may refuse the 

application where it considers that the proposal does not comply with the 
limitations or restrictions that are applicable to such permitted development. 

4. The provisions of the GPDO require the local planning authority to assess the 
development proposed solely on the basis of a limited number of 
considerations. These include the external appearance of the dwellinghouse. 

The Council has raised concerns in respect of the effect of the development 
upon the visual amenity of the area. I therefore consider this to be the main 

issue in the appeal.  

5. Development plan policies and the National Planning Policy Framework (the 
Framework) can be considered relevant in prior approval cases, but only 

insofar as they relate to the development and prior approval matters. I have 
proceeded on this basis. 

Page 214

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/G4620/D/21/3274637 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

Main Issue 

6. This is whether prior approval should be given, having particular regard to the 
resulting external appearance of the dwellinghouse on the surrounding area.  

Reasons 

7. The appeal site is a detached bungalow with a staggered form, located in a 
predominantly residential area. It has a wide open frontage and is situated 

opposite a road junction. It is a slight anomaly within the area as it is an older 
property surrounded by more recent higher density development, such as two-

storey terraced properties and 3 eight-storey tower blocks within the opposite 
street.  

8. The property has been extended to the rear and side at ground floor level. One 

section of the bungalow has been extended into the roof space with a hip-to-
gable and flat roof rear dormer which covers the entire width of the roof. The 

appeal scheme seeks to create additional residential accommodation at first 
floor level on the part of the building that does not contain the loft conversion.  

9. The appellant contends that there are several examples of bungalows in the 

local area that have had similar additional storey extensions “approved by the 
Council”, creating much larger 2 storey houses. They have provided 

photographic examples of two of these properties which they say have been 
extended with an additional storey of a greater size, and with neighbouring 
properties within very close proximity to either side and to the opposite side of 

the road. The appellant considers one of these properties to not be in keeping 
or sympathetic with the surrounding properties or street scene. Whereas, in 

contrast they consider the appeal proposal to be in keeping and sympathetic 
with the existing street scene due to it being an addition to a small part of the 
property. 

10. Whilst I acknowledge these examples, I do not know the full circumstances of 
the cases. Nevertheless, in my opinion, the context of the appeal before me is 

significantly different to the provided examples. 

11. The development as proposed would increase the overall height, bulk and scale 
of the bungalow on each elevation, including the principal front elevation which 

faces the highway and the junction with Meadow Avenue, and the side and rear 
elevations would be readily visible from both an area of public open space and 

neighbouring properties to the rear and side. 

12. The height would be disproportionate to the scale of the existing dwelling and 
would result in a visually unbalanced property. The additional storey on one 

section of the bungalow would appear overly dominant and incongruous in the 
wider context and immediate street-scene. This would cause harm to the 

appearance of the area. In this respect, the proposal would not accord with 
paragraph 126 of the Framework 2021 which seeks to create high quality, 

beautiful and sustainable buildings and places. 

13. Although the surrounding properties are taller, and the appeal property would 
be extended to a similar height to some neighbouring two-storey houses, only 

one section of the bungalow would be extended upwards. Furthermore, the 
surrounding properties, particularly the tower blocks, are purpose built and are 

considerably different in appearance. Their presence does not justify allowing 
the development as proposed. 

Page 215

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/G4620/D/21/3274637 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

Conclusion  

14. Given the above, prior approval is refused and the appeal is dismissed. 

S A Hanson 

INSPECTOR 

 
 
 

 

Page 216

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council 

Planning Committee 

19th January 2022 

Index of Applications 

Application No & 
Agenda Page Ref 

Premises, Application and 
Applicant 

Recommendation 

DC/21/65664 

Bristnall 

Proposed two storey side/rear 
and single storey rear 
extensions, front bay window, 
raising of roof height, loft 
conversion with 2 No. side loft 
dormer windows. 
8 Aldridge Close Oldbury B68 
9NY   

Grant Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 

No further 
comments 

DC/21/66106 

Oldbury 

Proposed industrial unit 
(Class E(g)(iii) Industrial 
processes) with ancillary 
offices and associated 
parking. 
Land At Summerton Road 
Oldbury   

Grant Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 

Additional 
conditions (xiii)  
new drop kerb to 
provide access to 
the parking and 
manoeuvring 
area.  
(xiv) an
archaeological

desktop study to
be submitted prior
to commencement
of development.

Page 217

Agenda Item 15



 

DC/21/66122 
 
Cradley Heath & 
Old Hill 

Proposed 2 no. 3 bedroom 
dormer bungalows with 
boundary fencing and 
associated car parking. 
Land Adjacent The Bungalow 
Corngreaves Road Cradley 
Heath   
 

Grant Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
No further 
comments 

   

DC/21/66156 
 
Blackheath 

Proposed two storey side, 
first floor front and single 
storey front/rear extensions. 
21 Yewtree Lane Rowley 
Regis B65 8BU   
 

Grant Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
No further 
comments 
 
 
 

   

DC/21/66185 
 
Oldbury 
 
(Visit 3.30pm) 

Proposed change of use from 
dwelling to 8 No. bedroom 
HMO (house in multiple 
occupation) with two/single 
storey side and single storey 
rear extensions. 
54 St James Road Oldbury 
B69 2DX   
 

Grant Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
No further 
comments 

   

DC/21/66223 
 
Blackheath 

Proposed demolition of 
existing buildings and 
construction of a five-storey 
building comprising of 42 No. 
apartments with external 
bin/cycle store, associated 
access, parking and 
landscaping. 
Regis Lodge 50 George 
Avenue Rowley Regis B65 
9BD  
 

Grant Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
Additional 
condition (xv) 
Existing drop kerb 
to be removed 
and new drop 
kerb provided. 

   

Page 218



 

DC/21/66233 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

Retention of use of garage as 
hair salon (previously refused 
application DC/21/65576). 
1 Hydes Road Wednesbury 
WS10 9SX   
 

Refuse permission 
 
Two plans 
attached clarifying 
the retail core of 
Wednesbury 
Town Centre and 
distance to the 
application site. 

   

DC/21/66293 
 
Charlemont With 
Grove Vale 

Proposed new section of 
2.1m high railings and 
relocation of access gate to 
the front of private footway 
(Resubmission of previously 
withdrawn application 
DC/21/66021). 
Footpath Adjacent To The 
Front Garden Of 1 Asbury 
Walk Great Barr Birmingham 
B43 6HF  
 

Grant Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
No further 
comments 

   

DC/21/66295 
 
Old Warley 

Proposed single storey 
front/side extension to 
existing outbuilding in rear 
garden for use as a home 
office/gym. 
125 Bleakhouse Road 
Oldbury B68 0LT   
 

Grant Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
No further 
comments 

   

 
 
 

Page 219



 

Page 220



 

Page 221



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Planning Application - DC-21-65664 - 8 Aldridge Close, Oldbury, B68 9NY
	Sheets and Views
	Plans-Layouts


	5 Planning Application - DC-21-66106 - Land At Summerton Road, Oldbury
	6 Planning Application - DC-21-66122 - Land Adjacent The Bungalow, Corngreaves Road, Cradley Heath
	7 Planning Application - DC-21-66156 - 21 Yewtree Lane, Rowley Regis, B65 8BU
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1

	Sheets and Views
	Layout1

	Sheets and Views
	Layout1

	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	8 Planning Application - DC-21-66185 - 54 St James Road, Oldbury, B69 2DX
	9 Planning Application - DC-21-66223 - Regis Lodge, 50 George Avenue, Rowley Regis B65 9BD
	Sheets and Views
	PL002 - Site Plan

	Sheets and Views
	PL200 - GF

	Sheets and Views
	PL201 - FF

	Sheets and Views
	PL300 Elevations

	Sheets and Views
	PL302 Elevations (2)


	10 Planning Application - DC-21-66233 - 1 Hydes Road, Wednesbury, WS10 9SX
	1 Recommendations
	2 Reasons for Recommendations
	4 Context
	14 Alternative Options
	15 Implications
	16. Appendices

	11 Planning Application - DC-21-66293 - Footpath Adjacent To The Front Garden Of 1 Asbury Walk, Great Barr, Birmingham, B43 6HF
	12 Planning Application - DC-21-66295 - 125 Bleakhouse Road, Oldbury, B68 0LT
	13 Applications Determined Under Delegated Powers
	Cover Report - Applications Determined Under Delegated Powers.pdf
	10 - Applications Determined Under Delegated Powers
	1 Recommendations
	2 Reasons for Recommendations
	3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?
	4 Context and Key Issues
	6 Implications
	7 Appendices
	8 Background Papers


	12. Delegated List 24.11.21 - 04.01.22.pdf
	SANDWELL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL


	14 Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate
	11.1. Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate.pdf
	11.2. APPEAL DECISION 3274637.pdf

	15 Information Received after Agenda Publication
	1. Agenda - Amendments.pdf
	2. Weds centre 1.pdf
	3. Weds centre 2.pdf




